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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EIRES

On behalf of the board of directors (the ” and the “Board”,
respectively) of Asia Television Holdings Limited (the “Company”), we are

Directors”

pleased to present the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2019.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 was
approximately Renminbi (“RMB") 156.9 million (2018: RMB166.0 million), a
slight decrease of approximately 5.5% compared to the year before. The loss
before taxation of the Company amounted to approximately RMB621.9 million
(2018: RMB840.0 million), representing a significant decrease of 25.9% from
2018.

The Group recorded a substantial decrease in the audited consolidated loss
attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019
(“2019 Consolidated Loss”). The decrease in the Consolidated Loss was mainly
attributable to (i) an absence of the recognition of impairment loss on goodwill
of approximately RMB114 million for the acquisition of Asia Television Limited
and its subsidiaries as recognised in the same period last year; (ii) a decrease in
share of loss of an associate and impairment of an associate of approximately
RMB208 million as compared to the same period of the last year; and (iii) a
decrease in the cost of sales of approximately RMB105 million as compared to
the same period of the last year due to the adoption of stringent cost control

measures.

Loss per share amounted to approximately RMB0.076 (2018: RMB0.113),
while the net asset value per share attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately RMB0.01 at the end of 2019 (2018: RMBO0.07).

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company during the year (2018:
Nil). The Board resolved not to declare the payment of any final dividend for
the year (2018: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group had engaged in four
business streams including (i) the processing, printing and sales of finished
fabrics and subcontracting services and the trading of fabric and clothing
business (the “Fabrics and Trading Business”); (ii) the money lending business;
(iii) securities investment and securities brokerage services business (the
“Investments and Brokerage Services Business”); and (iv) media, cultural and
entertainment business.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

An outline of the business review of the four business streams is described

below:

()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Fabrics and Trading Business

The overall business environment remained challenging in 2019.
Demand from emerging markets remained weak and the substantial
increases in direct costs continued to put pressure on gross profit
margin. For the year 2019, the turnover contributed by the Fabrics and
Trading Business was approximately RMB112.7 million (2018: RMB94.9
million), representing an increase of 18.8% from the previous year, was
mainly due to the increase in revenue contributed by subcontracting
services. Nevertheless, Gross loss from the operation has reduced
significantly from RMB18.1 million in 2018 to gross loss of RMB8.8
million in current year, representing a 51.4% year-over-year decline.

Money Lending Business

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the interest income contributed
by the money lending business was approximately RMB18.2 million
(2018: RMB18.2 million) with EBITDA result of approximately RMB14.5
million (2018: RMB18.1 million).

Investments and Brokerage Services Business

As the stock market was volatile in 2019, the Group had recorded
an overall fair value loss of approximately RMB42.4 million from the
securities investment business (2018: fair value loss of RMB43.6 million).

The revenue generated from the securities brokerage services business
was approximately RMB12.9 million (2018: RMB28.2 million),
representing a decrease of 54.3% from the previous year. The decrease
in revenue of Million Federal International Limited together with its
subsidiary, Sincere Securities Limited was mainly due to the overall
decrease in revenue generated from brokerage and related services,
underwriting and placing services and margin financing interest. The
Group's overall Investment and Brokerage Services Business was less
than satisfactory.

Media, Cultural and Entertainment Business

During the year under review, the turnover of the media, cultural and
entertainment business was approximately RMB13.1 million (2018:
24.8 million). The decrease in revenue was mainly due to the decrease
of advertising and subscription income from the over-the-top platform,
including set-top-boxes, mobile app and website. EBITDA for the year
ended 31 December 2019 was at a loss of approximately RMB8.0
million (2018: RMB131.5 million), the improvement was mainly due to
restructuring, downsizing and the adoption of stringent cost control
measures.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

EE ]S ()

LONG TERM CORPORATE STRATEGIES

Being heavily invested in media, cultural and entertainment business, the
Group aims to expand vertically to provide our customers with a “one-stop”
advertising solution from creative production to media delivery. In the medium
to long term development, it is expected that our platform will cover other
Chinese-Speaking regions. We will strategically focus on developing Singapore,
Malaysia, Hong Kong and Taiwan before moving on to other countries with
large populations.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Despite the headwinds and challenges ahead, we will continue to enhance
our corporate transparency and strengthen our corporate governance and
internal control. In the year ahead, we aim to revitalise our media, cultural
and entertainment business through innovation and repositioning. We will
take every opportunity to optimise our business to enrich the value of the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”). With the concerted
efforts of the management and the staff of the Group, we are confident and
optimistic about the Group’s future growth and outlook.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Group and the Board, we would like to express uttermost
gratitude to our employees for all your effort and contribution. We would also
like to thank our Shareholders, investors, business partners and customers who
have been offering great support and assistance to us. We are confident about
the future development prospects of the Group and will continue to forge
ahead with innovative development and generate ideal investment returns for
Shareholders.

Deng Jun Jie Dato’ Sri Lai Chai Suang

SEMEBYEB L

Co-Chairman Co-Chairman

Hong Kong, 6 May 2020

*  for identification only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2019, Asia Television Holdings Limited
(the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) had engaged
in four business streams including (i) the processing, printing and sales of
finished fabrics and subcontracting services and the trading of fabric and
clothing business (the “Fabrics and Trading Business”); (ii) the money lending
business; (iii) securities investment and securities brokerage services business
(the “Investments and Brokerage Services Business”); and (iv) media, cultural

and entertainment business.

Fabrics and Trading Business

The Group continued to engage in the Fabrics and Trading Business during
the financial year. The overall business environment remained challenging in
2019. Weak demand from emerging markets and the substantial increase in
direct costs continued to exert tremendous pressure on gross profit margin.
The fierce competition also made it difficult to pass on various cost increases
to customers, along with increasingly demanding environmental standards and
requirements applicable in the manufacturing processes. As a result, the Group
has focused improving operating efficiency and managing costs last year. We
also took other appropriate strategic and operational measures to deal with
operational challenges.

For the year 2019, the turnover contributed by the Fabrics and Trading Business
was approximately Renminbi (“RMB") 112.7 million (2018: RMB94.9 million),
representing an increase of 18.8% from the previous year, was mainly due to
the increase in revenue contributed by subcontracting services. Gross loss from
the operation has reduced substantially from approximately RMB18.1 million
in 2018 to gross loss of approximately RMB8.8 million in the current year,
representing a 51.4% year-on-year decline. Nevertheless, the segment gross
loss were primarily due to the fact that (i) the Group was unable to pass on all
the increased costs (such as costs related to labour and increasingly stringent
environmental protection requirements) and decrease in the average selling
price of the fabric owing to intense competition in the market; (ii) most of the
material costs have increased dramatically during the year; (iii) the economic
environment of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") has becoming
more uncertain due to the slowdown of economic growth in the PRC, driven
by the structural adjustment in the domestic economy and structural reform on
the supply side. Besides, operating environment was extremely unfavourable
owing to the escalating trade tensions between the United States (the “US")
and the PRC, which has brought uncertainties to the future of the textile
industry as well as weakened demand from customers. We anticipate the fabric
manufacturing and trading industry will further undergo a prolong process of
consolidation and we will continue to adopt stringent cost control measures

and consider of downsizing to counteract the operational headwinds.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EHE R RS W (])

Money Lending Business

The money lending business is conducted through Rende Finance Limited, a
locally licenced money lender under the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter
163 of the Laws of the Hong Kong). As at 31 December 2019, the loan
balances were approximately RMB86.4 million (2018: RMB100.2 million) with
terms of 3 months to 1 year.

The Group adopted the money lending policy and procedure manual which
provide guidelines on the handling and monitoring of money lending
procedures according to the Money Lenders Ordinance. For the year ended
31 December 2019, the interest income contributed by the money lending
business was approximately RMB18.2 million (2018: RMB18.2 million) with
EBITDA result of approximately RMB14.5 million (2018: RMB18.1 million).

As a matter of risk management exercise, we will not further enlarge the
exposure of the money lending business. We will remain prudent in our
credit approval process and exercise stringent internal process in screening
applications.

Investment and Brokerage Services Business

During the year under review, the overall performance of the Group's securities
investment business was less than satisfactory. Global financial markets
experienced a turbulent ride in 2019 primarily due to the US-China trade
overhang and sluggish global economic growth. The stock market was volatile
in 2019 and the Group recorded an overall fair value loss of approximately
RMB42.4 million (2018: RMB43.6 million) from the securities investment
business. The decrease in fair value of the securities investment was mainly due
to the volatility caused by the US-China trade war, the unrest of Hong Kong
society, the weakening RMB and economics in emerging markets, which lead
to the overall unsatisfactory performance of the stock market.

As at 31 December 2019, the aggregate amount of the Group’s listed
securities held for trading at fair value is approximately RMB31.4 million (2018:
RMB123.2 million). The Group managed a portfolio of securities listed in Hong
Kong and overseas.

The revenue generated from the securities brokerage services business was
approximately RMB12.9 million (2018: RMB28.2 million), representing a
decrease of 54.3% from the previous year, the decrease in revenue was mainly
due to the overall decrease in revenue generated from brokerage and related

services, underwriting and placing services and margin financing interest.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Media, Cultural and Entertainment Business

During the year, turnover of the media, cultural and entertainment business
was approximately RMB13.1 million (2018: 24.8 million). Since the beginning
of social unrest in June 2019, adversity in the economy and business
environment in Hong Kong, and uncertainties in global markets have given rise
to sharp decline in advertising and subscription income. EBITDA for the year
ended 31 December 2019 was a loss of approximately RMB8.0 million (2018: a
loss of approximately RMB131.5 million), the improvement was mainly due to
restructuring, downsizing and the adoption of stringent cost control measures.
During the period under review, we have also revived our most popular and
classic contents such as “Miss Asia Pageant”, along with our new programmes.
The Group has streamlined its management team and outsourced certain
programmes for the mobile application and OTT platform during the period
under review.

The short-term strategy for our media and entertainment business is to expand
its multiple digital platforms with big data social media platforms. Our goal is
to establish a high-quality e-commence platform with strong customer base.
In the long run, we aim to expand vertically to provide our customers with a
“one-stop” solution from creative production to media delivery. In the medium
to long term development, it is expected that our platform will cover other
Chinese-Speaking regions. We will focus on developing Malaysia, Singapore,
Hong Kong and Taiwan before moving on to other countries with large
populations.

THE REMEDIAL ACTIONS TO BE UNDERTAKEN
RELATED TO MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED
TO GOING CONCERN

The management has drawn attention to note 1 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements with respect to the Group’s ability to continue as going concerns.
During the financial year ended 31 December 2019, the Group incurred a
net loss of approximately RMB605,313,000. As at 31 December 2019, the
Group's current liabilities exceeded the current assets by approximately
RMB303,331,000. These events and conditions indicate a material uncertainty
exists that may cast significant doubt about the Group's ability to continue as
going concern.

EHE R RS W (R)

REE - b RIREEEK

RAFEE @ #8 XERIREEK ZEAEEY
B AR 13,100,000 c(ZT—N\F : AR¥
24,800,0007T) c B —NFNARBHIRMEE
EEDAR - BB RISERIBERA YRR E2IKM
BEETEERAER  ERESRITBERALRZR
TH® -#HE-T—AE+-_A=+—HILFEH
EBITDAAE B4 A R#8,000,0007T( —ZF— )\ :
B84 AR#131,500,0000T) ' RETHEBZHRE
48~ TERIZRE R R AR B K AN HI S BE o PO B
B EREEE — 8 RPIRESRZE k&
EEE AR - BlgA MM NMEEE ] - REIFEEEA -
AEBEARYEARERAKOTTEFEREHEREE
B R ANHIETEIE ©

FAPIEE RS MR R TV B B R A AR BIRAER
ERFaBERASEZRGE TR - HMANBERERYL
BEEBRARFPERNSEEEFEBTA - #KE
s BAEEEERR  REMANEFPREHEEZ
BB EUERRBEEN [ WX IR R - Eh &
RS FHEMANTEREELMELIRS -
B EREREFRAE - MK FERAE
REBEREMADRSHER o

FRFEKENERTRERE
A% BREY B 8 R 3E B

EEERBIBRGAVMBRERWT 1 EBEANEE
SFHEISERNINEE  REBEE-T—NAFT+=A
=T —HIEMBEE  AEEEEFEEHOAR
#605,313,000C - R=T—h&E+=_A=+—
i $§E<§|E’U/}Ibé))%fﬁhtbwéﬂﬁgﬁAEﬁg
303,331,0007C * ZEEFHRBEABTREFEEART
BEAX A AEERELLEBRETSR

Annual Report | £%£2019 9



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EHE R RS W (])

The directors of the Company have taken the following measures to mitigate
the liquidity pressure and to improve its financial position:

(i) Actively negotiating with lenders and other financial institutions to
renew loans that have fallen due and new credit facilities;

(i) Implementing comprehensive policies to monitor cash flows through
cutting costs and capital expenditure;

(iii)  Exploring the possibility of disposing certain non-core assets;

(iv)  Soliciting for further financing arrangements which include placing of

new shares to new potential investors;

(v)  Extended one of the loans from other financial institutions which was
matured before 31 December 2019 for maturity on 31 May 2021,

(vi) Obtained a financial undertaking and financial support from a
substantial shareholder of the Company who is also a director of the
Company; and

(vii)  Obtained the new credit facilities of not less than HK$200,000,000
which is effective from a period of 17 months from the report date.

The management has commenced to look into related development
opportunities such as diversified source of income and is processing the
following actions to improve the financial performance of the Group:

(i) negotiating with third parties to jointly organise music events and
produce film rights;

(i) negotiating with third parties to invest in film rights;

(iiiy  revitalizing and developing the mobile application and OTT platform for

Singapore, Malaysia, Hong Kong and Taiwan; and

(iv)  implementing policies to monitor cash flows through cutting costs and
capital expenditure.

Based on the Group's cash flow projections, taking account of effectiveness
and feasibility of the above measures covering a period of twelve months from
the end of the reporting period prepared by the management, the directors of
the Company consider the Group would be able to finance its operations and
to meet its financial obligations as and when they have fallen due or will be
failing due in coming twelve months. Accordingly, the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had total assets of approximately
RMB1,013.2 million (2018: RMB1,433.0 million) which were financed by
current liabilities of approximately RMB785.1 million (2018: RMB919.0
million), non-current liabilities of approximately RMB189.6 million (2018:
RMB76.7 million) and the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”)
equity of approximately RMB101.7 million (2018: RMB461.8 million).

As at 31 December 2019, excluded clients’ monies in segregated account, the
Group's cash and bank balances were approximately RMB29.7 million (2018:
RMB37.3 million), while pledged bank deposits amounted to RMBO0.0 million
(2018: RMB20.6 million). As at 31 December 2019, the secured bonds were
fixed-rate and were denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), the short-
term bank loans were fixed-rate loans and denominated in RMB whereas loans
from other financial institution and other borrowing were fixed-rate loan and
denominated in HK$. The Group’s borrowings were secured by property, plant
and equipment, interest in an associate financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, rights-of-use assets, inventories, trade and other receivables,
deposits and prepayments, pledged bank deposits and bank balances and cash
of the Group.

The current ratio, being a ratio of total current assets to total current
liabilities, was approximately 0.6 (2018: 0.8). The gearing ratio, being a ratio
of borrowings (comprising leases liabilities, bond payables, convertible bonds,
bank loans, loans from other financial institutions and other borrowings as at
31 December 2019) to Shareholders’ equity, was 502.1% (2018: 117.8%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EHE R RS W (])

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2019, the Company’s authorised share capital was
HK$2,000,000,000 divided into 20,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each, of
which 7,425,668,000 ordinary shares were in issue and fully paid.

Issue of Shares under share option scheme
During the year ended 31 December 2019, no share options were issued,
lapsed and exercised.

Share Transaction — Movie Investment Agreement |
Involving the Issue of Consideration Shares | Under the
2018 General Mandate

On 11 April 2019, the Company entered into a movie investment agreement
(the "Movie Investment Agreement |”) with Filmko Pictures Limited (“Filmko
Pictures”), pursuant to which Filmko Pictures has conditionally agreed to sell and
the Company has conditionally agreed to acquire the right to share 15% of the
total net income of the movie “Double World {fE# )" (the “Acquisition "), at
a consideration of HK$67,500,000, which was satisfied by the allotment and
issue of a total of 270,000,000 new Shares (the “Consideration Shares |”) to
Filmko Pictures (or its nominee(s)). On 26 April 2019, the Consideration Shares |
were allotted and issued to Filmko Pictures (or its nominees) at the issue price of
HK$0.25 per Share under the general mandate granted by the shareholders of
the Company to the Directors at the annual general meeting held on 1 June 2018
(the “2018 General Mandate”) and the Acquisition | was completed on 26 April
2019.

Discloseable Transaction — Movie Investment Agreement
Il Involving the Issue of Consideration Shares Il Under the
2018 General Mandate

On 14 May 2019, the Company entered into a movie investment agreement
(the “Movie Investment Agreement I1”) with Filmko Pictures, pursuant to
which Filmko Pictures has conditionally agreed to sell and the Company has
conditionally agreed to acquire the right to share 10% of the total net income
of the movie “Little Q {/~Q)", (the “Acquisition II"), at a consideration of
HK$25,000,000, which was satisfied by the allotment and issue of a total of
100,000,000 new Shares (the “Consideration Shares II”) pursuant to the Movie
Investment Agreement Il to Filmko Pictures (or its nominee(s)). On 22 May
2019, the Consideration Shares Il were allotted and issued to Filmko Pictures
(or its nominees) at the issue price of HK$0.25 per Share under the 2018
General Mandate and the Acquisition Il was completed on 22 May 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Lapsed of Placing Agreement for Placing of Convertible
Bonds under the 2018 General Mandate

On 30 May 2019 (after trading hours), Kingston Securities Limited (the “Placing
Agent”) and the Company entered into a placing agreement (the “Placing
Agreement”) pursuant to which the Company has agreed to appoint the
Placing Agent as the placing agent and the Placing Agent has conditionally
agreed to procure placee(s) to subscribe for the convertible bonds in the
principal amount of up to HK$260,275,000 to be issued by the Company
pursuant to the Placing Agreement, on a best efforts basis, on the terms and
conditions set out in the Placing Agreement. On 28 June 2019, given that
certain conditions set out in the Placing Agreement have not been satisfied
on or before the fifth business day after expiration of the placing period, the
Placing Agreement accordingly lapsed.

Connected transaction in relation to Subscription of
Convertible Bonds under Specific Mandate - Phase 1
Completion and Phase 2 Completion

Subject to fulfilment of the conditions precedent under the subscription
agreement dated 24 September 2019 (as amended and supplemented by
letters of confirmation dated 7 November 2019, 26 February 2020, 1 April
2020 and 4 May 2020) (collectively, the “Subscription Agreements”), pursuant
to which Mr. Deng Junjie, the co-chairman, an executive Director and a
substantial shareholder of the Company (the “Subscriber”) has conditionally
agreed to subscribe for and the Company has conditionally agreed to issue
the convertible bonds in two phases in an aggregate principal amount of
HK$400,000,000 at the conversion price of HK$0.1 per conversion share.
Assuming all the conversion shares are converted in full at the initial conversion
price of HK$0.1 per conversion share, an aggregate of 4,000,000,000
conversion shares will be issued, the completion took place in two phases (the
“Phase 1 Completion” and the “Phase 2 Completion”).

On 17 December 2019, the Phase 1 Completion took place in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the Subscription Agreements, pursuant to which
the convertible bonds in the principal amount of HK$200 million, with the
initial conversion price of HK$0.1 per conversion share and carry interest of 6%
per annum and wholly or partly convertible to ordinary shares of the Company
within 3 years have been allotted and issued by the Company to the Subscriber.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EHE R RS W (])

As at the date of this report, as additional time is required to proceed with
Phase 2 Completion, the Subscriber and the Company mutually agreed to
extend the date of Phase 2 Completion to 1 June 2020. For details, please refer
to the Company’s announcement dated 26 February 2020, 1 April 2020 and
4 May 2020.

The net proceeds from Phase 1 Completion of approximately HK$199 million
were received by the Company which utilized for (i) approximately HK$191
million for repayment of the borrowings of the Group and the accrued interest
due on or before January 2020; and (ii) as to approximately HK$8 million
for general working capital of the Group. For details, please refer to the
Company’s announcements dated 24 September 2019, 7 November 2019, 11
November 2019, 29 November 2019, 17 December 2019, 26 February 2020,
1 April 2020, 4 May 2020 and the Company’s circular dated 11 November
2019.

As at 31 December 2019, the Company has outstanding convertible bonds
in the principal amount of HK$200,000,000, with carry interest of 6% per
annum, are due in 2022 and carry right to convert into ordinary shares of the
Company. A maximum number of 2,000,000,000 shares may be allotted and
issued upon exercise of the conversion rights attached to the convertible bonds
in full. During the year, no convertible bonds was converted to ordinary shares
of the Company.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s borrowings were secured by assets with
a total carrying value of approximately RMB107.2 million (2018: RMB1,433.0

million).

Save for disclosed above, the Group does not have other charges on the
Group’s assets.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has no capital commitments (2018: Nil) in
respect of purchases of property, plant and equipment.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND EXCHANGE RISK
EXPOSURE

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has provided corporate guarantees in
favour of a financial institution in respect of certain credit facilities granted to
an independent third party, Shasing-Shapheng (Quanzhou) Textile Industrial
Co., Ltd. (“Shasing-Shapheng Quanzhou”)and a related company, Fujian
Xiesheng Xiefeng Printing and Dyeing Industry Co., Ltd (2018: Shasing-
Shapheng Quanzhou). The total amounts to be guaranteed by the Group
should not exceed RMB50,000,000 and RMB180,000,000 respectively
(2018: RMB50,000,000). As at 31 December 2019, the guaranteed loans
drawn down amounted to RMB20,000,000 and RMB20,850,000 respectively
(2018: RMB40,000,000). The effective period of the guarantees was from 16
July 2018 to 15 July 2023 and from 17 October 2019 to 16 October 2024
respectively (2018: 16 July 2018 to 15 July 2023). No provision for the Group's
obligation under the guarantee contract had been made as the directors of
the Company considered the possibility that Shasing-Shapheng Quanzhou and
Fujian Xiesheng Xiefeng Printing and Dyeing Industry Co., Ltd would not meet
their obligations to the financial institution are remote, and it was not probable
that a claim will be made against the Group under the guarantee contracts.

Except for the corporate guarantees disclosed above, the Group and the
Company did not have any other contingent liabilities as at the end of the
current and prior financial years.

Most of the Group's assets and liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars and Renminbi, which are the functional currencies of the respective
group companies. The Group has not entered into any instruments on the
foreign exchange exposure. The Group will closely monitor exchange rate
movement and will take appropriate action to reduce the exchange risk.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Please refer to notes 4, 5 and 38 to the consolidated financial statements and
the section “Contingent Liabilities and Exchange Risk Exposure” for further
discussion on other risks and uncertainties.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EERBHRE SR (R

LITIGATIONS

16

LITIGATION IN RELATION TO THE LOAN AGREEMENT
Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated 28
January 2019, 30 July 2019, 1 August 2019, 2 September 2019 and 13
January 2020 (the “Litigation Related Announcements”) in relation to,
inter alia, a litigation in relation to the breach of the Loan Agreement (as
defined below).

As disclosed in the Litigation Related Announcements, on 28 January
2019, the Company, as the borrower, entered into a loan agreement
(the “Loan Agreement”) with Tse's Finance Limited (the “Lender”),
pursuant to which the Lender agreed to provide to the Borrower a term
loan of HK$50,000,000, at an interest rate of 2.5% per month for a
term of 2 months (the “Loan”). Pursuant to the Loan Agreement, the
Company shall repay the principal amount of the Loan in full and the
interest incurred on the maturity date of the Loan.

On 30 July 2019, the Company received a writ of summons (“Writ")
together with a Statement of Claim issued in the Court of First Instance
of High Court of Hong Kong by the Lender against the Company. On 1
August 2019, the Lender filed a Notice of Discontinuance and therefore
the Writ is withdrawn. On 2 September 2019, the Company received
another writ of summons (“Writ II”) together with a Statement of Claim
issued in the Court of First Instance of High Court of Hong Kong by the
Lender against the Company. On 13 January 2020, the Company settled
the judgment debt to the Lender in full, including the principal sum
of HK$50,000,000.00, all the accrued interests and related expenses
in the aggregate amount of HK$64,798,719.71. Since the Lender has
confirmed that it had received the settlement amount, it confirmed that
no further legal actions in relation to the Loan Agreement will be taken
accordingly.

LITIGATION IN RELATION TO STATUTORY DEMANDS
Reference is made to the announcements of Company dated 21 October
2019, 24 October 2019, 28 October 2019 and 18 December 2019 (the
“Statutory Demands Related Announcements”) in relation to, inter alia,
the commencement of litigations in relation to two alleged outstanding
debts.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

As disclosed in the Statutory Demands Related Announcements, on
2 October 2019, a statutory demand under section 178(1)(A) of the
Companies (Winding Up and Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance
(Chapter 32, Laws of Hong Kong) (“Ordinance”) (“Statutory Demand |"”)
was served on the Company by a creditor (the “Creditor 1”) to demand
the Company to repay the alleged outstanding debt in the amount of
HK$150,177,884.47 (the “Debt I”) within 3 weeks after the service
of the Statutory Demand I. On 9 October 2019, a statutory demand
under section 178(1)(A) of the Ordinance (“Statutory Demand I1”) was
served on the Company by a creditor (the “Creditor I1”) to demand
the Company to repay the alleged outstanding debt in the amount of
HK$222,707,496.00 (the “Debt 1I”) within 3 weeks after service of the
Statutory Demand II. After the expiry of the 3-week period after the
services of Statutory Demand | and Statutory Demand I, both Creditor |
and Creditor Il may present a winding-up petition against the Company.

Creditor | then has agreed that they would not present the winding
up petition if the Company could repay part of the outstanding debt
of HK$20,000,000 by 23 October 2019, and expected the Company
to repay the remaining outstanding debts after the completion of the
connected transaction in relation to subscription of convertible bonds
under specific mandate (the “Completion of Subscription”) with the
estimated gross proceeds of approximately HK$400 million (the “Gross
Proceeds”) as stated in the announcement dated 24 September 2019
(the “Subscription Announcement”). Creditor Il has also agreed that
they would not present the winding up petition if the Company could
repay part of the outstanding debt of HK$50,000,000 by 30 October
2019, and expected the Company to repay the remaining outstanding
debts after the Completion of Subscription with the Gross Proceeds as
stated in the Subscription Announcement.

On 18 December 2019, the Company completely repaid all the
alleged outstanding debt to Creditor I, including the principal sum of
HK$137 million, all the accrued interests and all the accrued legal and
professional fees in the aggregate amount of HK$ 165,287,167.42. As a
result of the Creditor | has confirmed that it had received the settlement
amount, the Statutory Demand | was deemed to be lapsed accordingly.
As at the date of this report, the Company is still proactively engaging
in negotiations with Creditor Il for better terms on the repayment
schedule and for the avoidance of the potential winding-up petition. The
Company is also negotiating with various other lenders for new credit
lines in order to improve the cashflow position of the Company.

Reference is made to the announcements of Company dated 7 April
2020 (the “2020 Statutory Demand Announcement”) in relation to,
inter alia, the commencement of litigation in relation to the alleged
outstanding debts.

As disclosed in the 2020 Statutory Demand Announcement, on 23
March 2020, a statutory demand under section 178(1)(A) of the
Ordinance (“Statutory Demand IlI”) was served on the Company by a
creditor (the “Creditor llI"”) to demand the Company to repay the alleged
outstanding debt in the amount of HK$45,978,301.36 (the “Debt IIl”)
within 3 weeks after the service of the Statutory Demand Ill. After the
expiry of the 3-week period after the services of Statutory Demand lll,
Creditor Ill may present a winding-up petition against the Company. As
at the date of this announcement, the Company is proactively engaging
in negotiations with the Creditor Ill for better terms on the repayment
schedule and for waiving the breaches.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EHE R RS W (])

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
THE GROUP

Modification opinion arising from the acquisition of Star
Platinum

Our auditor was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to
satisfy our auditor as to the recoverability of deposits for other investments
on Asia Television Limited (“ATV") (“ATV Deposits”) and receivables due from
ATV (“ATV Receivables”) as at 31 December 2017. During the year ended 31
December 2018, the acquisition of ATV by Star Platinum (the “Acquisition”)
was completed, ATV became a subsidiary of the Group.

Since opening balances of assets and liabilities affect the determination of
the financial performance and cash flows of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018, our auditor was unable to determine whether adjustments
to the opening accumulated losses, financial performance and cash flows of
the Group, and related disclosures in the notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements, might be necessary for the year ended 31 December 2018.
Therefore, the audit opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements for the
year ended 31 December 2018 was qualified accordingly. The details were set
out set out in the section “Basis for Qualified Opinion- Corresponding figures”
of the qualified opinion.

The Board and the audit committee of the Company concur with the view as
stated in the modification opinion and consider that it will not have any impact
on the Group’s financial position as at 31 December 2019 and the Group's
performance and cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2019. The
modification opinion is only related to the comparability and corresponding
figures and hence, no further action is considered necessary.

Disposal of Million Federal

On 16 July 2018, Co-Prosperity Investment (International) Limited, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to dispose 60% of the entire issued share capital of Million
Federal International Limited (“Million Federal”) and its subsidiaries at the
consideration of approximately RMB87.8 million (equivalent to HK$100
million). Sincere Securities Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Million
Federal International Limited, is licensed to carry out type 1 (dealing in
securities), type 4 (advising on securities) and type 9 (asset management)
regulated activities. The transaction has not been completed up to the date of
this report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain related party transactions as disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements also constituted connected transaction within the
meaning of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”).
Details of such transactions have been disclosed in compliance with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
and summarised below:

The Loan under the Loan Agreement

On 28 January 2019, the Company, as the borrower, entered into a loan
agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) with Tse's Finance Limited (the “Lender”),
pursuant to which the Lender agreed to provide to the Borrower a term loan of
HK$50,000,000, at an interest rate of 2.5% per month for a term of 2 months.
Pursuant to the Loan Agreement, the Company shall repay the principal
amount of the Loan in full on the maturity date of the Loan and the interest
paid in advance on the drawdown date.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

The substantial shareholders of the lender and its associates, are also the
substantial shareholder of Million Federal, holding approximately 32.87%
of the total issued share capital of Million Federal. Million Federal is not a
connected subsidiary as defined under Rule 14A.16 of the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the lender is connected person at subsidiary level of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Please refer to “Litigation relating to
the Loan Agreement” for details.

Connected transaction in relation to Subscription of
Convertible Bonds under Specific Mandate - Phase 1
Completion and Phase 2 Completion

Subscription of convertible bonds under specific mandate
On 24 September 2019, the Company entered into a subscription agreement
(as amended and supplemented by letters of confirmation dated 7 November
2019 and 26 February 2020) (collectively, the “Subscription Agreements”)
with Mr. Deng Junjie, the co-chairman, an executive Director and a substantial
shareholder of the Company (the “Subscriber”). Pursuant to the Subscription
Agreements, the Subscriber has conditionally agreed to subscribe for and
the Company has conditionally agreed to issue the convertible bonds in two
phases in an aggregate principal amount of HK$400,000,000 at the conversion
price of HK$0.1 per conversion share. Assuming all the conversion shares
are converted in full at the initial conversion price of HK$0.1 per conversion
share, an aggregate of 4,000,000,000 conversion shares will be issued, the
completion took place in two phases (the “Phase 1 Completion” and the
“Phase 2 Completion”).

The net proceeds from the Phase 1 Completion of approximately HK$199
million. The Subscriber is the co-chairman, an executive Director and a
substantial shareholder of the Company who is beneficially interested in
1,556,010,000 Shares, representing approximately 20.95% of the total issued
share capital of the Company. The Subscriber is therefore a connected person
of the Company and the Subscription Agreements constitutes a connected
transaction of the Company and is subject to the reporting, announcement,
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

EMPLOYMENT
As at 31 December 2019, the Group had about 436 employees (2018: 632
employees) in Hong Kong and in the PRC.

Remuneration packages for the employees were maintained at a competitive
level of the jurisdiction within which the employees were employed to attract,

retain and motivate the employees and were reviewed periodically.

In addition, during the year, the Group maintained a share option scheme for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to the eligible participants for
their contributions to the Group. The share option scheme was adopted at the
annual general meeting of the Company on 15 June 2016.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES
ESCEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Deng Junjie, aged 49, is currently the Co-Chairman of the board of
directors (the “Directors” and the “Board” respectively) and an executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Deng joined the Group in June 2018. He is
also the chairman of the board of directors of Honghu Capital Co. Ltd., a
substantial shareholder of the Company, a chairman of a number of companies
in the PRC and the director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He was
also the chairman, an executive director and the chairman of the nomination
committee of China Water Industry Group Limited (stock code: 1129), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from 21 April 2017
to 4 September 2018. He possesses over 25 years of experiences in industrial
sector, involving real estates, environmental protection, culture, aviation and
other fields. He specialises in the formulation and development of corporate
strategic planning, corporate management and daily operations. Furthermore,
with over 15 years of experiences in financial investment and capital operation,
Mr. Deng is well versed with the financial markets and capital markets
domestically and overseas, in addition to relevant laws and regulations. He has
a keen insight and judgment on markets and comparatively strong risk control
capability that enable him to seize investment and profit opportunities by
taking the lead in several mergers, acquisitions and restructuring projects in the
PRC and abroad. Mr. Deng Rongjie, the director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company, who is the brother of Mr. Deng.

Mr. Leong Wei Ping, aged 43, is currently an executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Leong joined the Group in January 2020. He holds a Bachelor
Degree of Commerce in Accounting and Finance from Curtin University of
Technology, Perth, Australia, and a Master Degree of Commerce in Accounting
and Finance, from Macquarie University, Sydney, Australia. As advised
by Mr. Leong, he started his professional career with various established
professional firms including Big Four accounting firms, KPMG. During his
tenure with these professional firms, he specialised in statutory and internal
auditing, advisory works including initial and secondary offering, domestic
and cross-border mergers and acquisitions. In addition, he regularly advised
the board of directors with respect to their fiduciary responsibilities and
corporate governance matters and he is able to contribute his corporate
expertise to the board towards continuous improvement. Mr. Leong also
has extensive experience in international business operations, particularly in
emerging markets, and a demonstrated capability in strategic planning and

organizational development.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (CONTINUED)

Mr. Chan Wai Kit, aged 37, is currently an executive Director of the Company.
He joined the Group on 27 November 2018. He holds a Bachelor Degree in
Information Systems and a Master Degree of Accounting from Curtin University
of Technology, Australia. He has been appointed as a committee member
of the 9th Committee of Maoming City of The Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference since January 2017. He has extensive experience in
information technology, accounting, finance, corporate governance, strategic
planning, as well as merger and acquisition. He is also a non-executive director
of Evershine Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 8022), a company listed
on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM") of the Stock Exchange. He has
been appointed as an executive director of Yong Tai Berhad (Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad, stock code: 7066) with effect from 25 November 2019. Mr.
Chan was an executive director of Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited (stock
code: 8148), a company listed on the GEM of Stock Exchange from October
2014 to November 2018. He was the chairman and executive director of PPS
International (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 8201), a company listed on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange from June 2015 to July 2016. He was also an
executive director of Green Energy Group Limited (stock code: 979), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange from February 2017 to July
2017. He was also an executive director of Elegance Optical International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 907), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange from May 2017 to April 2018. He was also an independent
non-executive director of Huiyin Holdings Group Limited (stock code: 1178), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange from December 2017
to October 2018. He was also an independent non-executive director of Ding
He Mining Holdings Limited (stock code: 705), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange from January 2018 to July 2018.

Mr. Sze Siu Bun, aged 52, is currently an executive Director of the Company.
He has about 22 years’ experience in printing and dyeing industry. He has
joined the Group since 2005. He is involved in the overall management of the
Group and is responsible for overseeing daily management of the Group.

Ms. Sun Tingting, aged 30, is currently an executive Director of the Company.
She joined the Group in June 2019. She is the executive associate Dean
of Beijing Institute of Applied Technology. She holds a Bachelor Degree in
Business Administration from Beijing University of Applied Technology. As
advised by Ms. Sun, she has extensive experience and networking resources in
finance, corporate governance, strategic planning and education.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (CONTINUED)
EEZRER)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dato’ Sri Lai Chai Suang, aged 50, is currently the Co-Chairman of the
Board and a non-executive Director of the Company. She joined the Group
in December 2019. She holds a Honorary Doctorate Degree of Humanities
from Southwest State University, Russia. As advised by Dr. Lai, she is the
founder of Mon Space (London) Limited in the United Kingdom, currently the
group’s chief executive officer and responsible for managing daily operations
of the group. She is also a board member of Mon Space Net Inc., a company
incorporated in Malaysia and listed on the OTC market of the United States
(OTC Stock Code: MSNI). As advised by Dr. Lai, her entrepreneurial projects
started in the trading industry and then expanded to telecommunications, food
and beverage and real estate across Asia. Subsequently, Mon Space (London)
Limited has recently penetrated into digital & consumer electronics, including
online shopping platforms with the concepts of health and beauty. As an
outstanding entrepreneur, Dr. Lai has been active in leading women'’s roles
and is known in Malaysia for her strong acumen in business and inspirational
speech.

Mr. Andy Yong Kim Seng, aged 48, is currently a non-executive Director of the
Company. He joined the Group in February 2020. He holds a Bachelor degree
of Laws from Bond University, Australia. As advised by Mr. Yong, he is an
advocate and solicitor and member of the Malaysian Bar and he is currently the
lawyer and managing partner at Messrs NS Leong, Low & Andy in Malaysia. Mr.
Yong has more than eighteen years of experience in the litigation covering a
wide spectrum of civil cases and criminal cases.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Han Xingxing, aged 38, is currently an independent non-executive Director
of the Company, the chairman of the nomination committee of the Company
(the “Nomination Committee”) and a member of the audit committee (the
“Audit Committee”) and the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) of the Company. Ms. Han joined the Group in September 2015.
Ms. Han holds a bachelor degree of Information Warfare Technology from
Northwestern Polytechnical University. Ms. Han has over ten years senior
management experience in the field of information technology development
and investment. Ms. Han has been the general manager of Qianhai Honghu
Tairui Technology (Shenzhen) Company Limited (Al /5 % 45 2= 35 B & CEYI)
B BR A A]) since August 2014. She was the vice-president of Shenzhen Bio
Technology Trading Company Limited (RYITH B A AR E 5B A 7)) between
September 2012 and July 2014.

FHMITES

Dato’ Sri Lai Chai SuangE&BHTEB T EFE L -
50p% C MARARBIZHMEEFRIFNITES - 18
IR NAEFE+_ANALEE - FIHEHRE
HEAAMRKBANBREEBE TS0 - BRIELE
A R KEBEMon Space (London) Limited#) £l ##
A RAEZEENTHRAHTEREEEZEEMNAE
HEIE o T EMon Space Net Inc. IEEEKE -
—RESRAEFMEEERHOTCTHIH LR
Al (OTCREZAME : MSNI) » IBFEELmA - B84
BEANBESHFXRR  BAHHEBATHESRE
¥ BEHRENURBEBEDMNNEHES  HZ - Mon
Space (London) Limitedth i E T B R EFHE
E¥ HPeEUEREZERMaNE BT
B ER—IBENDER - —HUKR  BiELE
BE D BERE LM AG @ W IARRI A R RS A
KOs A O R R B S AR AR R o

Mr. Andy Yong Kim Seng#5$s 54~ » 485% @ B
RARNRZENTEE - FRZZ_FTF_AMNMA
REE - BIFERMNBERBHEEE L2 o
BIRZ B - RS KA DEMBE M 5ER
MEkEE I H B AR SRR REIGEAMEHFAT
MEMANTEEA - BEEEFRATEEGBR
TNFEHEER  PREEEZORERGERMEER
o

BYFHITES

BEENTL 385 RABARAZEIYIFHTE
= ARAREZBR((REZEEDEFUARAE
RABRZEG([ERZBER ) RARAFHES
B([HFHEEE D ZKE - BLIR_FT—HFN
HIMARLE - BLELHAERILTERBESHR
RITB LB - BLIHEER TFEZEERMER
REEEHNERERLR BRIt T —HNF
NAREESBERHERE RN GR AR 24
BE - FR_F-——_FNAAE_ZT-WFLHBE
RINTREREREZER AT ZEBE -

22 ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGS LIMITED | ZE il E B = R 5 R 2 &



DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (CONTINUED)

Mr. Li Yu, aged 47, is currently an independent non-executive Director, the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee and the Audit Committee. Mr. Li obtained a Master in Business
Administration from Asia Metropolitan University. Mr. Li had been working as
a journalist and editor in various multi-media institutions and companies. From
2007 to 2012, Mr. Li served as the deputy general manager in Guangzhou Jiadi
Culture Communication Co., Ltd (BM{EH X(LEREF R A A]). Subsequently,
Mr. Li focused on participating in social cultural development and investment
management business. Mr. Li has extensive experience in corporate culture
development, brand promotion as well as corporate sales and marketing
management.

Ms. Wong Chi Yan, aged 38, is currently an independent non-executive
Director, the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee. Ms. Wong joined the
Group in January 2019. Ms. Wong holds a Bachelor of Business Administration
degree in Accounting awarded by Hong Kong Baptist University and a
Master of Laws in International Corporate and Financial Law awarded by
The University of Wolverhampton, the United Kingdom. She is an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. Ms. Wong has
extensive experiences in auditing, accounting and financing as well as merger
and acquisition. Ms. Wong is currently an independent non-executive director
of each of Success Dragon International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1182),
Bay Area Gold Group Limited (formerly known as Munsun Capital Group
Limited) (Stock Code: 1194), and Huiyin Holdings Group Limited (stock code:
1178), companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Ms. Wong
is also the company secretary and authorised representative of each of Flyke
International Holdings Ltd. (stock code: 1998) and China Properties Investment
Holdings Limited (stock code: 736), companies listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. Ms. Wong was an executive director and authorised
representative of Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited (stock code:
907) from February 2017 to October 2018, a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. She was also an executive director of Century Group
International Holdings Limited (formerly known as CHerish Holdings Limited)
(stock code: 2113) from October 2017 to June 2018, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. She was an independent non-executive
director of Ding He Mining Holdings Limited (stock code: 705) from January
2018 to July 2018, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
She was an independent non-executive director of Tech Pro Technology
Development Limited (stock code: 3823) from March 2017 to February 2019, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. She was an executive
director and authorised representative of Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited
(stock code: 8148) from May 2015 to October 2017, she was also an executive
director, company secretary and authorised representative of PPS International
(Holdings) Limited (stock code: 8201) from June 2015 to July 2016, both
companies listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange. She was also the company
secretary of Goldway Education Group Limited (stock code: 8160), a company
listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange from October 2018 to May 2019.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (CONTINUED)
EEZRER)

Mr. Lee Cheung Yuet Horace, aged 38, is currently an independent non-
executive Director, a member of the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Lee joined the Group in
February 2020. He obtained a Bachelor Degree of Commerce (Accounting)
from The University of Queensland, Australia in 2004. Mr. Lee has been a
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since 2009 and
became a fellow member since 2014. Mr. Lee has over 15 years of experience
in financial reporting, investment analysis, merge and acquisition exercises and
business development. Mr. Lee has been taking up various senior positions in
the financial and business sectors for over 9 years and he also has extensive
experience in terms of Hong Kong listed companies. Mr. Lee is currently an
independent non-executive director of Hybrid Kinetic Group Limited (stock
code: 1188) and an independent non-executive director of Chuan Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1420), which both companies’ shares are listed on the
Main board of the Stock Exchange and was an executive director of Aurum
Pacific (China) Group Limited (stock code: 8148), from February 2018 to April
2019, a company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors are pleased to present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its subsidiaries are set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements. Further discussion of these activities as required by Schedule
5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a description of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and an indication of likely
future development in the Group'’s business, can be found in the Management
Discussion and Analysis set out in pages 7 to 19 of this annual report. This
discussion forms part of this Report of the Directors.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in pages 85 to 86 of this
annual report.

No interim dividend was paid during the year (2018: Nil) and the Directors do
not recommend a payment of final dividend for the year (2018: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS AND
CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Details of movements in the Company’s convertible bonds, share capital
and share options and during the year are set out in notes 32, 34 and 35
respectively to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of other equity-linked agreements are included in the section “Share
Option Scheme” contained in this Report of the Directors.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the Company does not have reserve available for
distribution. Under the Company Law of the Cayman Islands, the Company
may make distributions to its members out of the share premium in certain
circumstances subject to the provisions of the articles of association of the
Company (“Articles of Association”).

EFEHRE

EEMAREEFEREULRAR R RAEEERE
“E-NFT ATt HIEFEZREREAY
TR -

TEXBRRBERE
RRBBREZERRT - HMBARZ EBEXBEH
RER A B MR M EE40 - RIBEE R BGBPIRS
REHNE RS 2 E—Tilin  BREAEERYHHN
= 23 R T B B SR e st A e AR SR B XA AR E
AREAMARRERNER - AI2HAFRETZ19
B8z EEENWENN - BRI mERAES
GdwE 28D -

RER DK
ARERASTE 2 $HHARAFRESSEBCH 24
AEBREM2ERSE -

FRAELBREPHRS(ZZ-N\F : &) MESE
BEAFENRERPARE(ZE-NF : &) -

BRA - BIRER TTRRES

RArZ Al ES RARBREZ BEEED
RIE R 4R & BTSRRI 5E32 « 34 /%35 ©

Hip iR A B 1hE 2 A B NN ABEEERE [
Bt nt &) | —5f -

A2 ki
R-B-NET=A=+—0  ARFARETERS
R - REMSRBATE - ARATEART
EHERAR((EMERAA ) ZRET  RET
35 B BR 19 2 (B TR ER A S ©

Annual Report | 32019 25



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EFEREHE)

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH BAVEFABRRZUHBEE
PROFIT OR LOSS

Listed securities held for trading, at fair value BEEE 2 EHRH(RAFE)

As at 31 December 2019, the Group held listed securities held for tradingat RZ-ZZ—AE+-_A=+—8 XAEEHHFKRA
fair value through profit or loss of approximately RMB31,361,000, particulars ~ F{EGF ABFZE HEEE 2 FTEFOARE
of which are set out below: 31,361,0007T * BEAFIBERHINAT :

Unrealised gain/
(loss) on change
No of shares held % of in fair value for

by the Group as share capital Market value the year ended % of

at 31 December owned by the Investment  at 31 December 31 December the Group's
Name of Securities 2019 Group cost 2019 2019 total assets
HE-E-NF
-] R=2-1% +ZAZt+-HL
R=B-0% t=4 FENRER
tZA=1-H AEEEEN =r=F NPERE  (AREALE
FENRG#HA RAADH REHA e Wit/ (E58) BAl
(Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 1)
(fit1) (1 1)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ANRETT NEETT AEBTT

7 Hong Kong Finance Investment Holding Group Limited 16,000,000 0.40% 13,271 11,584 @2.117) 1.14%
B HRARREEERAR

286 Aidigong Maternal & Child Health Limited 26,902,000 0.70% 19,895 13,225 (2,135) 1.31%
EFEURERROARAR

Other listed securities held for trading, at fair value 6,552 0.65%
HEbEEE 2 s (RATE:T)

Total 31,361 3.10%
st

Notes: Bt -

1. The investment cost, market value as at 31 December 2019, unrealized gain/(loss) 1. LERORERAKR R-ZT—-AE+-_A=+—HBH

on change in fair value and the percentage of the Group's total assets in the the HE - RERATEESHWZ (BE)RIERER
above table have been subject to rounding adjustments. Accordingly figures shown HMEEBDHBHEEMBERARE - Bt RER
as totals may not be an arithmetic aggregation of the figures preceding them. BFHIEZ SR TR RBCF R E MR o

2. The market value of each financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in others 2. HEME AP SEZ AT HETABXE HBKEE
investments as at 31 December 2019 are less than RMB3,000,000. R-ZE—hhE+_A=Z+—HHWELIRARE
3,000,0007T °
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Movie investments, at fair value

EFEHRE)

EXRE(RDFEE)

% of the
Group's total

Fair value at assets as at

Investment 31 December 31 December
costs 2019
XK
R=F-h%
+=A=+-A
RERA ZDVE ZHBEEZESL
RMB$000 RMB$000
ARKEFT ARE T
Movie investments at fair value EXRE(RATER) 82,667 60,332 5.95%
Notes: Hiat -
1 Movie Investment Agreement | 1 BYRE M —
On 11 April 2019, the Company entered into a movie investment agreement R-BE—NENA+—H AAGHEEZLER
(the “Movie Investment Agreement |”) with Filmko Pictures Limited (“Filmko Q\ET([EE%%;%J)g]'jf@?.g%;}xﬁﬁgm(]"TE’
Pictures”), pursuant to which Filmko Pictures has conditionally agreed to sell and Epzm—) Bt BT EEKERE tlj’iﬁ'ﬁzlx
the Company has conditionally agreed to acquire the right to share 15% of the NAEREREWES ZEZ (LR BT
net distribution revenue of the movie “Double World (fiEi&) ” (the “Acquisition 15% 2 BN ([ Ui E1E— ) - E@;@@gﬁﬁ%%
1), was satisfied by the allotment and issue of a total of 270,000,000 new Shares (RERE A )RR R E1TA $£270,000,0000% 37 I%
(the “Consideration Shares |”) to Filmko Pictures (or its nominee(s)). On 26 April BRERBRG— DERM - R=T—AEmMA = +5
2019, the Consideration Shares | were allotted and issued to Filmko Pictures (or B REBRM—BERAAGBER=Z—\FEXA
its nominees) at the issue price of HK$0.25 per Share under the general mandate —HETHNREAFAS LB FESH—RIZE
granted by the shareholders of the Company to the Directors at the annual general ([ZE— N\E—REE ) IR T EESREM0.25%
meeting held on 1 June 2018 (the “2018 General Mandate”) and the Acquisition | THEME % (RERB A)RBERET  MkES
was completed on 26 April 2019. H—BER-_Z—NAEMNB =+ B -
The total income from the movie income right will be received after the first SEENNE Y BRASR S E B AR - B
release date of the movie. The first release date has not been fixed to the date of MABEAAGESENAET - ZEHRER=-Z
this report. The fair values of the investments as at 31 December 2019 have been —NWE+-—A=+—HBZAFEHIINEHEER
determined by external valuation experts based on the best estimation on the BIERERZES S EA AR Y SEGHER
expected future revenue generated by the films less relevant costs. HERAMETE -
2 Movie Investment Agreement |l 2 E-Za -yt .
On 14 May 2019, the Company entered into a movie investment agreement (the R-ZE—NERB+MA @ AAREEMSELTY

“Movie Investment Agreement II”) with Filmko Pictures, pursuant to which Filmko
Pictures has conditionally agreed to sell and the Company has conditionally agreed
to acquire the right to share 10% of the net distribution revenue of the movie
“Little Q </hQ) ", (the "Acquisition 1I"), was satisfied by the allotment and issue
of a total of 100,000,000 new Shares (the “Consideration Shares II”) pursuant to
the Movie Investment Agreement Il to Filmko Pictures (or its nominee(s)). On 22
May 2019, the Consideration Shares Il were allotted and issued to Filmko Pictures
(or its nominees) at the issue price of HK$0.25 per Share under the 2018 General
Mandate and the Acquisition Il was completed on 22 May 2019.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, Filmko Pictures acknowledged that the
Group could receive approximately RMB840,000 from the investment. The income
was already settled.

—HERRERE(EXRERE=]) Bt 2
EREGBKHERELEMARAAKGRERES
ZEZCPQ) BT FEMI0% 2 #F ([ W EE
FE_]) CEBREBEEYREABE _-_NEMTE
(&Eﬁ%/\)m%’f&%ﬂm/\moooooooﬂx%ﬁﬂx
(Hﬂ“ﬂﬂ‘—n Bt e RZF—NERA=+=

RERO BB N\F—RREIEETE
tﬁxﬁxf 0258 TR EMFE(KERBA)RER

BT MEBERER_ER-_FE-AFEA=-+=H
TTAX
RBE—Z-NAFT-_A=+-RHLFE EG¥

%EEWZK%I‘Jfﬁészlﬁ}xéuﬁzﬁxiw\&%sztoooo
T o ARRAKLE A -
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
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Details of the Movie Investment Agreement | and Movie Investment Agreement
Il ' were set out in notes 26 to the financial statements, the Company’s
announcements dated 11 April 2019, 26 April 2019, 14 May 2019 and 22 May
2019. The Movie Investment Agreement | and Movie Investment Agreement ||
were completed on 26 April 2019 and 22 May 2019 respectively.

Investment strategy

The Group will adopt preservation strategies to meet the challenges posted
by the market to improve the performance and maximize the returns of
shareholders as a whole.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers were less
than 30% of the Group's total turnover.

Aggregate purchases attributable to the Group'’s five largest suppliers were less
than 50% of the Group's total purchases.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
five financial years is set out in page 248 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Deng Jun Jie (Co-Chairman)
Mr. Leong Wei Ping ZREEFF S 4 *
(appointed on 23 January 2020)
Mr. Chan Wai Kit
Mr. Sze Siu Bun
Ms. Sun Tingting (appointed on 21 June 2019,
retired on 27 June 2019 and
re-appointed on 28 June 2019)
Mr. Lin Wan Qiang
(appointed on 21 June 2019, retired on 27 June 2019,
re-appointed on 28 June 2019 and resigned on 30 October 2019)

Mr. Law Kin Fat (resigned on 13 February 2019)
Mr. Wang lia Si (Chief Executive Officer)
(resigned on 23 January 2020)

* for identification only
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Non-executive Directors:

Dato’ Sri Lai Chai Suang & HT BB Z1E L * (Co-Chairman)
(appointed on 20 December 2019)

Mr. Andy Yong Kim Seng #5888 5E £ * (appointed on 28 February 2020)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Ms. Han Xingxing

Mr. Li Yu

Ms. Wong Chi Yan (appointed on 31 January 2019)

Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam (resigned on 31 January 2019)

Mr. Lee Cheung Yuet Horace (appointed on 28 February 2020)

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Articles of Association.

As at the date of this annual report, Ms. Sun Tingting, Dato’ Sri Lai Chai Suang
SEHBRYEL*, Mr. Leong Wei Ping ZEEIFSLAE*, Mr. Andy Yong Kim
Seng 1588AJE £ * and Mr. Lee Cheung Yuet Horace who were appointed as
Director of the Company on 28 June 2019, 20 December 2019, 23 January
2020 and 28 February 2020 respectively, shall retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting in accordance with Article 86(3) of the Articles of Association,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election of the forthcoming annual
general meeting. In addition, in accordance with Article 87(1) and (2) of the
Articles of Association, Ms. Han Xingxing and Mr. Li Yu will also retire from
the Board at the forthcoming annual general meeting, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

None of the Directors has entered or has proposed to enter into any service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
by the employing company within one year without payment of compensation
other than statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the period under review.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 20 to 24 of this

annual report.
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EFEREHE)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of the Directors
or chief executives of the Company or their associates had any interests and/
or short positions in any shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong (the
"SFO")) as recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules, were as follows:

EEREBTRAE ZES
RZB-AF+_A=+—8 ' REARFZREE
AEPIESTBRE S MBIGD(TE5 RS ]
FE352EREMFE < B MATEE - HBE LT
HRAPEE P82 L ETAESTETERRIH
RAEST A (TRESFRI ) MAME AR B R R AT Z
BE  ARREFHRSTHABRKEHBEA
TRAR R R EAREEE (R EF R EEPIFEXV
A2 B ) MER M - BERO RERETHES
ERERE AR - TR :

Approximate
percentage of
the issued share

capital of the

Company as a
31 December 2019

(%)
HARQF]
Capacity in which Total Interests held R=-T—hE
the Interests (Note 1) +=—BA=+—H
Name of Director are held Nature of Interest iz @S BRITRAZ
EEoHE BEEZZSH EaME (Kizt1) BAE D (%)
Deng Jun Jie Beneficial owner Ordinary shares of 20,622,000 (L) 0.28
HK$0.10 each
BER EREAA FREEO0. 10/ T2 LBk
Beneficial owner Underlying interest (Note 3) 4,000,000,000 (L) 53.87
E=mEB A MERAE R (A AE3)
Interest of Controlled  Ordinary shares of 1,535,388,000 (L) 20.68
Corporation HK$0.10 each
RS EEER BIREE0. 1048 2 LBk
Notes: Bitat -
1. The letters “L” and “S” denote long position and short position in the shares of the 1. [LIR [SIFHRIRERARRRMN 2 78 RAE -

Company respectively.
2. Honghu Capital is wholly-owned and beneficially owned by Mr. Deng Jun Jie.

3. Mr. Deng Jun Jie has (i) an interest in the long position of 2,000,000,000 shares
underlying the 6% convertible bond due 2022 in the principal amount of
HK$200,000,000 issued by the Company on 17 December 2019; and (ii) an interest
in the long position of 2,000,000,000 shares underlying the 6% convertible bond in
the principal amount of HK$200,000,000 pursuant to the subscription agreement
dated 24 September 2019.

2. BBAFABERNEEZARRES -

3. BMEANEA()R2,000,000,000 % B 15 4F & R A HE

X RERHEAQRAR-_ZT—HAE+=_A+tA
BTz R T F B BN £ 54200,000,0007 7T
#6% SE AR ESHATE « RIIVRBR_-Z—NEF
NAZ+THAMRERZ - 52,000,000,0008% %%
R EER - ZERHEARSTE /200,000,000
HBITE6% B B AR ES AR -
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DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER'S
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance, to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a director or a controlling shareholder of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted as at
the end of the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Company has taken out appropriate insurance coverage for the Directors
and officers for protection against potential legal actions. The Board shall
review the insurance policy every year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the directors have an interest in any business constituting a competing
business to the Group.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the current independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation in respect of his/her independence
during the year pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. All the current
independent non-executive Directors have confirmed that they have been and
are independent since their appointment and as of the date of this annual
report.
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EFEREHE)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERR

As at 31 December 2019, to the best knowledge of the Company, the RZ-ZT—hAE+-_A=+—8 ' BFARATFFE K
following persons (other than Directors or chief executives of the Company) TALZ(ARABEFHZFSTHAERIN) RAA A
had, or were deemed or taken to have interests and/or short positions in the  EJIR D SKABRANR (5 R A S B B s EE B 17
shares or underlying shares of the Company, which would be required to be  Z5 & sk 2 MEIRIE B4 RE S EH EXVEFSE2
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions 3% #B 2 {3 [A) 2 A &) 5 Bt 2 B 4% 32 sk 4% K A &)
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or as recorded in the register required  1BIRE % & A (& HIE 3366 AEE 2 B2k
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

Approximate
percentage of
the issued share

capital of the
Company as a
31 December 2019

(%)
LN
Capacity in which Total Interests held RoB-—n&E
Name of substantial the Interests (Note 1) T=HEr=
shareholder are held Nature of Interest i=d Y £ BRTREZ
TERRZHE /AR FREERZE5H BHME (Fizt1) BHED (%)
Deng Jun lie Beneficial Owner Ordinary shares of 20,622,000 (L) 0.28
HK$0.10 each
BER BEaHAA BREE.10B T2 Ll
Interest of Controlled Ordinary shares of 1,535,388,000 (L) 20.68
Corporation HK$0.10 each
REHEEER BRREE. 108 T2 SRk
Beneficial owner Underlying interest (Note 2) 4,000,000,000 (L) 53.87
BRABA e (Hit2)
Honghu Capital Beneficial Owner Ordinary shares of 1,535,388,000 (L) 20.68
(Note 3) HK$0.10 each
BRER(HE3) EREBA FREE. 105 TRK
KKC Capital Limited Investment Manager Ordinary shares of 405,058,000 5.45
(Note 4) HK$0.10 each
KKC Capital Limited BAEE FREE.I0B Ly TREK
(Hiit4)
KKC Capital SPC - KKC Capital Beneficial Owner Ordinary shares of 405,058,000 5.45
High Growth Fund Segregated HK$0.10 each
Portfolio ("KKC Capital SPC")
KKC Capital SPC - KKC Capital EnEAA SRAEME.105 T2 TiEk

High Growth Fund Segregated
Portfolio ([KKC Capital SPCJ)
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Notes:

1. The letters “L” and “S" denote long position and short position in the shares of the
Company respectively.

2. Mr. Deng Jun Jie has (i) an interest in the long position of 2,000,000,000 shares
underlying the 6% convertible bond due 2022 in the principal amount of
HK$200,000,000 issued by the Company on 17 December 2019; and (ii) an interest
in the long position of 2,000,000,000 shares underlying the 6% convertible
bond in the principal amount of HK$200,000,000 pursuant to the subscription
agreement dated 24 September 2019.

3. Honghu Capital is wholly-owned and beneficially owned by Mr. Deng Jun Jie.

4. KKC Capital Limited is the investment manager of KKC Capital SPC and was
therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares in which KKC Capital SPC has
invested.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
on 15 June 2016. The Share Option Scheme became valid and effective for
a period of 10 years commencing from 15 June 2016. There was no change
in any terms of the Share Option Scheme. No share options were granted,
cancelled or lapsed during the year, and no outstanding share options during
the year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section “Share Option Scheme”, at no time during
the year was the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or the chief executives
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate, and neither the
Directors nor the chief executives, nor any of their spouses or children under
the age of 18, had any rights to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or
any had exercised any such right.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Details of Directors’ emoluments on a named basis are set out in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Remuneration for each of the Directors are determined based on, among
others, emoluments paid by comparable companies, his/her time of
commitment and responsibilities towards the Company and whether the
remuneration package is competitively attractive to retain him/her as director.

There were no compensation paid during the financial year or receivable by
Directors or past Directors for the loss of office as a director of any member of
the Group or of any other office in connection with the management of the
affairs of any member of the Group distinguishing between contractual and
other payments.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group's qualifying employees in Hong Kong participate in the Mandatory
Provident Fund (the “MPF") in Hong Kong.

The assets of the MPF are held separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of trustee. The Group and each of the employees make
monthly mandatory contributions to the MPF schemes.

The employees of the PRC subsidiaries are members of the state-managed
retirement benefits scheme operated by the PRC government. The PRC
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to
the retirement benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, to the best knowledge of the Directors and based
on the information publicly available to the Company, there is a sufficient
public float as required by the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the reporting period ended 31 December 2019, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, redeemed or sold any of the
Company’s listed securities.
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UPDATE ON DIRECTORS’' INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in information of
Directors are set out below:

1. Mr. Chan Wai Kit has been appointed as an executive director of Yong
Tai Berhad (Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, stock code: 7066) with
effect from 25 November 2019.

2. Dato’ Sri Lai Chai Suang &£ EE 1+ * has been appointed as
a non-executive Director and the Co-Chairman of the Company with
effect from 20 December 2019.

3. Mr. Leong Wei Ping has been appointed as an executive Director with
effect from 23 January 2020.

4. Mr. Andy Yong Kim Seng %58#5 %&£ * has been appointed as a non-
executive Director with effect from 28 February 2020.

5. Mr. Lee Cheung Yuet Horace has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director, a member of each of the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the
Company, in each case, with effect from 28 February 2020.

Save for the above, there is no other change in information of the Directors as
at the date of this annual report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions are set out in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements. Other than the Loan under the Loan Agreement and
Convertible Bonds under Specific Mandate — Phase 1 Completion and Phase
in the section

2 Completion as disclosed under “Connected Transactions”

“Management Discussion and Analysis”, the Group did not have other
transactions constitutes connected or continuing connected transactions of
the Company which are not exempt from the reporting, announcement and

independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

*  For identification purpose only
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EFEHE(R)

DIVIDEND POLICY
1. Objective
1.1 The objective of the Company’s dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”) is to allow Shareholders to participate in the Company’s
profits whilst retaining adequate reserves for the Group’s future
growth.

2. Factors to be considered
2.1 The Board has the discretion to declare and distribute dividends
to the Shareholders, subject to the Articles of Association and all
applicable laws and regulations and the factors set out below.

(i) The Board shall consider the following factors of the Group
before declaring or recommending dividends:

R E R
1. BH®W

1.1 AREAREEHER(REBK])MWEZ
ERERRSLERRBNNE - BAER
REEHARFIERE HE AN

2. ZEMEZR

21 REASEEMARABEERERZR
ERETIREE  EFgrEBERRK
RERRIRERS,

(i)

B RIERRELS A
EEBAREBERNATREE

. the Group’s results of operations and cash flows; REBNKEEEMR
il
. the Group’s future prospects; REEHRKAR
. general business conditions; —RREBFMR
. the Group’s capital requirements and surplus; AEBHNERERMA
£
. contractual restrictions on the payment of dividends AR A [ B B Sk T B A 7
by the Company to its Shareholders or by subsidiaries MARAR MR EMNELD
to the Company; PRI
. taxation considerations; MIEER
. possible effects on the Company’s creditworthiness; AR H AR NEEEE
7%
. statutory and regulatory restrictions; and SEEFNESE R HI ¢ AN
. any other factors the Board may deem relevant. EEEr AR /BT
I EMEE -

(i) Depending on the financial conditions of the Group and the (i) IBBEAEEOE RN M g
conditions and factors as set out above, dividends may be HREAX ZEBFSAEMBFE
proposed and/or declared by the Board for a financial year SRS R R ERRE
or period:

. interim dividend; . FRHARRE.
. final dividend; . REARR S
. special dividend; and o HRIRE A
. any distribution of net profits that the Board may e EEXEFFHRKRA/BEEMNE
deem appropriate. AFFE DA ©
3. Review of the Dividend Policy 3. REBEz®
3.1 The Board will review the Dividend Policy as appropriate from time 31 EXSREATERNBIAREECER -
to time.
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DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend a payment of final dividend for the year (2018:
Nil).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members will be closed from Wednesday, 24 June 2020 to
Tuesday, 30 June 2020 (both days inclusive), during which period no transfer
of shares can be registered. In order to qualify for attending and voting at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, all transfers accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Investor Services Limited, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 23 June
2020. Tricor Investor Services Limited is located at Level 54, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association
although there are no restrictions against such rights under company laws in
the Cayman Islands.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of Company’s corporate governance policies and practices are set out in
the section “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 39 to 50 of this annual
report.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Details of the Company’s environmental policy and performance are set out in
the section “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages 54 to 78
of this annual report.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

The forthcoming financial year is expected to be challenging due to the
outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (the “COVID-19 outbreak”). The
Group is not yet able to quantify the aforesaid influence due to the COVID-19
outbreak. However, the Group will pay close attention to the development of
the COVID-19 outbreak and its impact and will continue to perform relevant
assessments and take proactive measures as appropriate.

Up to the date of this announcement, the Company received HK$110,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB98,318,000) from Mr. Deng for the Phase
Il convertible bonds. The remaining consideration would be settled by on or
before 1 June 2020 pursuant to the letter of confirmation signed on 4 May
2020. Phase Il convertible bonds will be issued upon the consideration is fully
settled.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established by the Board with written terms of
reference which are consistent with the provisions set out in the relevant
section of the CG Code.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Audit Committee held
two meetings to consider, among other things, the financial reporting
matters. The Audit Committee is principally responsible for reviewing the
Company’s accounting principles and practices, discussing audit findings, risk
management and internal controls, and financial reporting matters with the
management of the Company. As at the date of this annual report, the Audit
Committee comprises four independent non-executive Directors, namely, Ms.
Wong Chi Yan (as chairman), Ms. Han Xingxing, Mr. Li Yu and Mr. Lee Cheung
Yuet Horace.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee is of the opinion that the preparation of such results are in
compliance with the relevant accounting standards, rules and regulations and
that adequate disclosures have been made.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in line with the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules (the “CG
Code”) and are posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange. Under its amended terms of reference dated 1 January 2019,
the Audit Committee is required, amongst other things, (1) to oversee the
relationship with the external auditors, (2) to review the Group's preliminary
results, interim results and annual financial statements, (3) to monitor the
integrity of the financial statements of the Group, (4) to review the scope,
extent and effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system, internal audit
and risk management matters, and (5) to review the Group’s financial and
accounting policies.

AUDITOR

An nomination proposal will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint Moore Stephens CPA Limited as auditor
of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Deng Jun Jie
Co-Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 6 May 2020
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company is committed to maintaining good corporate governance
standard and procedures to ensure the integrity, transparency and quality
of disclosure in the interest of its Shareholders. The corporate governance
principles of the Company emphasize a quality board, transparency and
accountability to all Shareholders.

The Directors are in the opinion that the Company has complied with the
applicable code provisions in the CG Code during the year ended 31 December
2019 except the following deviation.

In respect of code provision A.6.7 of the Corporate Governance Code, Ms.
Han Xingxing and Mr. Li Yu being independent non-executive Directors were
unable to attend the annual general meeting held on 27 June 2019 due to
other commitments. Ms. Han Xingxing, Mr. Li Yu and Ms. Wong Chi Yan, being
independent non-executive Directors were unable to attend the extraordinary
general meeting held on 29 November 2019 due to other commitments. The
Company shall continue to communicate with the Directors and make best
effort to ensure their availabilities to attend general meetings and avoid time
conflict.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company and
oversees the Group's businesses, strategic decisions and performance. The
management are delegated with the authority and responsibilities by the Board
for the day-to-day management and operations of the Group. In addition, the
Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the board committees.
Further details of these committees are set out in this report.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information in relation
to the Company as well as the advice and services of the company secretary of
the Company (the “Company Secretary”), if and when required, with a view to
ensure that the Board procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are
followed. There are established procedures for Directors to seek independent
professional advice for them to discharge their duties and responsibilities at the
Company’s expenses, where appropriate.

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties set out in the CG Code which included developing and reviewing
the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance, training
and continuous professional development of Directors, and reviewing the
Company's compliance with respect of the code provision in the CG Code and
disclosures in this report.
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ERELHSE (R

Composition

The Board currently comprises five executive Directors, two non-executive
Directors and four independent non-executive Directors from different business
and professional fields. The Directors, including independent non-executive
Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business and professional
expertise, experiences and independent judgement to the Board for its efficient
and effective delivery of the Board function.

The compositions of the Directors in office during the year and up to the date
of this annual report are set out in the “Report of the Directors” on pages 28
to 29 of this annual report.

The Board is principally responsible for formulating business strategies and
monitoring the performance of the business of the Group. The Board decides
on corporate strategies, approves overall business plans, evaluates the
Group's financial performance and management and reviews the financial
and internal control system. Other than the daily operational decisions which
are delegated to the management of the Group, most of the decisions are
taken by the Board. Specific tasks that the Board delegates to the Group's
management include the implementation of strategies approved by the
Board, the monitoring of operating budgets, the implementation of internal
control procedures and the ensuring of compliance with relevant statutory
requirements and other rules and regulations.

Co-Chairmen, Chief Executive Officer and Directors

At the date of the report, Mr. Deng Jun Jie and Dato’ Sri Lai Chai Suang &
H BB E1E L are the Co-Chairmen of the Board. During the year under
review, Mr. Wang Jia Si was the chief executive officer of the Company (the
“Chief Executive Officer”) and subsequently resigned as the Chief Executive
Officer and executive Director on 23 January 2020. The roles of the Co-
Chairmen and the Chief Executive Officer are served by different individuals
to achieve a balance of authority and power. The main responsibility of the
two Co-Chairmen are to lead the Board and manage its work to ensure that it
effectively operates and fully discharges its responsibilities. Supported by the
members of committees of the Board, the Chief Executive Officer is responsible
for the day-to-day management of the Group’s business, recommending
strategies to the Board, and determining and implementing operational
decisions.

Directors’ and Officer’s Insurance

The Company has purchased the directors’ and officers’ liability insurance for
the members of the Board for the year to provide protection against potential
claims arising from the lawful discharge of duties by the Directors.
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Non-Executive Directors

All the existing non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors were appointed for a specific term. Each of the non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors has entered into a letter
of appointment with the Company for a specific term, subject to renewal,
retirement by rotation and re-election at the general meetings of the Company
in accordance with the Articles of Association.

During the year under review, the Chairman, being an executive Director, had
held meetings with independent non-executive Directors without the presence
of other executive Directors.

Confirmation of Independence

Throughout the period and up to the date of this report, the Company
has complied with the requirements under Rules 3.10 of the Listing Rules.
It requires that at least one of the independent non-executive Directors
must have appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. The Company has received written annual
confirmation from each independent non-executive Director of their
independence pursuant to the requirements of rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. As such, all independent non-executive Directors are independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

Appointments, Re-election and Removal of Directors

Each of the executive Directors, non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors has entered into a service contract or letter of appointment
with the Company for a specific term. Such term is subject to her/his re-
appointment by the Company at an annual general meeting upon such
Director’s retirement by rotation at least once every three years and offering
herself/himself for re-election. Pursuant to the Articles of Association, any
Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until
the following general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for
re-election and any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the next annual general meeting of
the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election. Also, pursuant to the
Articles of Association, at each annual general meeting, at least one-third of
the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not three or a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation, provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

Compliance with the Model Code for Directors’ Securities
Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
its model code for securities transactions by Directors. Having made specific
enquiries, all the Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code during the period ended 31 December 2019.
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Directors’ continuous training and development

The Directors are committed to comply with the CG Code A.6.5 concerning
continuous professional development and understand the importance to
constantly enhance and refresh their knowledge and skills. In this connection,
the Directors have attended formal training seminars and/or study related
materials relevant to directors’ duties and responsibilities during the year. All
Directors have confirmed that they have met the minimum requirements under
the CG Code A.6.5 for the year ended 31 December 2019 and provided such
training record to the Company.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Details of Directors’ and the Chief Executive Officer’s remuneration are set out
in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

Accordingly to Code B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual remuneration of other
members of senior management (other than directors) by band for the year

ended 31 December 2019 is set out below:

Remuneration bands
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Number of persons

FMER A
HK$nil to HK$ 1,000,000 T8I0 1,000,000/ 7T y
HK$1,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 1,000,001 7T % 3,000,000 7T 4
BOARD COMMITTEES BEEXEE
The Board has established the following Board committees to oversee the #EEHeBL VU T EEEZECEEAEELETH

particular aspects of the Group’s affairs.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board has established an Audit Committee with written terms of reference
in compliance with, where applicable, the CG Code of the Listing Rules.
The Audit Committee currently comprises four independent non-executive
Directors and is chaired by Ms. Wong Chi Yan and with Ms. Han Xingxing,
Mr. Li Yu and Mr. Lee Cheung Yuet Horace as members. The primary duties
of the Audit Committee are, among others, to review the financial reporting
system, risk management and internal control system of the Group, to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the external auditors, to approve the remuneration and terms
of engagement of the external auditors, to review and monitor the external
auditors’ independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit
process in accordance with applicable standard, and to review the annual and
interim financial statements and accounting policies of the Group. The Audit
Committee meets at least twice a year to carry out the aforesaid primary duties.
Minutes of the meetings are kept by the Company Secretary of the Company
at the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong.
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The members of the Audit Committee during the year and their attendance
were as follows:

LRELHES (R

AN RFRAZEREZEERBEREF2HFEE

Meeting attended/
Eligible to attend

Independent Non-Executive directors EHEZEE
BYFHTES REEREEZEE
Ms. Wong Chi Yan (appointed on 31 January 2019) FERZET (R —NF—A=1+—BEZE) 2/2
Ms. Han Xingxing BEELZT 1/2
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam (resigned on 31 January 2019) SREEMEL(RZZE—hE— B =+—HET) 0/0
Mr. Li Yu EERRE 2/2

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board has established the Remuneration Committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with, where applicable, the CG Code of the Listing
Rules. The Remuneration Committee currently comprises four independent
non-executive Directors and is chaired by Mr. Li Yu and with Ms. Wong Chi
Yan, Ms. Han Xingxing and Mr. Lee Cheung Yuet Horace as members. The
primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are, among others, to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for
all Directors’ and senior management remuneration and to determine with
delegated responsibility the remuneration packages of executive Directors and
senior management. In fulfilling the functions, the Remuneration Committee
will take into consideration factors such as salaries paid by comparable
companies, respective time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors
and senior management and whether the remuneration packages are
competitively attractive to retain the Directors and senior management. The
Remuneration Committee meets at any time when necessary and desirable to
carry out the aforesaid duties but in any event at least once a year. Minutes
of the meeting are kept by the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong.

The members of the Remuneration Committee during the year and their
attendance were as follows:
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Meeting attended/
Eligible to attend

Independent Non-Executive directors EHECEE
BIYFHITES REeERLEEZER
Ms. Han Xingxing BEEL+ 01
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam (resigned on 31 January 2019) R{EMEE(R-_ZE—hE—A=+—HET) 0/0
Mr. Li Yu TEEE 171
Ms. Wong Chi Yan (appointed on 31 January 2019) FERLZT(RZE-—NEF-A=1+—BEZE) 11
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board has established the Nomination Committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with, where applicable, the CG Code of the Listing
Rules. The Nomination Committee currently comprises four independent
non- executive Directors and is chaired by Ms. Han Xingxing and with Ms.
Wong Chi Yan, Mr. Li Yu and Mr. Lee Cheung Yuet Horace as members. The
primary duties of the Nomination Committee are, among others, to review the
composition of the Board and make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorship. With a view to achieving
and maintaining a sustainable and balanced development, the Company sees
diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development. The Nomination Committee meets
at any time when necessary and desirable to carry out the aforesaid duties
but in any event at least once a year. Minutes of the meeting are kept by the
Company Secretary at the principal place of business in Hong Kong.

Pursuant to the CG Code, listed issuers are required to adopt a board diversity
policy. The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) with a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development of
our Group. In designing the Board’s composition, board diversity has been
considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. The Board
Diversity Policy is reviewed annually by the Nomination Committee, and where
appropriate, revisions will be made with the approval from the Board.

The members of the Nomination Committee during the year and their
attendance were as follows:
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Meeting attended/
Eligible to attend

Independent Non-Executive directors BEHEzEE
BYEHTES REERLEZER
Ms. Han Xingxing FEELT 01
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam (resigned on 31 January 2019) SREMEER ZE—LE—A=+—HEH) 0/0
Mr. Li Yu FELEE 171
Ms. Wong Chi Yan (appointed on 31 January 2019) B2ERZT(RZT-—NF—A=+T—HEZ®) 171
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Nomination Policy and Procedure

The Board should have a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business. To
ensure changes to the Board composition can be managed without undue
disruption, there should be a formal, considered and transparent procedure
for selection, appointment and re-appointment of Directors, as well as plans
in place for orderly succession (if considered necessary), including periodical
review of such plans. The appointment of a new director (to be an additional
director or fill a casual vacancy as and when it arises) or any re-appointment of
directors is a matter for decision by the Board upon the recommendation of the
proposed candidate by the Nomination Committee.

The criteria to be applied in considering whether a candidate is qualified shall
be his or her ability to devote sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Company and contribute to the diversity of the Board as well as the effective
carrying out by the Board of the responsibilities which, in particular, are set out

as follows:

(@)  participating in Board meetings to bring an independent judgment on
issues of strategy, policy, performance, accountability, resources, key
appointments and standards of conducts;

(b)  taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;

(¢)  serving on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee (in the case of candidate for non-executive
director) and other relevant Board Committees, if invited;

(d)  bringing a range of business and financial experience to the Board,
giving the Board and any committees on which he or she serves the
benefit of his or her skills, expertise, and varied backgrounds and
qualifications and diversity through attendance and participation in the
Board/committee meetings;

(e)  scrutinising the Company’s performance in achieving agreed corporate
goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting of performance;

(f) ensuring the committees on which he or she serves to perform their
powers and functions conferred on them by the Board; and

(g) conforming to any requirement, direction and regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the
constitutional documents of the Company or imposed by legislation or
the Listing Rules, where appropriate.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS E%éé%&&iﬁﬁ

The Board holds at least four meetings in a financial year and meets at any ZEZeRSEVKEEELRTNIEE TR
other times as and when required, among others, to review financial and WEH%EETT%’EW@E% CA(ERBeE) R AR
internal control, risk management, corporate governance, company strategy  Bi & AERIES] - BREIE C DEER C ARIRE

and operating performance of the Group. Minutes of the Board meetings are & iEKIT o %%gg;%zaﬁm AMERT @ 7]
kept by the Company Secretary for record and are available for inspection by  #EENMARQ G ZBENER o
the Directors and auditors of the Company.

The individual attendance record of each Director in office during the year REZE-—Z—h&E+-_A=+—HIEETEEZE

ended 31 December 2019 at the Board meetings and general meetings is set ZZFREZeeaMREARE 2HFEBREF W
out below: N

Meetings attended/
Eligible to attend

BHEzER
REERLEZES
Board General

Name of Directors Meetings Meetings
EENA EEag BRERE
Executive Directors: HITES
Mr. Deng Jun Jie (Chairman) BERNEE(FE) 15/18 2/2
Mr. Wang Jia Si (Chief Executive Officer) E%%@f‘ﬁf{”ﬁ?ﬁ?ﬁ)

(resigned on 23 January 2020) (A2 _TF—A=_+=H&T) 16/18 2/2
Mr. Law Kin Fat EEEEE

(resigned on 13 February 2019) (M=—ZZT—hE-_A+=H&F) 2/2 0/0
Mr. Chan Wai Kit PRIZAE I AE 18/18 2/2
Mr. Sze Siu Bun e SR A 18/18 0/2
Ms. Sun Tingting Rigig e+

(appointed on 21 June 2019, (RZB-hFERAZT—BREZE -

retired on 27 June 2019 and RZZB-NERAZTEHEERR

re-appointed on 28 June 2019) T -NFANAZT\BEERE) 1/7 1/2
Mr. Lin Wan Qaing *ﬁ%éﬁf‘ﬁi(ﬁ’\:%—ﬂiﬁﬂ —+—H

(appointed on 21 June 2019, retired on BZE - -RZZT-NFNA=+tH

27 June 2019, re-appointed on 28 June 2019  RE - R=_ZT—hLFA=-F+/\H

and resigned on 30 October 2019) BEEMN-_ZT—NF+A=+HET) 1/3 12
Non-Executive Director: FHITES
Dato’ Sri Lai Chai Suang Dato’ Sri Lai Chai Suang

EEMBERYER L EERBRYER L 11 0/0
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BUFHITEE
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam RERME A

(resigned on 31 January 2019) (J‘E’\:?—Hi—ﬂ =+—H#T) 2/2 0/0
Ms. Han Xingxing BEEX 1118 0/2
Mr. Li Yu $£%$ 1718 0/2
Ms. Wong Chi Yan mEELL

(appointed on 31 January 2019) (RZT—hF—A=1+—HEZF) 14/16 0/2

All current Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with ~ FTABRAE R EETABERARHARETZR
the Articles of Association. TE °
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Company has not set up a corporate governance committee. However, the
Board has adopted the written terms of reference on Corporate Governance in
compliance with the CG Code of the Listing Rules and the Board is responsible
for performing the corporate governance duties set out therein. The Board
has reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices,
the training and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, the Company’s code of conduct and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and the disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Law Wai Ip Vincent (“Mr. Law"), the Company Secretary of the Company,
is a full time employee of the Group. During the year ended 31 December
2019, Mr. Law has duly complied with the relevant professional training
requirements under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Statements
The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Group and have adopted the accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and complied with the requirements of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards which also include Hong Kong Accounting
Standards and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. Save as disclosed in the section “Material Uncertainty
Related to Going Concern” contained in the “Independent Auditor’s Report's”,
as at 31 December 2019, Directors are not aware of any other material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt
upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. As discussed in the
sections of “LITIGATIONS” and “THE REMEDIAL ACTIONS TO BE UNDERTAKEN
RELATED TO MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING CONCERN”
contained in the “MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS”, the Directors
have therefore prepared the financial statements of the Company on a going
concern basis accordingly.

The accounting systems and internal control of the Company are designed
to prevent any misappropriation of the Company’s assets, any unauthorised
transactions as well as to ensure the accuracy of the accounting records and
the true and fairness of the financial statements.
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The Board also acknowledges its responsibility to present a balanced, clear
and understandable financial report with sufficient disclosures as required
under the Listing Rules, and to report to the regulators as to information
required to be disclosed pursuant to the statutory requirements. The reporting
responsibilities of the Company’s independent auditor are set out in the
Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 75 to 84.

Risk management and internal control

The Board recognises it has overall responsibility of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems and reviews their effectiveness
on an ongoing basis. The board oversees the management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management internal control
systems.

Risk assessment and internal control

In assisting the Board for evaluating and determining the risks it is willing to
take in achieving its strategic objective, the Board has engaged an independent
advisory firm to conduct a risk assessment. The assessment adopted a risk
model, a framework for helping the board to identify, evaluate and prioritise
the nature and extend of the business risks including strategic risks, operation
risks, financial risks as well as information risks. The assessment includes
interviewing the directors and senior management along with qualitative
analysis to evaluate the significance and likelihood in occurrence of the risks.

The management has reviewed the results of the risk assessment and has
provided a confirmation to the Board that the Group has effective risk
management and internal control systems to provide reasonable, though not
absolute, assurance for mitigating the risks that may deter the Group from
achieving its business objectives in any material aspects. The management
reviews and evaluates the design of internal controls in place and monitors
their effectiveness on a regular basis, and reports to the Audit Committee on
any significantly issues. The Group has established a defined management
structure with clear lines of reporting, limits of authority, operational policies
and procedures to ensure reliability of operational efficiency and safety,
financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

Inside information

The Company recognises the significance of consistent practices of fair
disclosure with the aim of disclosing inside information in a timely and
accurate manner. The Company has a policy with regard to the principles and
procedures for handling and disseminating its inside information in compliance
with the requirement under Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance

(Cap 571 of the laws of Hong Kong) and the Listing Rules.
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The handling and dissemination of inside information of the Company is strictly
controlled and remains confidential including but not limited by the following
ways:

J Restrict access to inside information, if practicable, to the highest level
of management/or to a limited number of employees on a need-to-know
basis;

3 Reminder to employees who are in possession of inside information are

fully conversant with their obligations to preserve confidentiality;

3 Ensure appropriate confidentiality agreements are in place when the
Company enters into significant negotiations or dealings with third
party; and

3 Inside information is handled and communicated by designated persons

to outside third party. The Board and the senior management review
the safety measures regularly to ensure inside information is properly
handled and disseminated.

Internal audit function

The Group has engaged an external independent consultant to conduct the
annual review on the effectiveness of the internal control system. Review of the
Group's internal controls covering major operational, financial and compliance
controls, as well as risk management functions of different systems has been
performed on a systematic rotational basis on the risk assessments of the
operations and controls. No major issues on the internal control system have
been identified during the year ended 31 December 2019.

Based on the risk assessment, the risk management and internal control
systems that management has put in place, and the results of the internal
audits; the Board concluded that the Group has effective risk management
and internal control systems covering all material aspects including financial,
operational and compliance controls.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the fees paid and payable to the
Group’s auditor, Moore Stephens CPA Limited, in respect of their statutory
audit and other audit services provided to the Group were as follows:

RS ER
EEBEZRTS
IEREEZRS

Type of services
Statutory audit services
Non-statutory audit services
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R EBEF aT B RE

REEE R EENBE L B LA B A AP BEHE ) 2 2%
RETFERS - AEEDRESEBREZEE
Batfh  BTRAEASHANEZE(RETEZE -
M EAREENREREERE) B R RLER
ETEE -BE_ZT-NAF+-_A=+—RHIF
B - BHERR A AR E AN EARRE -

RiER G EEERTHEZRAREERAR
ERES  RANEAER  BEFQHEAEEZ
EREEMABEERRCERREMEERE
7 BN 2ERA RS -

B =
RBE-R—NF+-A=+—RILFE HA%E
EEEHAESRER A EFHARATARE
R AR B R BRI TS REH T
KEZBBMT :

Amount

=

(HK$'000)
(FEL)

1,400
145

1,545
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ERELHSE (R

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with the
Shareholders and is committed to providing clear and full performance
information of the Group to the Shareholders. Information in relation to the
Group is disseminated to Shareholders in a timely manner through a number
of formal channels, which include interim and annual reports, announcements
and circulars. Additional information of the Group is also available to the
Shareholders on the Group’s website. The Group values feedback from the
Shareholders to foster investor relationships.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles, any one or more shareholders holding at
the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall
be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company. The aforesaid written
requisition must state the objects of the meeting and must be signed by the
relevant shareholder(s) and deposited at the Company’s head office in Hong
Kong at 33 Dai Shing Street, Tai Po Industrial Estate, Tai Po, New Territories,
Hong Kong.

The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as a director
of the Company are available on the Group's designated website for corporate
communications (www.atvgroup.com.hk).

Enquiries raised by any Shareholder can be forwarded to the Board at the
Company’s head office in Hong Kong at 33 Dai Shing Street, Tai Po Industrial
Estate, Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during the

year.

REERRE
EESGRPERREFRITEBERESR  IH
AEREHABASBRR BN - 2EEA &
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B BREDPHERFERS  [MEBE - GEAE
EHEZEMTAIEAEERY LHE - AEED
BRRzREBR  FUIREREERE

BREREER
RIBARIES8HF - FARNEZERKAHFELD
RARBHEBEA(MAERRRABBRERE LRR
ERER) + 9 2 — B — B EIA ERR - R
BEREBAARAZEFERAAWERLERE
ko BREFGARABRREIAS  UREFHE
SRAIEAMEREER | ZAGRNEZZEREM
BEARRT - WEZERER_+—HR > EEGR
BAMZAE  AIRZ2Z2RKA LA BTURRESR
EHIER  EEERALTHREZTERAAEERAR
MELNME SRR ERARFMEME o L
ZEBERVATIREFHE L BH - WALHIBARK
REZERXEARARA 2 BEBERMER  HILREE
FTRAIAIE TR AR E335 -

BREZRRBALZ2EARRRESZEFARAR
A2 A8 2 48 7E 48 U (www.atvgroup.com. hk) i
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

INTRODUCTION

This year, we continue to present our report in accordance with the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ESG Reporting Guide (“ESG Guide"”), under
Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (the “Period”), the Group primarily
engaged in four major business streams including (i) Fabrics and Trading
Business; (ii) money lending business; (iii) securities investment and brokerage

services business; and (iv) media, cultural and entertainment business.

Consistent with last year, the report content is focused mainly on the
production factories and offices of printing and dyeing business in Fujian, and
the Group's Hong Kong headquarters office, which are the areas that represent
the majority of the Group's social, environmental and economic impacts.

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

Following the discussion with our senior management and operational staff,
we have identified the ESG issues relevant to the Group, the identified ESG
issues have been assessed by considering their materiality and importance to
our principle of activities, stakeholders as well as the Group. The ESG issues
considered to be material are listed below:

BE REREIHRS

e

AER - FPEERE EHRRM St EmEz
BEMERSMBERARCRE HB REARE
HEaD(BRIERE - L g RERIES DRIARS -

HE-_Z-NF+A=+—HIEFE(XH
M) AEEXIZRENEIERE - 810 M
REZED  (VREZET © (i)EFE ML RS
5% R(v)IEEE - UL RIREEZET -

HEF—B > REANBREEEPRENRIMEEER
YR 2 A B TR AN A A R N SR [ o B 8 4 B
NE  FUBERAEERH TS  RENKEELR
BHEEMT o

EEME
EEEMNSREREREBABTHE  RME
BAHEAEERBE RS HERERFE I
EEREEAMERERMOEREY « FzmEmH
EARAEBENERE  HRBEHMNZBRK -
BRERERELMG - HRRBELRE e
RERERHIIMT
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
B HERELRSE (K

ESG aspects as set forth in the ESG Reporting Guide Material ESG issues

(B - HEREARSES) FRNRE HERERER EEZNERE  HERERBHE

A. Environmental

RIE
A1 Emissions o Emission from vehicle usage
187 B i {E A BEAR
o Sewage discharge
TEIKHERR
o Waste gas emission
EERHEL
o Greenhouse gas emissions
= RS R
° Hazardous waste gas emission
BERERIN
o Hazardous solid waste emission
B EE BRI
o Non-hazardous solid waste emission
IEEEE YR
A2  Use of resources o Electricity
EIRER S
° Water
K
o Steam gas
%0
3 Packaging materials for finished goods
UK i 2 BEM R
A3 The environment and natural resources o Measures in reducing environmental impact
RERRANEIR PRSI IRIE 2 B RIEIE
B. Social
e
B1  Employment o Labour practices
(2 BITER
B2  Health and safety 3 Workplace health and safety
EREEZ S THESMRERER S
B3  Development and training o Staff development and training
R Rl 8 T &R &F
B4  Labour standards o Anti-child and forced labour
& TR B 1EE T Rsa ks T
B5  Supply chain management o Supplier management
HEEER HEmER
B6  Product responsibility o Product and service responsibility, quality assurance,
EmEE customer service, safeguarding customer assets
ERMREELE E2RE  BTPRE REZFEE
B7  Anti-corruption o Anti-corruption policy
RES REEBE
B8  Community investment o Community involvement
HERE AN
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Environmental

The Group’s Fabrics and Trading Business is closely related to
environmental protection and the usage of natural resources. The
Fabrics and Trading Business is operated in PRC with production
factories located at Fujian Province. It represents the majority of the
environmental issues of the Group. The Fabric and Trading Business
subsidiaries of the Group strictly comply with the laws and regulations in
the PRC, including but not limited to the “Law of the People’s Republic
of China on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution”, the
“Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control
of Water Pollution”, the “Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China” and the “Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste”, as
well as the local rules and standards in the PRC in respect of prevention
and control of environmental pollution of discarded dangerous
chemicals, standard of air pollutants and integrated wastewater
discharge standard.

The Group’s Hong Kong headquarters office only has indirect carbon
emissions from electricity due to the business nature of the office.

Emissions from vehicle usage

Sulphur oxides (SOx), Nitrogen oxides (NOx) and
particulate matters (PM) Emissions.

During our operation, the usage of motor vehicles generate the emission
of SOx, NOx and PM. The approximate amount of SOx, NOx and PM
produced from our operation in China regions are shown in the table
below:

BE RERELIHRS (R

BRiR
AEBENMHREZEBRRBERENBER
ERMERE SR - AEBNHEL LM
HRE SR  HEEIRUNBESE - K
SERHFDAARFENEREIREZED ©
REBME K E S EBIE A R B E T $
BUEEZER - BREETRNCHEARKN
BARRBRIIAZE) - (PEARLMBEIKS
RPRE)  (PEARKNMBEIREREE) -
(R AR A FBIE R B 105 R R FEIDAE)
ARFAEFR BN ERA S(CRRRE)ITRY
RT3 E 77 AR RIFIIRAE - RIS R MIRE
R E BERKBERIRE -

MR EENEBEEME - ARBEZEE
BE R ER LA E N MR EE 2R
)i

HEHEHEEZHRY

T (SOx) « "E LW (NOx) L&
FRFRF(PM)BERL
ERMLERREs  AERAEMEL
SOx * NOx & PMBERR o B 972 B i [ A &
SEFTEE 2 SOx + NOX & PMHBE4) 8 t0 T 3 B
7N &

FLREH=E
Number of light good vehicles HAEBEYS
Number of forklifts XE#HE

Number of private cars

Total SOx emissions (g) SoxBEk#aE (5)
Total NOx emissions (g) NOxFERR A8 &2 (52 )
Total PM emissions (g) PMEER AR E (52)

(Note 1: only business in China region has motor vehicles)
(Note 2: Such KPIs for 2018 is not available, the Group will continue to improve
the KPIs disclosure)

Nil 2

7 5

11 Nil £
121,750.00 Note 2FffzE2
328,430.00 116,546.06
16,910.00 7,998.95

(MiE1 : EPEmERERERE)
(ffE2 - =B - N\FUBZFARERER A%
B A A P E AR TR IR R R
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In respect of reducing the emissions of SOx, NOx and PM, the Group is
committed to reduce and ensure the efficient usage of motor vehicles.
The Group has implemented the following measures so as to achieve the
environmental friendly approach:

3 Avoid peak hour traffic

3 Encourage the use of public transport
3 Encourage the use of bicycle
3 Utilise the vehicle usage by car pooling with different staff

Sewage discharge

Stable water supply is crucial to the Group’s dyeing operation in
Fujian’s factory where the Group currently sources water from the
local government. The Group's requires the input of water resources in
several production processes and the processing of finished goods such
as sourcing, bleaching, dyeing, mercerising and shrinking. The amount
of sewage discharge produced from our factory is shown in the table
below:

A2 SOx ~ NOXKPMEER » AREBE AR
AL R FERA M 0 A TE o B R
BRERFNE - AEEE BN THES

o  BEKBRERE

o  EHEERAAARE

e  BEEMABTE

e EREBTHE  HEHEHEANE

TR

RENHKEAREEGRE TROREERIE
BER - AKEHE 7 BT ERUK
B AERETEEIFAREERK DB
BomERE - RA - RE HEREREST
ZRAEIKER o FAIH THE &85 KBER
EWNTIRAR

Sewage discharge in China (tonnes) SERBERR (R ) (HE)
The Group is aware of the potential environmental impact of the sewage
generated by the Group’s sourcing, bleaching, dyeing, mercerising and
shrinking processes. The use of sodium hydroxide within the mercerising
process, generate waste water containing diluted sodium hydroxide
which is toxic and harmful. The waste water generated from the
manufacturing process contains high value of Chemical Oxygen Demand
(“COD"). COD is the total amount of oxygen required to chemically
oxidise the biodegradable and nonbiodegradable organic. Higher COD
levels mean a greater amount of oxidisable organic material in the
sewage discharge, which will reduce dissolved oxygen (DO) levels. A
reduction in DO can lead to anaerobic conditions, which is deleterious to
higher aquatic life forms. Waste water currently discharged by the Group
is processed by a third-party contractor. Waste water treatment service is
charged in a monthly basis according to emission volume respectively.

In terms of waste water recycling, the Group is continuously looking
possible way to enhance recycling of waste water. The cooling water
involved in singeing, shrinking, drying and the waste water produced
from dehydration are all collected and reused for bleaching and dyeing
process. The Group also intends to construct its own waste water
treatment plan, recycle sodium hydroxide and reuse the waste water
from mercerising machines into scouring and bleaching machines for
desizing fabrics, reducing waste water discharge and concentration
of dilute sodium hydroxide in the waste water produced. Besides, the
Group also installed automatic facilities for mercerising machine, to
enhance efficient use of alkali and reduce waste water emission.
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577,277 325,339

AEEBEBERAL  RA - RE - B RE
BIRFHELRNTKERENEERE - &
mAREPEAIALH EESERES
SLMNEKR  EERETHEEMN - LEBRE
ELENERKEERIBEFAE(ICOD])E
COD R (L& (L A mT & B2 R0 1 7] A B %
MERDAFNAREE - REHCODK
FRRESKRERYFHES A AL EEY
H - ERREERREDO)KT o DOHE AT
BYRREMGN  EHRSSHKTENER
T AREBEATBFL KR E =TT AE
PRI - BEKEERGIZEINER AGE -

FERE/K BRI T - AN &8 B 1 B 5 5k 058 BE 7K
BUETTE - BAREE - Bl - Hembt
IKEA R /2 Al K2 BRUR SR 30 B A ROR B F1
EBiE - AEENAEHEE D H)5KER
B E UL SR N (2] 45 St BE R BN BE K
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B2 REEKEEMMB R AR EEK
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Waste gas emissions

Waste gas emission is minor for the Group's fabric manufacturing
business. Singeing, sueding and setting are the major processes in fabric
processing and printing business to remove impurities in raw fabrics.
Within the running process of singeing, sueding and setting machines,
unintentional air pollutants like particulate matters and fumes are
generated.

The Group has complied with “Law of the People’s Republic of China
on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution” and the
“Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China”.

Greenhouse gas emissions (“GHG")

Apart from the direct emission of particulate matters and fumes, we
have indirect greenhouse gases emissions (Scope 2), principally resulting
from electricity consumed at the factories in Fujian and office in Hong
Kong. In respect to the approximate indirect amount of carbon dioxide
("CO,") generated from our electrical usage in Hong Kong's office and
China’s factory, the figures are shown in the table below:

Type of GHG

Scope 1 &E—
Scope 2 HE—
Total =i

Intensity (tonnes/turnover in RMB '000)

(Note: Such KPIs for 2018 is not available, the Group will continue to
improve the KPIs disclosure)

In terms of reducing the carbon footprint, The Group has implemented
guidelines and policies for energy saving management which include
in-house rules and regulations for both office and factory employees
to follow. Please refer to “Resources consumption — electricity saving
measures”.

BE RERELIHRS (R

BRI
BRGMERAEERNREXBRRE
By o BRI RHII TR M EEE RN EE
TEREE  BEMTE - AR ARG R
REEHE o HER  EERME BB
SEmERRESINTNERSERSL
) o

AEE R T E AR ARS A A
)RR EARKMBERERES) -

BEREHA
BERHRETR T RERS - RIAIMAE
BRRERE(RE)  TEBRRERIHMR
BEAMBEURES - MREAREERS
B TR 5 A B P R 2 A 1) — AR ([ =
QULHLBOE - ARBEMTERAR -

RN FTARKE%5)

BB HK R B i =
REFMBE  BFEA
%“*WIFEIE
5 Y5t ] o

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
Total CO, Total CO,
generated generated
equivalent equivalent
(tonnes) (tonnes)
—EtREL —abBREE
BEE (M) wES(MR)
166.45 NoteffizE
2,457,943.46 2,619,900.02
2,458,109.91 2,619,900.02
15.67 15.78

- N\FUEZFRBENRE

i

REYHEE)

R NEEBEAENEHERERE

 AEBEEMmAEERE
NEREGE - AE
- B2R[BERHEFE—
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Hazardous waste gas emission

The Group is aware of the potential environmental impact of the
hazardous waste gas generated by the Group’s setting processes.
Singeing and setting machines are used for printing fabrics and there is
hazardous waste emission during the production process.

The Group has complied with Emission Standard of Pollutants for
Synthetic Leather and Artificial Leather Industry (GB21902-2008) and
passed National Standard of Air quality-Determination of Formaldehyde-
Acetylacetone Spectrophotometric Method (GB/T 15516-1995).

Hazardous solid waste emission

For the process of printing fabrics, minimal type of hazardous solid
waste is generated during the production process of printing fabrics.
The Group's production process involved the following hazardous solid

waste emissions figures:

Waste type EEYE R

Oil polluted fabrics and waste oil (kg) sy R EEw (F57=)

Intensity (kg/PRC turnover in RMB '000) ZE(FR,/ T AREFRER
)

The Group is dedicated to proper management of the hazardous solid
waste. Specific area is assigned for the temporary storage of hazardous
waste for safety purpose. Licensed third party is engaged for the
collection of the waste for recycle and reuse purpose.
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BERRANK

AEBB AR T E LN BER LIRS
MBI R o EEMFE LM TS AR BRI
R MeEBRRRFREERER -

AEBEEBR(AKEHEABE TS
IZZE ) (GB21902-2008)3f B i 38 B 5 1= #
(EREEFBEMAE LBERIRS X XEE)
(GB/T 15516-1995) °

BEEIREYHH
SERHHTFNE - R TFaRs
EEBLBEAEEREY - AEENEE
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Non-hazardous solid waste emission
Besides hazardous solid waste, numerous types of non-hazardous
solid waste are generated during the production process of printing
fabrics. The Group is dedicated to managing waste in a responsible way
and strives to optimise the use of resources. The Group recorded the
following non-hazardous waste emissions figures:

Waste Collected by external qualified units RIS E KB ENE

HEZEIRBEYHH
BAZERENI - ORBHIFBRSE
ELBFAEEREY - AEERNBBE
BENFAERENT NRELERER -
ARG AT I A E R P B

95,913 236,227
11,058 10,752
10,262 20,259

for recycle and reuse purpose REBEHNEY
Wasted fabrics (kg) BEmEH(Fie)
Suede dust, hatha dust (kg) EEE  EXKIR(FR)
Plastic container and iron drum (pieces) BRBA S M ER ()
Waste Collected by RELBEARESE
the Sanitation Department for disposal BRIB R
Sludge (kg) (T 7R)
Non-recyclable domestic and ENE GO TR Y
industrial waste (kg) T¥EN(TR)
Total waste dispose (kg) REEMEE(TR)
Intensity (kg/PRC turnover RMB’ 000) BE(FR/TTARES
=)

As a corporate citizen to enhance the optimise recycling and reusing
of our waste, the Group’s non-hazardous wastes like wasted fabrics,
suede dust, hatha dust, plastic container and scrap iron are collected
by external qualified units for recycle and reuse purposes. General
garbage which is non-recyclable is cleaned by the sanitation department
regularly.

During the Period, there was no material breach of or non-compliance
with the applicable laws and regulations related to environmental
protection.

1,173,000 1,811,488
23,826 33,652
1,196,826 1,845,140
10.62 19.29

EREEAR  RELCEMHEREER -
AEBIEEEREY - MEmE - EEE K
KK BRAS  BEE  BINPEERE
7 @ B A A o — AR A i A 2P R
BRE o

MNAHRE - U EREEZRLTETEBRR
BB AR ROEM
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Use of Resources

The Group adheres to the concept of energy conservation and emission
reduction for green production. The major resources used by the
Group are principally attributed to electricity in Fujian’s factory and
Hong Kong's headquarter; fuel, water and steam gas consumed at the
factory in Fujian, while the water charges of Hong Kong’s headquarter
is included in the management service fee. The Group did not encounter
any problems in sourcing water that is fit for purpose. We aim to
improve our energy utilisation efficiency to achieve low-carbon practices
and emission reduction throughout our production and operation, and
strive to save the resources. The Group's electricity, water, steam and
fuel are shown in the following tables:

Electricity consumption

Region

Hong Kong B

China ==l

Total a5

Intensity (Kwh/turnover in RMB’000) BE(FEREFTARK
=5

Water consumption

Region

China R
Intensity BEGLHK FTTARE
(Cubic meters/PRC turnover in RMB'000) R XEE)
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BRER

AEBRSHMERENES  BRRELE
E-AREERNEIZERIZERETR
REBEIBNEN - BEIRBOBFEARE -
KT MABABEILHKERFAETERE
A o AN £ B A SKEUE A 7K R 77 T 3 £ N 2 -
HMWERRESHFANERERRE - &
FAPT A A EE AN A & o B 3R (ECHR T e AR
BHHEER - AEEWES  KRETH
EMTRAR

3
i
Hiin

2019 PAONES]
—B-NF —ZE-)N\F
Electricity Electricity

consumption consumption
(Kwh) (Kwh)
AEE(TRE) RBES(TRE)

4,799,641 5,113,091
12,711,796 7,803,659
17,511,437 12,916,750

112 78

HKkE

2019 2018
—E-NF —Z—)\F
Water Water
consumption consumption
(Cubic meters) (Cubic meters)

RAKE(EZFR) MKE(GLTK)

646,893 244,645

5.74 2.56
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Steam consumption in China ZETHE(FE)

Total steam consumption (tonnes) az T A E (HE) 169,442 148,353

Fuel consumption in China MEAEZE (P E)

Unleaded petrol (L) EaolR (R F) 7,680 Notelff &+
Diesel (L) gem (DA 58,726 Notefff
Natural gas (m?) RAR (LK) 127,500 Noteff=E
(Note:  Such KPIs for 2018 is not available, the Group will continue to improve (MfzE : —ZB-NEWEZSHEREITIRE &
the KPIs disclosure) B EENERRERUEENEE)

The Group is dedicated to maintain consumption saving management for REBBRIRNEBATBREHELEFTE N

electricity, water and steam by applying in-house rules and regulations IKFERENREEIE  UERAEMNIHE T

for both office and factory employees to follow. Saving measures ST o BiRETEHE RS ¢

include:

Electricity saving measures EnE1E I

. Applied variable frequency air compressor to reduce electricity o FRERARTCRBER  BRERSE
consumption. £

0 Applied energy saving initiatives including maximising the use o [EFRNEEEIE  RESRAREFEAX
of natural light and energy-saving lighting systems, applying ANGRMELZEEEERPB RS EAR
optimal temperature setting of air-conditioning; switching off air- FEEFABERE B EIRBARFREME
conditioning systems and lighting in vacant working areas after FIRFER - BRI ZE A TIARBA R AT o
operation hours; turning off office equipment when not in use.

Water saving measures Bk 1A bt

. Reused water produced from singeing machines and preshrinking e BEREARBEEMNEHEREERRE
machines for production process. PERREIREK ©

o Modified water tanks of scouring and bleaching machines, o EEVEH  FEME - A EARE
mercerising machine and dyeing machines to reduce storage HEIKAE - RAFKEER - fEmmd
water surface areas, thus reduce water and steam consumption. IKFNZE STIBEFE ©

. Modified scouring and bleaching machines to shorten the . BUEB AR M - T 7 4R
production process and reduce electricity, water and steam FARE N - KFZEAMFERE -

consumption.
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Steam saving measures
o Replaced heating facilities in scouring and bleaching machines to
enhance the effectiveness.

o Applied high-capacity roller into dryer machines, reducing 30% of
water retained in fabrics, thus saving steam consumption.

o Installed humidity meter and set humidity standard to control the
process of drying and avoid overheating, thus reducing steam

consumption.

3 Optimised draining valve of dryer machines to reduce outflow of
steam gas.
o Recycled steam from heat-setting stenter and various machines.

Packaging materials

The packaging materials used by the Group are mainly from raw fabrics
packaging bags, cartons, paper tubes, auxiliaries bags and other sundry
packaging materials. The Group recorded the following packaging
materials usage:

Packaging materials

Raw fabrics packaging bags, cartons, paper tubes JE7fm @4 « 4148  AE

and other sundry items Hih S miE
Auxiliaries bags B2
Total packaging materials BEMEEE

The Group is dedicated to consume the least packaging materials as
possible. It is the Group’s practice to implement production planning
in a timely basis so as to assess the approximate amount of packaging
materials needed for the period. The Group is also committed to source
recyclable packaging materials from suppliers with eco-friendly practice
and engagement.
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o [EU(E A AR TE EL M A E 1 4 28 B0 B

BRI

7S B 52 PR ) B0 3 Y E B ph IR D 2

A EE - BBEIR &ﬁm%ﬁ@%ﬁﬂ
AEERGREMHAEMT :

2019
—E-NF
Amount (kg)
AE(F=)

2018
—T-N\F
Amount (kg)
AE(F5%)

71,232 122,407

2,259 15,425

73,491 137,832
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Environment and natural resources

In terms of minimising the environmental impact, the Group has put
its initiative in reducing the emission of sewage discharge, waste gas,
hazardous waste gas as well as the electricity and water consumption as

above mentioned.

With respect to raw materials usage, raw fabrics are the main raw
materials which include unfinished pure cotton, polyester cotton,
synthetic fibre, combined fabrics and nylon cotton. Since these are
processed materials from cotton which can be widely obtained, thus the
impact to the natural resources is not significant. The Group will closely
monitor the progress of the application of the purification system of
our setting machines so reduction of the hazardous waste gas emission
could be put into practice in the closest future.

To develop a green approach at the factory and offices, we have
developed the following measures for our daily operation starting from
2017 so as to minimise the impact brought to the environmental and
natural resources consumption.

Factory machine and office equipment

. Switch off computers, printers, machines and other electronic
devices after office hours or when leaving the workplace to reduce
power consumption.

o Affix save energy posters near the main switches in order to
remind our employees of energy saving.

. The last-man-out is dedicated to check and turn off all machines
and equipments.

Lighting
. Switch off non-essential lighting if there are only few people
working in the office or factory.

o After office hours or during lunch time of business days, only

turning on light for areas essential for safety and security purpose.

o The last-man-out is dedicated to check and turn off all lighting of

the factory and offices.
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BE RERELIHESE(R)

Water

o Conduct daily checking and maintenance of water supply facilities.
Employee should report to the management office when water
supply facilities are out of work or damaged.

Other practice
3 Encourage duplex printing, reuse of single-side used paper.
3 Refill instead of new pen when used up.

. Reduce paper printing by conducting e-filing.

o Encourage employees to adjust the margins and font size of
documents so as to optimise the use of paper.

As a socially responsible enterprise, protecting nature and the
environment has become our inescapable social responsibility, the Group
constantly looks for ways to maximise benefits with minimal resource
consumption and environmental impact, and continue to strive for
sustainable development.

B. Social Commitment B.

Employment and Labour Practices

The Group reckons that employees are the most valuable assets
of an enterprise and also the cornerstone for sustaining corporate
development. It is always the Group’s initiative to provide a fair and
competitive compensation package to attract and retain quality talents,
in the form of a basic salary, incentives bonus, mandatory provident
fund, and other fringe benefits. Remuneration packages are reviewed
periodically. The Group also has a set of comprehensive human resources
management policy to support human resources function. The policies
include compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, appraisal, training and benefits.

The Group has always strictly observed the relevant legislations in the
PRC and Hong Kong regarding the equal employment opportunities,
child labour and forced labour. The Group abides by the employment
regulations, relevant policies and guidance of the relevant jurisdictions
where it operates, including the “Employment Ordinance”,
the”Employees’ Compensation Ordinance” and the “Occupational
Safety and Health Ordinance”, etc. in Hong Kong; and the”Labour Law
of the People’s Republic of China” and the “Labour Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China” in the PRC.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

The Group has its internal procedure to report employees’ information
regularly in order to review employment practices so as to avoid
any non-compliance. Furthermore, the Group strictly complies with
the internal recruitment process during recruitment to ensure no
employment of child labour and forced labour in any form. The Group
also strives to establish harmonious labour relationships. We protect
the rights of staff in terms of providing rest and leave days according
to relevant government laws and regulations. During the Period, the
Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with relevant
standards, rules and regulations regarding operations and activities,
labour practices.

Health and Safety

The Group is an investment holding company located in Hong Kong
and the nature of the daily operation is mainly office-based where it is
relatively low safety risk profile. The Group has equipped its office with
suitable fire-fighting facilities like fire extinguishers. Designated staff
would conduct inspection from time to time so as to ensure the exit
passageway clear and unblocked. In addition, the management office of
our headquarter office organises fire drills from time to time.

The Group's subsidiary in Fujian engages in processing, printing and
sales of finished fabrics. The Group strongly believes that ensuring
stable and safety production is the most important social responsibility
to its shareholders, employees and the community where it situates.
Therefore, the Group has always regarded ensuring safety and stable
production as one of the priorities in corporate management. Sound
management systems have been established in occupational health and
safety in strict compliance with the regulations on occupational health
and safety the PRC.

As above mentioned, the factories of the Group have engaged third
licensed party to periodically review the waste gas concentration level
of machinery and equipment. At the same time, we continuously
reduce workload intensity for frontline staff and improve the working

environment.

The Fujian factory of the Group had obtained Quality Management
System Certification (ISO9001) and Environmental Management System
Certification (ISO14001) formulated by the International Organisation
for Standardisation (“ISO") and they were certified, thus effectively
guaranteeing the establishment of a healthy, safe and stable working
environment. Daily operations are inspected by relevant department
assigned by the Group, according to the occupational health and safety
requirements of the respective company. Any non-compliance will also
be identified and rectified on a timely basis.
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During the Period, there are no work related injuries case. There were
no non-compliance cases noted in relation to laws and regulations for
health and safety.

Development and Training

We believe that cultivation and retention of talents is the core of
the Group’s development and is essential in strengthening the
competitiveness of the Group. We always consider our staff as our
strategic partners and provide various in-housing training courses to
enhance their job-related skills. During the year, we formulate quality
management and environment management training programs to
update our staff with the most updated standard of 1SO9001 and
ISO14001. These two programs include quality assurance training in
production process, inspection assurance of materials received from
supplier, health and safety precautions in using production equipment
and machinery as well as customer relationship management.

In daily operation, the Group provides induction training for new
employees and experienced employees act as mentors to guide new
comers. We believe such arrangement can be the best practice to
facilitate communication and team spirit, also improve technical skills
and managerial capability and encourage the learning and further
development of employees at all levels.

The Group will continue to intensify its efforts to promote staff training
programs which we believe that by means of offering comprehensive
training opportunities, it could help providing the necessary protection
for talent reserves for corporate development.

Labour Standards

The Group strictly complies with the labour legislations and the relevant
guidelines in China and Hong Kong. In Fujian factory, we have set up
policy to ensure our business complied with the “Labor Law of the
People’s Republic of China”, the “Labor Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China” and “Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Protection of Disabled Persons”, etc. In Hong Kong, we have human
resources policy to ensure the compliance with all applicable rules
and regulations such as the “Minimum Wage Ordinance”, the “Sex
Discrimination Ordinance”, the “Race Discrimination Ordinance” and
the “Disability Discrimination Ordinance” etc. It is also the Group policy
in both China and Hong Kong region that no child and forced labor is
permitted for employment. During the Period, the Group does not aware

of any noncompliance with relevant standards, rules and regulations.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Supply Chain Management

Raw fabrics, dyeing chemicals and fabrics processing chemicals are
the major materials used by the Group’s Fujian factory in its fabrics
processing where they are all procured in the PRC.

The Group implements supplier management in accordance with
internal guidance which governs the engagement of suppliers. Suppliers
are chosen subjecting to screening and evaluation procedures among
the suppliers, based on the quality and price. Also, to ensure supplier
capability in quality assurance, safety and environmental responsibility,
field visit and investigation is conducted. The investigation reviews the
production capacity, technology level, quality assurance capabilities,
supply capacity, safety and environment management qualifications if
needed. Only the highly qualified suppliers complied with regulatory
requirements are eligible for the supplier selection by the Group. The
Group also carry out regular assessment on suppliers’ overall capabilities,
assets position, nature of business, reputation in the industry, quality of
products, goods delivery and compliance with law and regulations.

As customers are becoming more concerned about environmental issues,
and stress the importance of using environmentally friendly materials.
The Group will continue to act as a corporate citizen in communicating
and stressing those environmental issues to our suppliers. We aim at
strengthening the cooperation with suppliers, coordinating with them
in product trials, and work with them to produce socially responsible
products.

Product and Service Responsibility

Customer service

The Group's in-house research and development team has been devoting
to new products development to suit the changing market demand
as well as the improvement of the Group’s existing products and
production processes. The Group has established long-term relationships
with our customers comprising apparel retailers, garment manufacturers
and fabrics suppliers.

We also believe that customer satisfaction is always the foundation
of an enterprise’s survival. The Group is always trying to improve its
service quality and responding immediately to customers’ needs in terms
of delivery lead time, quality and price. The Group has established a
compliant and handling policy as well as customer communication where
questionnaire is sent to customer, we believe customer’s feedback is
always material for an enterprise’s development. We are always trying
to improve and address complaints or feedback quickly to resolve any
issues.
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Product quality and safety management

The Group is committed to achieve high product and service quality by
implementing stringent and comprehensive quality control procedures.
We have implemented quality control manual throughout the production
process form purchase of raw fabrics and dyeing chemicals to product
packaging for employee to follow. Raw fabrics are inspected to
ensure uniformity in density, thickness and texture before putting into
production so as to minimise possible disruptions during the operation.
During the Period, the amount of defective products produced by the
Group was minimal and complaints by customers in respect of defective
products were insignificant.

Intellectual property right protection

The Group markets its products under its own trademarks. Those
trademarks were issued by the Trademark Office of the State
Administration for Industry and Commerce of the PRC and the Trade
Marks Registry of the Intellectual Property Department in Hong Kong
respectively. During the Period, no claim has been made in relation to
infringement of intellectual property rights.

Money lending operation

The Group’s money lending business is conducted by Rende. Rende
is a licensed money lender in Hong Kong under the Money Lenders
Ordinance. The Group has established standard operation procedures to
evaluate the trustworthiness, creditability, usage of funds of potentials
borrowers. During the Period, the Group has strictly adhered to relevant
rules and regulations including the “Money Lenders Ordinance”.

Securities investment and brokerage services business

The Group has a set of principles guiding our investment decisions.
We assess companies and are concerned with their transparency and
accountability, corporate governance and how they behave with respect
to environmental, social and workers’ rights. It is the Group intention to
invest in companies with good practices in dealing with environmental,

social and governance issues.

The Group’s brokerage services business is conducted by Sincere
Securities. The Group has established standard operation manual in
assessing customer’s creditability, capability and source of funds. The
Group has also established policy to ensure our brokerage services
business is in compliance with “Code of Conduct for Persons Licensed by
or Registered with the Securities and Futures Commission”, “Guideline
on Anti- Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing”,
“Prevention of Money Laundering and Terrorist Financing Guideline
Associated Entities”.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Privacy and information security

The Group believes that the privacy and security of stakeholders’
information is crucial in order to gain trust from them. The Group adopts
appropriate security measures in safeguarding sensitive information
and data, including, but not limited to, trade secrets, know how, client
information, supplier information and other proprietary information.

During the Period, there are no disputes between our Group and our
customers in respect of the quality of products made by us.

Anti-Corruption and Anti-Money Laundering

The Group believes that a system with good moral integrity and anti-
corruption mechanism is the cornerstone for the sustainable and healthy
development of the Group. The Group is strictly opposed to any form
of bribery, extortion, fraud, money laundering and other acts such as
the provision of illegal political contributions, inappropriate charitable
donation or sponsorship, provision or acceptance of unreasonable
gifts, entertainments or other improper benefits, infringement of trade
secrets, trademarks, patents, copyrights and other intellectual property
rights, and engagement in acts of unfair competition, etc. In order to
ensure that our employees could really be honest and law-abiding, the
Group maintains a “Staff Handbook”, which states the code of conduct
and requires the employees, during the course of business engagement,
not to (whether directly or indirectly) provide, undertake, request or
receive any improper benefits, or take any other actions which are in
violation of integrity, illegal or dishonest behaviors which are in breach
of fiduciary duties.

Regarding to our money lending business, the Group has policy set
forth procedures for performing customer due diligence process,
identifying customer involvement in money laundering activities,
detecting and monitoring suspicious transactions, and reporting of
suspicious transactions according to the guidelines from the Anti-Money
Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing (Financial Institutions)
Ordinance, Cap 615 (the AMLO).

The Group has also established a whistle-blowing policy for reporting
suspected irregularities, fraud and corruption, a compliant mailbox is
set up to provide channels for reporting corruption and bribery. We
also continue to improve our internal control and monitoring system.
We strike to take immediate actions when problems are reported and
identified. We have a zero tolerance approach to any kind of corruption
and irregularities.

During the Period, there was no any legal case regarding corrupt

practices brought against the Group or its employees.
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Community Investment

The Group is committed to creating sustainable prosperity that brings
long-term social and economic benefits for all stakeholders, particularly
to maintain the relationship with interest groups which are relevant to
business operation. Same as last year, the Group continues to make
donations and organise fund raising events to provide subsidy of
employees who suffered from cancer, serious disease and severe work
injury.

The Group's ESG policy encourages and supports employees to volunteer
their time to help those who are less fortunate and advantaged in the
community. As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group will look
for worthy charities or humanitarian causes to support through direct
monetary donations or other events to contribute to the society.
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THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG &
LIMITED'S ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND B -HEgRERR
GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPIs

TEHE  EFH - —RERERBARERER

Environmental
B

Aspect A1: Emissions

BEA1 : BBy

General Disclosure

—REE

KPI A1.1
BAREMIEEAL

KPI A1.2
BREMIEEAL2

KPI A1.3
HRANIEZALS

KPI A1.4
BRENMIEEALS

KPI A1.5
HRANIEBALS

Information on:

(a)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer, relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions,discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

ERBERFREREBEN - MAKRLHEEDT  AEREEERE

MNELESH)
(@ B R
(b) EFEHBETABEAVENEBRERZREONER -

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

PRI MARR P D R -

Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).

BERBAYNE(UBAE) R (NER)BE(MASESSE
I - BIARMAE) o

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).
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Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).

FEXEZEEZEDAE TS M(ER) RE(NMAEES
B - GERIEHE) -

Description of measures to mitigate emissions and
results achieved.
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPls Section

TRER  BH —REERBEEARES 3]

Environmental
BIR

KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are “Emissions” 56-57
FEENIEEALG handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved. [
HlEREERESEEMN L  MEEE SRR

PSR ©

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

EEA2 : EREA

General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, “Use of Resources”

—REE water and other raw materials. [BIREEA ]
BERERER(BIEER - KEEAMEM ) EE -

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. “Use of Resources” 58-59
B ERIERA2.1 electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in ‘000s) and intensity [ERER]

(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
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BTFREAE) REE(ABES SN - BERBEE)

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of “Use of Resources” 58
BREANIERA2.2 production volume, per facility). [ERER]
BFEKERTE(WUESESSEN - BHERHEE)

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results “Use of Resources” 58-60
BREMIEEA2.3 achieved. [ &R ]
RS IR 6 FA R 5T I R TS AR R -

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water “Use of Resources” 58
RRENRIEERA2.4 that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results [ E/R{E
achieved.
HASKEGE AR E R B R RERE - AR RS ES TS R AT
TR -
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) ~ “Use of Resources” 60
BREMRIERA2.5 and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced. [ BRI

U PR BEM AR E (ANERT ) X (WER ) B A E S E -

70 ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGSLIMITED | = W ERZ R B R A 7



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
B MERERHRSE (K

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPls Section
TEEE  EFEH - —REEREREVNES E=4:0]
Environmental

RE

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
BHEA3 : RIERRXARER

General Disclosure Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact on the “The Environment

— ;T o
i B environment and natural resources. and Natural

RIERTAHRERRRAEREREAFEHOBE - Resources”
[IRBERRANER]
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the “Emissions” and “Use 53-60
BERA3 environment and natural resources and the actions taken to of Resources”
manage them. [BEn & [EIREFA ]
HEBEDHRBERAAERNEATZERERNERGHZT

20778 -

Social (Note)

()

Employment and Labour Practices
BERSZIER

Aspect B1: Employment

EBEB1 : &%

General Disclosure Information on: “Employment and
—RINE (a)  the policies; and Labour Standards”
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a [ (2% %4 T %8 |
significant impact on the issuer, relating to compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination and other benefits and welfare.
AR RE  BEREA  ITERE - BRE - FSKe %
Tt~ RIRAR AR A58 RABFIA)
(a) B R
(b) BEFEHETAGERZENEREERRPINER o
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
B HERELRSE (K

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPls Section
TEHE  EH —REERBEERER =3}
Environmental

RIB

Social (Note)

e ()

Employment and Labour Practices
BEERZIESR

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
[BEB2 : REEHZZ

General Disclosure Information on: “Health and Safety”
—RIEE (@)  the policies; and [fEREZT 2
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer, relating to providing a
safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.
AERMZ 2 THERERREREEBEBELEEEN
(@) B &
(b) BETHETABEATENBBEENRDINER -

Aspect B3: Development and Training
fEMEB3 : &R RIEI

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees” knowledge and skills for “Development and
—BRER discharging duties at work. Description of training activities. Training”

BEAEETHE B BT TR E M A3 B RE O BUR - HaLEsINE [ R K&iEdl ]
) o

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[EHEB4 : &5 T %8|

General Disclosure Information on: “Employment and
—REE (@)  the policies; and Labour Standards”
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have  [{E{E &4 T8 |

a significant impact on the issuer, relating to preventing

child and forced labour.
BEAPIEE Tekaa |8 TH) :
(@ HE: R
(b) EFHBETABERTENEREERMGINER -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
B MERERHRSE (K

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPls Section
TEEE  EFEH - —REEREREVNES E=4:0]
Environmental

RE

Operating Practices

EEEH

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[EmEBS : HEHEEE

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply “Supply Chain
—RINE chain Management”

EIR MR IRE M RERBUR - [HrEEeT |

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[BHEB6 : EmEE

General Disclosure Information on: “Product 65-67
— R E (@) the policies; and Responsibility
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have [ESEE]

a significant impact on the issuer, relating to health and

safety, advertising, labeling and privacy matters relating to

products and services provided and methods of redress.

BEMBRHERTRBHRRELZS - EE BRELEEEN

KR T ER
(@) BEE: R
(b) BTHBETABEATZENEBEEZREONNER -

Operating Practices
EEEH

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
[BEB7 : RES

General Disclosure Information on: “Anti- Corruption”
—MRIFE (@) the policies; and [RES]
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer, relating to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering.
BRAIEFEEE - $1R - MEFROERER
BER - K&
BFHBETAREAZENEBEERROINES -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
B HERELRSE (K

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPls Section
TEHE  EH —REERBEERER =3}

Environmental

B

Community
#HE
Aspect B8: Community Investment

EMEBS : HERE

“Community
Investment”

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of
—REE the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its
activities take into consideration the communities” interests. | fLER & &E ]
BRANERZERT REEMELRFZENRREXLEHEZ
B R ABOR ©

Note: Pursuant to Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules, KPIs in this section are = : B FRAIN4:27 - AP RRBRESIZZEE A
recommended disclosures only. EHRRE -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

K| MOORE

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of
Asia Television Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Qualified opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Asia Television
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) (the “Consolidated Financial Statements”) set out on pages 85
to 247, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting

policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters described in the
“Basis for Qualified Opinion” section of our report, the consolidated financial
statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2019, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BIALHEEE

31 December 2019 —_E—hF+_-_HA=+—H

Moore Stephens CPA Limited g X
&
801-806 Silvercord, Tower 1, B -i;-
30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui, =
Kowloon, Hong Kong F% E
B
T +852 2375 3180 B
F +85223753828 e
N =
www.moore.hk 5 =

BENERZRBRDFARRZ
BYZBETRE
(RESHBREMALZBRAF)

REE

BT T HH R ESSE247H N ERIER AR
AR([ERR ) REMB AR (FE [ E£E )R
EMBHRER([REMHREK]) BERZZ—NF
TZ AT —HNSEEMBRAREREZB IEF
ENmEBEEREMEEKSER  SRAEREHE
RizERERERNLIMBREMT - BREERS
FTECRIEE o

HMRR - BARED [REEROEE |-
SHEMAIGER I MAMBRERCERBREE S
fiAg([EESMAE DRGHNEEUBIREE
AT EEMBHRESEN DEENAAMRRT &
SER_ZE-NFT A=+ AN BIRIAR
HEEZALFENEBRARRESRE Y&
REBRAGIIZ BHER -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

% 3 & B 6 8 5 ()

31 December 2019 —_ZE—Nh&FE+_-_HA=+—H

Basis for Qualified Opinion — Corresponding figures

As detailed in auditor’s report dated 27 March 2019, we were unable to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to satisfy ourselves as to the recoverability
of deposits for other investments on Asia Television Limited (“ATV") (“ATV
Deposits”) and receivables due from ATV (“ATV Receivables”) as at 31
December 2017 because the management of the Group was unable to access
certain financial information or other information in relation to the assets and
liabilities of ATV. This also caused us to be unable to satisfy ourselves as to the
purchase price allocation on acquisition of Star Platinum Enterprises Limited
(“Star Platinum”), which was incomplete as at the end of twelve months after
the date of acquisition. Consequently, we were unable to determine whether
any adjustments or impairment to the ATV Deposits and ATV Receivables as
well as the assets and liabilities obtained from the acquisition of Star Platinum,
was necessary.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the acquisition of ATV by Star
Platinum (the “Acquisition”) was completed, ATV became a subsidiary of the
Group and based on the purchase price allocation of the Acquisition, the
consideration paid by Star Platinum for the Acquisition comprised of the ATV
Deposits and ATV Receivables exceeded the fair value of identifiable assets
and liabilities of ATV and its subsidiaries. The goodwill then arising from
the Acquisition of RMB114,366,000 was assessed to be fully impaired, the
impairment loss was recognised in the consolidated profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

Since opening balances of assets and liabilities affect the determination of
the financial performance and cash flows of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2018, we were unable to determine whether adjustments to
the opening accumulated losses, financial performance and cash flows of
the Group, and related disclosures in the notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements, might be necessary for the year ended 31 December 2018. Our
opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31
December 2018 was qualified accordingly.

Our opinion on the current year’s consolidated financial statements is also
qualified because of the possible effects of these matters on the comparability
of the current year’s figures and the corresponding figures in the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our qualified opinion.

RESRNEXE - HEHF
BWEMR—T-NE=A=- Tt B ZREMKRE
Freed - B BERENEREEREEHETHE
SNEREGRAR(BR])EERBERANTBE
B EMER - WML RERF D MEE R
AR RERMAGEADRNEMIRENRS ([H1]R
Be ) RERDEBFR(TDREEERDR_-F
—tF A=t HAKEE - EIREHEM
BEAEHRNEEERCEARAR([28])EFE
EEOE  FRBEEENXWER B+ @
H R AR IEEEE - Fit - RAIEERESS
AHDRRE R EREKIER - REWKE2MmE
SOEER B BELEMBRIRE

REBEE-_ZT-NEFE+_A=+—RILEE 2K
BOEREE([WEEE])EK - BEKAE B
SEZHBAR  MERKBEEEZEEESR -
ENRRBEEIN2ARE(RREERES RER
FEUWBRF) BB R REMB AR Z A #AIEER
BEZATE EREARBEEEELEZEBARE
114,366,000 T E A2 EURE - HEBERE
BT \F+ZA=t—HILFEZRABZE

7
o °©

HREERBBEZFNEHTE BEEEHE—ZT
—NF+Z A=+ BLFEZHBRARRER
BUEE  BERMABEIRESTARBE_ZT N
FH_A=1t—RLEEYH BXEENFVRFE
1B MBRELBAERE - URRERE W SRR M
EMREREEDEMHE - Bt - HfEEEC
E-N\F+_A=T—HLFENRSPBEHRKE
RREER -

BATHAFENGEMBRRERRERR - T
BN %EFHRERA M ITHRER 2 AFE R RHE

BB LERREETE -

HMERREESFMASBEMN T EETLEL
([BEBBRFER D RTESTE - HARZFE
AN AR B — F AR A REF [ 2
BB FE R BEHERAENEE] 8 - RIEERE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements which indicates that, the Group incurred
a net loss from operations of approximately RMB605,313,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2019 and the Group’s current liabilities exceeded the
current assets by approximately RMB303,331,000 as of 31 December 2019.
These events or conditions, indicate a material uncertainty exists that may cast
significant doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as going concern. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Information in the Annual Report
The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises all the information in
the Company’s 2019 annual report other than the Consolidated Financial

Statements and our auditor’s report thereon (the “Other Information”).

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the
Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion

thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our
responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so, consider
whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated
Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of the Other Information, we are required to report that fact.
As described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section above, we were unable
to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence about the carrying amount of
ATV Deposits and ATV Receivables as at 1 January 2018 and the amount of
impairment of goodwill recognised during the year ended 31 December 2018.
Accordingly, we were unable to conclude whether or not the other information
was materially misstated with respect to these matters.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements as at
and for the year ended 31 December 2019. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

In addition to the matters described in the Material Uncertainty Related to
Going Concern section, we have determined the matters described below to be
the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

5 3 8% B 6 3 5 (4R)

31 December 2019 —_E—hF+_-_HA=+—H

FRRERENERTRERE
ErBRRREBROBAT - HARFIZES
MBEHERME - EBRFIRBE_T-NF+_-A
=t+—BIEHREE EEEELAKEFBE
#AR¥605,313,000T * MIR—F—AF+_H
S SENRDEEBBRBHEENA
FR#303,331,0007T - ZFFHRBERBRFLEE
ATHEERE  Alaesl BEREFELERIBK
BAREERE - ﬁfFﬁE’\J%iﬂzﬂﬁiﬁxﬁt$lﬁf’E fEBY

FHRAWEAMEE
ERmER(EF)FE ifﬁﬁﬂﬁ%% o KA {5
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

% 3 & B 6 8 5 ()

31 December 2019 —_ZE—Nh&FE+_-_HA=+—H

Key Audit Matters — continued

Key audit matter
HERTER

BREETEE- &

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMAET N AHEREA S RETRE

Fair value measurement of movie investments (please refer to Note 26 to the Consolidated Financial Statements)

BN G2 ATEHE (BEHEEHHHFN26)

As at 31 December 2019, the fair value of movie investments was
amounted to approximately RMB60,332,000.

The movie investments mainly represented the investment in
certain movies that the Group is not involved in the production
process or as the distributor.

Such investments were classified as the financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss upon acquisition and are subject to the fair
value measurement at the end of each reporting period. The Group
adopted the income approach to evaluate the fair values of movie
investments as at 31 December 2019.

The fair value measurement required the significant management'’s
judgement and estimates, with respect to the underlying cash flow
projections, particular future revenue of the films.

—hE+-A=+—HB EXREZATFENRARK
60,332,0007T °

*?géixh BEEEY RS2 HEUERRERERBTHZETE
= X/‘C’

EMRARDISE S BARATEN RSB HBAE - AR
EMEMARTATENE © ERERBRORFEEHRER
—2—h&E+-A=+—BZATE-

AHEFEFTEZEREBR S REBIRAFIIRZER 2 AR
) 2 EANE R EHE R AhE o

Our procedures in relation to the fair value measurement
included:

obtaining the valuation report and assessing the
independent valuer’'s competence, capabilities,
independence and objectivity;

assessing the appropriateness and reasonableness of the
valuation methodology and assumptions in determining
the fair value of movie investments and comparing the
source and market data used in underlying assumptions
with reference to the comparable companies or
transactions;

discussing with the management of the Company about
the assumptions used in the cash flow projections based
on our knowledge of the relevant industry, and to
challenge the reasonableness of the key inputs based on
relevant market data where appropriate;

comparing the cash flow projections against the actual
results to assess if there is any inconsistency and discussing
with the management of the Company about the reason
of material variance, where applicable;

checking the accuracy and relevance of the input data and
mathematical accuracy of the valuation calculation and
the underlying data used in the calculation; and

evaluating the sensitivity analysis performed by the
management on the key assumptions and assessing the
potential impacts of a range of possible outcomes.

BMEBEATEFEZEFEHE

WS ERE @ WTEBLGEMZ A8 - 860 - Bk
MR

TEEBTEYREATEZHERARBREGEERA
B WEHBEREAZ SRR R TSEIEE] & L RAF
RRHEITLLR

ENBMEERETE 2 TH# - 82 SREERE &
METRPTA 2 RER - WAEE BN T RN M52
HEBPARBZSEMERBEER

KRS RERRRERERETHLER  AFEREFEE
AA—H2E  WHEBABEATE SAREEENHLY
REREZRZRA

BERABUR 2 ERENARRALE  ARGEHERFES
P 2 ARSI < BB EREE - ]2

A ER B EERETZBREDN - LT E—FT
ARERER 2 BEZE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matters — continued

Key audit matter
BARENSEE

5 3 8% B 6 3 5 (4R)

31 December 2019 —_E—hF+_-_HA=+—H

BEETEE- &

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMHET O HEE R BRETRE

Impairment review of properties, plant and equipment, intangible assets and right-of-use assets (please refer to Notes 16, 18 and 19

to the Consolidated Financial Statements)

WE  BERX

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has
recognised impairment loss on property, plant and equipment,
intangle assets and right-of-use assets of approximately
RMB25,944,000, RMB47,492,000 and RMB93,889,000
respectively, to the consolidated profit or loss.

The management determined the recoverable amounts by using
the income approach, which was calculated based on the present
value of the future cash flows directly generated by these non-
financial assets.

The determination of recoverable amount required the significant
management’s judgement and estimates, with respect to the
underlying cash flow projections, particular the discount rate, and
forecast revenue etc.

BE_T-NE+_A-+t—HLFE FAEENGEGED
¥ BELSME BREEAREREEE ZREBE. WW\E
#25,944,0007T + AR¥47,492,0007T 2 A R#93,889,0007T ©

ERERBBNZEETROERE - MABSERIEZEIENTE
BEERELZARRAEREZRENE -

EE KD ESEEEABERERSRETRR (SR 2R T RIRA
W ze) 2 B A B R f T o

R EIVEENREH#EEEZRIENG (F2HEE BRI 16

18%19)

Our procedures in relation to the impairment review included:

obtaining the valuation report and assessing the
independent valuer’'s competence, capabilities,
independence and objectivity;

assessing the appropriateness and reasonableness of the
valuation methodology and assumptions in determining
the recoverable amounts with reference to the industry
practice;

reviewing the management'’s production plan with budget
cost and other relevant information and evaluating the
management’s target market and business plan with
reference to market conditions;

evaluating and challenging management’s assessment on
the expected distribution revenue to be generated from
those rights based on historical data and our knowledge
on the market and industry;

discussing with the management about the other
assumption used in the cash flow projections and to
challenge the reasonableness of the key inputs including
assessing the reasonableness of the discount rate based
on relevant market data of comparable companies where
appropriate;

checking the accuracy and relevance of the input data and
mathematical accuracy of the valuation calculation and
the underlying data used in the calculation; and

performing sensitivity analysis around the key
assumptionsfor forecast revenue and estimated costs and
considering the extent of change in those assumptions
that would result in impairment.

BMEBARATLEN G2 EFEE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
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31 December 2019 —_ZE—Nh&FE+_-_HA=+—H

Key Audit Matters — continued

Key audit matter

HREER

BEETEE- &

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BN ET N AHBERERA B RETRE

Classification and fair value measurement of derivative financial instruments and convertible bonds (please refer to Note 32 to the

Consolidated Financial Statements)

TR T AR AR ES 2 S RA

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group entered
into a subscription agreement with the substantial shareholder of
the Company, to issue 6% convertible bonds in two phases in an
aggregate principal amount of HK$400,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB362,765,000) at the conversion price of HK$0.1
per conversion share.

The subscription agreement became unconditional upon the
conditions precedents have been all fulfilled on 2 December
2019 (the “Derivative Financial Instrument”) and an amount of
HK$200,000,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB178,017,000)
of the convertible bonds (“Convertible Bonds”) has been issued to
the subscriber on 17 December 2019.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had Derivative Financial
Instrument and liability component of Convertible Bonds with
carrying amounts of approximately RMB 25,529,000 and
RMB126,848,000 respectively. For the year ended 31 December
2019, the Group had recognised loss on Derivative Financial
instrument of approximately RMB100,744,000 in the consolidated
profit or loss and equity component of Convertible Bonds, net of
transaction cost, of approximately RMB 53,028,000 in the equity as
a result of the fair value measurement.

The classification and the fair value measurement of Derivative
Financial Instruments and separate components of the Convertible
Bonds required exercise of significant judgements concerning
the selection of appropriate valuation techniques, key inputs and
assumptions and involved high level of estimation uncertainty.

HE-_Z—NF+=-_A=+—HILFE" SEHE BEQRFEE
BEERET M REE R - A0 MEIZ1T A& 4258 4400,000,0005% 7T (8
ERKARE362,765,0007T) H6% Al AR (E 5 - #IRE AFRKIR
BRRX 5 0.178 7T ©

REBERCRAGHEE—S—NAEF+_A-—B2PEREKAE
Rt (TOTEMB T A ) 200,000,000 7T ( H%?\,@}\Eﬁ%
178,017,0007T) WA R E ([ AT ESR D ER=ZZE—hF+=

A+EEBTTREA -

ATE—NF+-_A=+—H  BEENTLEHETARAE
REHFBEHDNEEESD B4 A ARK25,529,000T kAR
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TATEHE X BEERGABIERTENBEIAY BBYOA
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Our procedures in relation to the classification and the fair
value measurement included:

— understanding the underlying business rationale of the
transactions;

— obtaining and reviewing the terms of the agreement
and other documents in relation to the subscription of
convertible bonds;

— evaluating the assessment performed by the management
of the company on the classification of the convertible
bonds;

— obtaining the valuation report and assessing the
independent valuer’'s competence, capabilities,
independence and objectivity;

— discussing with, and where applicable sought
corroborative supporting information from, the
management of the Company and the independent valuer
engaged by the Company regarding the appropriateness
of the valuation methodologies being adopted and the
reasonableness of key inputs and assumptions used;

— challenging the reasonableness of the key inputs and
assumptions used; and

—  checking the accuracy and relevance of the input data and
mathematical accuracy of the valuation calculation by re-
performing the calculation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matters — continued

Key audit matter
BRENSEE

5 3 8% B 6 3 5 (4R)

31 December 2019 —_E—hF+_-_HA=+—H

BEETEE- &

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNBA N AHBAREAFRETERE

Credit risk assessment on loan receivables (please refer to Note 25 to the Consolidated Financial Statements)

FEWE e 1= Bm g G (B2 Bk & B S &M 25)

As at 31 December 2019, the net carrying amount of loan
receivables amounted to approximately RMB86,405,000. The
Group had recognised loss allowance on loan receivables of
approximately RMB1,959,000 during the year.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk for exposures since initial
recognition by comparing the risk of default occurring over the
expected life.

The Group determines the expected credit losses (“ECLs") taking
into consideration various factors, including the value of asset
proof provided by the borrowers, repayment history, current
creditworthiness as well as subsequent settlements and other
relevant information. The Group considered reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort for this purpose. Such exposures are assessed
individually or collectively by taking into account the quantitative
and qualitative information and also, forward-looking analysis.

The management’s ECLs assessment of the recoverability of its
loan receivables required significant management judgement and
involved high level of uncertainty.

RZZE—NF+_A=+—H8 EBREFRZEAFEHNEARE
86,405,0000T ° ESEERFTARENRERERSERENAR
#1,959,0007T °
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FERERE - TEBEEREMEERIARFE ST -
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ERBHE LS N ZBIEERRE -

Our key procedures to address the matter included:

obtaining the list of the loan receivables as at 31
December 2019 and discussing with the management
of the Group about their evaluation of the background
and financial capability of the borrowers and their credit
assessment that each of the amount was recoverable;

understanding and evaluating the internal control
procedures of credit approvals, ongoing credit quality
assessment and monitored of the loan receivables;

examining the loan credit files and underlying
documentation and other evidence supporting the
repayment records, current creditworthiness and
challenged the management's assessment of the
recoverability of the loan receivables; and

checking subsequent settlement of the individual loan
receivables, if any.

HMREAHEEZ T ERF 2
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

% 3 & B 6 8 5 ()

31 December 2019 —_ZE—Nh&FE+_-_HA=+—H

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the Consolidated Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with the HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) assists the
Directors in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements — continued

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error; design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks; and, obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the Directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the Consolidated Financial Statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to

cease to continue as a going concern.

5 3 8% B 6 3 5 (4R)

31 December 2019 —_E—hF+_-_HA=+—H
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

% 3 & B 6 8 5 ()

31 December 2019 —_ZE—Nh&FE+_-_HA=+—H

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements - continued

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
Consolidated Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the Consolidated Financial Statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Moore Stephens CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hung, Wan Fong Joanne
Practising Certificate Number: P05419

Hong Kong, 6 May 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
RERIRAMZAKRR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_T—hF+_A=+—HILFE

2018
—T-N\F
(Note)
(KiaE)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKFT ARKEFT
Turnover B 7 156,892 166,025
Cost of sales SHE AR (159,221) (263,832)
Gross loss £ (2,329) (97,807)
Other gains/(losses), net Hthlres / (&518 )58 8 16,778 (13,871)
Net loss on financial assets at BRAFEFABRESZ
fair value through profit or loss MISEE 2 B18558 10 (63,611) (43,589)
Impairment loss on property, plant and Y% - BE REER
equipment REEE 16 (25,944) (30,137)
Impairment loss on intangible assets mEE 2 RERE 19 (47,492) (40,683)
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets FRELAE ZRERE 18 (93,889) -
Impairment loss on goodwill AmBZREEE 20 - (114,366)
Impairment loss on interest in an associate — FABE& AT 2 #EE 2 REEE 22 (21,075) (56,798)
Share of loss of an associate DEEE A REIE 22 (11,089) (205,129)
Loss on deemed disposal of an associate RIEH 5 AR ZE1E 22 (21,527) =
Net impairment loss on trade and other B S REMBEKIRRZ
receivables RIEEEFE 24 (7,647) (4,941)
Net impairment loss on loan receivables EWE R 2 BEEIEFE 25 (1,959) (5,349)
Loss on the derivative financial instruments — $74 87§ T A~ 518 32 (100,744) -
Distribution and selling expenses DR EERE (9,759) (31,883)
Administrative and operating expenses TR REERS (109,106) (128,820)
Finance costs BMEKA 9 (122,482) (66,383)
Loss before taxation KR A BT 18 10 (621,875) (839,756)
Income tax credit FTiSHiE % 14 16,562 617
Loss for the year NEEEE (605,313) (839,139)
Other comprehensive (expenses)/income Hb2m(Fx), s
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to FEREZEZH 7 E 1E7
profit or loss: ZHEEA
— exchange differences arising on translation - R & FE 4 7 [ H =58 (408) 28,182
Total comprehensive expense for the year, AEEEEHRZLE
net of income tax (HIBR A58 %) (605,721) (810,957)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTINUED)
RERRAEZEKE R (R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE_ET—"hF+_-_A=+—HILEFE

2018
T\
(Note)
(Htez)
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E ARETT ARKETFT
Loss for the year attributable to: AT (AR E FEE ¢
Owners of the Company ViN/NGIE 2 =N (557,550) (800,530)
Non-controlling interests SRR A (47,763) (38,609)
(605,313) (839,139)
Total comprehensive expense for the year ATEEAFERERS
attributable to: R
Owners of the Company ViN/NGIE 2 =N (566,923) (780,896)
Non-controlling interests IR (38,798) (30,061)
(605,721) (810,957)

Loss per share attributable to owners of the

Company
— Basic and diluted

ARAFHEE ARIGEERER

- BEANEE 15

2019
—ZT—NF

RMB cents
ARES

(7.64)

2018
—ZE-N\F
RMB cents
ARE S

(11.35)

Note:

Wi

AEBER-T-NF—-A—BHEAKETENEaREAR
retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative information is no restated. ~ BHBMBREERFE 1655 - RIEZ L - LBREARTTE
See Note 2(a). Bl o 58 RHizE2(a)

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using the modified
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
RERBEKRE

RMB’000
ARBT T

As at 31 December 2019 R=F—hE+=—_A=+—H

PAONRS]
—E-N\F
(Note)

(Hrat)
RMB’000
ARETT

Non-current assets FEREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE Kk&E 16 3,850 35,779
Investment properties REYHE 17 1,150 1,130
Prepaid lease payments FENFERIE - 384
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 18 376,358 -
Intangible assets B EE 19 60,385 5245, 77,9
Goodwill EES 20 20,441 20,077
Other deposits Hittiz e 21 5,464 5,481
Interest in an associate NG o - 5 22 63,720 118,141
531,368 706,721
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 23 85,937 91,501
Trade and other receivables, deposits B 5 REMEKER - &2
and prepayments MIERIE 24 116,598 217,609
Loan receivables U E =K 25 86,405 100,193
Prepaid lease payments EAHEEHA - 14
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFABEERZ
profit or loss B EE 26 91,693 123,237
Pledged bank deposits BRI TER 27 - 20,620
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR KRR S 27 101,167 173,110
481,800 726,284
Current liabilities RBERE
Trade and other payables B 5 RHEMEMNERR 28 372,698 367,664
Bond payables EfHE S 29 68,613 67,393
Taxation payables FERT AR IR 4,166 7,416
Government grant IEgaRGHE] 24 24
Lease liabilities HEAE 18 2,172 =
Derivative financial instruments PTEMIETA 32 25,529 -
Obligation under finance leases R E T EAIE 30 - 205
Bank loans RITER 31 47,050 90,350
Loans from other financial institutions KEEHMESFEE T EX 31 223,764 220,866
Other borrowings EMEE 31 41,115 165,045
785,131 918,963
Net current liabilities REEEFE (303,331) (192,679)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERARBAR 228,037 514,042
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
weREKRR(R)

As at 31 December 2019 R=ZFE—hE+=—_A=+—H

2019 2018
—T-NEF —E-N\F
(Note)
(Hiat)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSFT AREFT
Non-current liabilities EREBEMSE
Lease liabilities HESE 18 988 =
Obligation under finance leases BhE T E AR 30 - 205
Convertible bonds ]I E 32 126,848 -
Government grant NEgaRGHE] 152 176
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIEAE 33 61,619 76,340
189,607 76,721
Net assets EERE 38,430 437,321
Capital and reserve EXRFE
Share capital R&N 34 648,584 616,617
Reserves s (546,890) (154,822)
Equity attributable to owners of KARERABLES
the Company 101,694 461,795
Non-controlling interests IR HE 55 (63,264) (24,474)
Total equity MR 38,430 437,321
Note: B 5E

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using the modified  AREBER-ZE—h&E—F — BEEBLETBEE X ER
retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative information is not restated.  FB B ME LR FE 1658 - BIFZ T E - LWEER AT E
See Note 2(a). 7 - FFRMIFE2() ©

The consolidated financial statements on pages 85 to 247 were approved and $85F 247 B v 6B BERE R S T4
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 6 May 2020 and are signedon ~ H ANBEEZESH EB BT HUATALTRERE

its behalf by: =
Deng Jun Jie Chan Wai Kit
;WEAR PR {2 £
Co-Chairman and Executive Director Executive Director
RN ITEE HiTEF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

ReHERERx

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B E=T—NF+_A=+—HILLFE

Statutory
surplus
Teserve

Convertible Non-
NEE

capital

Other
reserve

Total
equity

Accumulated
losses

Share Special Translation

reserve

bond equity
reserve

controlling

premium reserve Total interests

B e f

R H

RivaE AR
RMB'000  RMB'000

RMB000

AfbFfE

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB000

Note (i)

At 31 December 2017 as previously reported ~ R=F-t£+-A=1-A
(NBRESR) 616,617 1,114,099 98,731 - = (5,965) 30560 (596,435 1,257,607 41,095 1,298,702

Impact on initial application of Hong Kong BREREAIERSER (B

Financial Reporting Standard (“HKFRS") 9 i Lo 7 = - - - - bl - (15187)  (14916) (125 (15041)
At 1 January 2018 (restated) W-E-NE-B—-R(LE7) 616,617 1,114,099 9,731 - - (5,694) 30,560  (611,622) 1,242,691 40,970 1,283,661
Loss for the year TEEFR - - - - - - - (800,530  (800,530) (38,609)  (839,139)
Other comprehensive income for the year AERZEMZANE

- Exchange differences arising on translation -BEEEVEREE - - - - - 19,634 - - 19,634 8,548 28,182
Total comprehensive income for the year TR 2ANREE - - - - - 19,634 - (800530) (780,8%6)  (30,061) (810,957
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 11) EHBARME1) - - - - - - - = - (35383)  (35,383)
At 31 December 2018 R-B-NE+-B=1-A 616,617 1,114,099 98,731 - - 13,940 30,560 (1,412,152) 461,795 (4474 431321
1 January 2019 Z2-75-R-H
Loss for the year IEEER - - - - - - - (557,550)  (557,550) (47,763  (605313)
Other comprehensive (expenses)/income for the year A4 7 £ 28 (B%) /i

- Exchange differences arising on translation -BEEEVEREE - - - - - (9373) - - (9,373) 8,965 (408)
Total comprehensive expenses for the year REE72ERTLE - - - - - (9,373) - (557550)  (566,923)  (38,798)  (605,721)
Capital contribution from non-controlling interests ~ FEfE iRt & - - - - - - - - - 8 8
Capital contribution arising from initial recognition ~ IARAGTAHBIAES 2

of derivative financial instruments (Note 32) TEWH3) - - - 73,876 - - - - 73,876 - 73,876
Issue of convertible bonds, net of transaction cost ~ E{TAIAREA (B R BMAE)

(Note 32) (i) - - - -5 - - - 5308 - 5308
Issue of consideration shares for movie investments  EFRELTRER (R

(Note 34) (Hit34) 3197 47951 - - - - - - 79918 - 19918

31,967 47,951 - 73,876 53,028 - - - 206,822 8 206,830

At 31 December 2019 R-B-hE+-B=1-H 648,584 1,162,050 98,731 73,876 53,028 4,507 30,560 (1,969,702) 101,694 (63,264) 38,430

89
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)
RENRERR(RA)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BHEZ_ZE—NAF+ZA=+—HILFE

Notes:

90

The special reserve represents the differences between the nominal amount of
the shares issued by the Company and the Group’s former holding company and
the aggregate amount of paid-up capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to
the group reorganisation in 2005 in preparation for the listing of the Company’s
shares, net of subsequent distribution to shareholders.

As disclosed in Note 32, the derivative financial instruments arisen from the
subscription agreement of convertible bonds became unconditional, such
derivative financial instruments are deemed as capital contribution as subscriber is
the substantial shareholder of the Company.

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for foreign investment
enterprises in People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), the Company’s PRC
subsidiaries are required to maintain a statutory surplus reserve fund which is non-
distributable. Appropriation to such reserve is made out of net profit after taxation
of the statutory financial statements of the PRC subsidiaries while the amounts
and allocation basis are decided by their board of directors annually. The statutory
surplus reserve fund can be used to make up prior year losses, if any, and can be
applied in conversion into capital by means of capitalisation issue.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RENeRER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-_T—NF+ZA=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—Th& —TN\%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT AERBFT
Operating activities IS
Loss before taxation KRB A B8 (621,875) (839,756)
Adjustments for: TS IEIEL A EE
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BEREEZ
equipment E518 8 484 8,754
Gain on disposal of intangible assets HEEREE 2 W 8 (11,025) -
Interest income FLEMA 8 (425) (689)
Interest expenses FEFAX 9 122,482 66,383
Amortisation of intangible assets | EE CHH 10 7,394 72,591
Depreciation of property, M - BERBEITE
plant and equipment 10 11,136 20,070
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEEZINE 10 18,793 =
Fair value loss on financial assets at BRATEFABREEREZ
fair value through profit or loss M EEZ A TEES 10 30,818 48,836
Impairment loss on property, plant W - BB REEZRE
and equipment E518 16 25,944 30,137
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets FRAEEEZREERE 18 93,889 -
Impairment loss on intangible assets B EEZREEE 19 47,492 40,683
Impairment loss on goodwill mEZREER 20 - 114,366
Loss on deemed disposal of an associate RIELEBERNF 2 BB 22 21,527 -
Share of profit of an associate DIEEE R AR 22 11,089 205,129
Impairment loss on interest in B A R 2 B R (B 5 18
an associate 22 21,075 56,798
Write—-down of inventories T EHUR 23 19,871 65,545
Reversal of write—down of inventories Bl 17 B HMUR 23 (15,667) (22,948)
Net impairment loss on trade and B 5 R HAEIGRIE 2
other receivables BIEEEFE 24 7,647 4,941
Impairment loss in respect of deposits B EEEZE ZRE
paid for suppliers =Ei] 24 1,182 2,908
Reversal of impairment loss in respect BEEfEEEES
of deposits paid for suppliers ZRERE 24 (4,253) (8,003)
Net impairment loss on loan receivables FEWE R 2 BB F5E 25 1,959 5,349
Loss on the derivative PTEM S TR 2 E518
financial instruments 32 100,744 -
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TE T AE & FRIE 2 5E 10 - 14
Amortisation of government grant IR 478 B o 8 55 (24) (24)
Annual Report | #2019 91



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
REleRER(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE=_T—NF+ZA=+—HLFE

2019 2018
—E-hF —Z—)\F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B3 ARBFT ARBTFT

Operating cash flows before movements LEECEPNILEEERE

in working capital (109,743) (128,916)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BFERLD, () 1,360 (25,310)
Decrease/(increase) in financial assets at BEAFEFABREZUEEE

fair value through profit or loss w4 n) 83,403 (114,171)
Decrease in trade and other receivables B 5 R E A MR TR 90,750 102,486
Decrease in loan receivables R E SRR 13,436 33,385
(Decrease)/increase in deferred revenue WS R ) /38 hn (7,022) 10,999
Decrease/(increase) in bank balances and RITEBARIRERAD /(EM)

cash - segregated accounts — BYRF 64,398 (27,588)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and B 5 NEMERK

other payables CR) /B (24,383) 93,851
Cash generated from/(used in) operations WERES (BH)Z2HRE 112,199 (55,264)
Taxation (paid)/refunded (Bf)/BEROEFHE (3,625) 614
Net cash generated from/(used in) CERIEETES,(EA)

operating activities ZIREFE 108,574 (54,650)
Investing activities BEFEE

Interest received BF 2 8 425 689

Purchase of property, plant and equipment  BEE¥ - HE MK (3,351) (36,510)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEME - WE REREFSE

and equipment IE 617 458

Additions of intangible assets nNBEETEE (5,336) (82,197)

Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets HeEmPEE 7 S ia 7,788 -

Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits RRBERRITER 20,620 17,800

Deposit for other assets HEthWEEZES - (4,603)

Acquisition of an associate W B2 A R) - (109,312)

Acquisition of subsidiaries U R A A - (86,823)
Net cash generated from/(used in) RBEBHES,(FA)

investing activities 2B e HE 20,763 (300,498)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
REReRER(RA)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-_T—NF+ZA=+—HILFE

2019 2018
e —2— N\
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT AERBFT
Financing activities BEES
Interest paid BEFE (102,608) (57,487)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEAEAE(BEENFIE)
(including interest paid) (2,291) =
Proceeds from bank loans, loans from RERITER - At rigE 2
other financial institutions and BERREAMER 211G
other borrowings RIA 115,473 454,281
Proceeds from a non-controlling owners REME R R FEERIEZFTE
of subsidiaries I8 - 52,877
Repayment of bank loans, loans from EERITER it migis
other financial institutions and ZERREMER
other borrowings (255,110) (147,039)
Repayment of finance leases BERMEEE - (184)
Proceeds from issuance of convertible BATRAARE S 2 PTG RUR
bonds (net of transaction cost) (B2 S A) 178,017 =
Repayment of amount due to BBENAERRRIE
a related company (55,257) (7,872)
Net cash (used in)/generated from MEEHA(BAH) EEZ
financing activities REFHE (121,776) 294,576
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash ReRBELEEDEM CRD)
equivalents FER 7,561 (60,572)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—AZReRESEEY 37,295 121,687
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INESTE R BB o B (15,106) (23,820)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December W+—A=+—H2ZHE K
B4 = EY 29,750 37,295
Analysis of the balances of cash and ReRReFEBY 2 ERDT
cash equivalents
Bank balances and cash — general RiTHEBERREE - —REPR
accounts and cash B 27 29,750 37,295
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RERBHRRME

31 December 2019 —_ZE—Nh&FE+_-_HA=+—H

94

GENERAL

Asia Television Holdings Limited was incorporated and registered as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands and acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 40. The
Company'’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the “Corporate Information” of this annual report.

The consolidated financial statements have been presented in Renminbi
(“RMB") and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated. The directors of the Company considered
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") is the functional currency of the Company
since the business transactions, in terms of operating, investing and
financing activities of the Company itself are mainly denominated in
HKS$.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”), which
include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The Group's recorded a net loss of approximately RMB605,313,000
during the year ended 31 December 2019 and it had net current
liabilities of approximately RMB303,331,000 as at 31 December 2019.
These conditions indicate the existence of material uncertainties which
may cast doubt about the Group'’s ability to continue as going concern.
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GENERAL - CONTINUED

Basis of preparation — continued

The directors of the Company have taken the following measures to
mitigate the liquidity pressure and to improve its financial position:

(i) Actively negotiating with lenders and other financial institutions to
renew loans that have fallen due;

(i) Implementing comprehensive policies to monitor cash flows
through cutting costs and capital expenditure;

(iiiy  Exploring the possibility of disposing certain non-core assets;

(iv)  Soliciting for further financing arrangements which include
placing of new shares to new potential investors;

(v) Negotiating to extend two of the loans from other financial
institutions (Note 31(c)(i)) and other borrowings (Note 31(e)(i)).

(vi)  Obtained a financial undertaking and financial support from a
substantial shareholder of the Company who is also a director of
the Company; and

(vii) Obtained a new credit facilities of not less than HK$200,000,000
which is effective for a period of 17 months from the reporting date.

Based on the Group’s cash flow projections, taking into account of
effectiveness and feasibility of the above measures covering a period
of twelve month from the end of the reporting period prepared by the
management, the directors of the Company consider the Group would
be able to finance its operations and to meet its financial obligations
as and when they fall due within the forecast period. Accordingly,
the consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to operate as a going concern, adjustments
would have to be made to write down the carrying value of the Group'’s
assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any future liabilities
that may arise and to re-classify non-current assets and liabilities as
current assets and liabilities. The effects of these adjustments have not
been reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments and
investment properties, which are measured at fair value as explained in
the accounting policies set out below.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

i & M B8] & W EE (18)

31 December 2019 —_E—hF+_-_HA=+—H

—REE-&
mREE - &
ARAFEFS RO THEARERDES

B Rk HE SO -
() MERERARLMSBEERY
NEED A

(i)  Ehe2E N BEEBEDRK A RER
SHAERRSRE

(i) JBREEETIHFRLEEMAREIL

vy MEE—SRELHE  BEAMNEL
REEBREHED

(v) HEREREPREREELGSEERE
ZEFR(FE31()) R A EE (Y 5E
31(e)(0)) °

(vi) BARA-BEIERR(TIFRARF]
ER)RRUBAERIBIE &

(vii)  BUET414200,000,000/8 T2 F = E
BE - BRE BERETAE17EA -

AEREEREERLERE LB mAORRRAT
PP AR B AR BN E HE BARE + =8 A 5
FMRRSRERR  ARFAEZTRRAEE
AR P AREEBREESWIETT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
i 8RR M (R)

31 December 2019 —_ZE—Nh&FE+_-_HA=+—H

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs

96

(a) Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs - effective
1 January 2019

The Group has applied for the first time, the following new and
revised HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA which is effective for the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the annual period
beginning on 1 January 2019.

(i)

HKFRS 16 Leases

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS 17 Leases (“HKAS
17"), and the related interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply
HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified as
leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease and not apply
this standard to contracts that were not previously identified
as containing a lease. Therefore, the Group has not
reassessed contracts which already existed prior to the date
of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1
January 2019, the Group applies the definition of a lease in
accordance with the requirements set out in HKFRS 16 in
assessing whether a contract contains a lease.

As a lessee

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively with
the cumulative effect recognised at the date of initial
application, 1 January 2019.

2. BRANIREER2ERTH

]
(a)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
8RB RN (R

31 December 2019 —_E—hF+_-_HA=+—H

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs
— CONTINUED
(a) Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs - effective
1 January 2019 - continued

(i) HKFRS 16 Leases — continued

As a lessee — continued
When applying the modified retrospective approach under

HKFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the following

practical expedients to leases previously classified as

operating leases under HKAS 17, on lease-by-lease basis, to

the extent relevant to the respective lease contracts:

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for leases with lease term ends within 12
months of the date of initial application;

excluded initial direct costs from measuring the right-
of-use assets at the date of initial application;

applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases
with a similar remaining terms for similar class of
underlying assets in similar economic environment.
Specifically, discount rate for certain leases of
properties was determined on a portfolio basis; and

used hindsight based on facts and circumstances as
at date of initial application in determining the lease
terms of certain leases of properties for the Group’s
leases with extension and termination options.

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases previously

classified as operating leases, the Group has applied

incremental borrowing rates of the relevant group entities

at the date of initial application. The weighted average

incremental borrowing rate applied by the relevant group
entity is 4.03%.

2. BAHITREER2ERBYHE
HEEA - &

(a) HMHATRBEER2EBYHK
BEEA-R-B-hF—-A

—H
(i)

Annual Report | 32019

EN—-E
BB EHREEREI65

HE-&
TERAA — &
FOBIERS 8 R BB 5 1R 5 8
F165A TS TIB MIAR -
AR RE AR EEER AR
BEBEHEAF 7RI FRE
¢HEAREHEANABNE
BRI T A TR %

(i) BEIHEHARERER
B HEET 1218 A AR
HE®REREEE N

HRE:

(i) MREREBBHAFAEESA
& EE R BR ¥ 00 BB K
7N

HERUKERE BN
ARE 51 48 B & 2 BRI #R H0
RAEACHEEEASRAE
—BARE - BRIE BT
Y E MR R TR

BEEETE K

(iii)

RENERERBHNE
ERBEAREREEAE
B EEE R R IR ERE
BETYEESHAELS -

(iv)

BRI DB AR EHENHER
REERER  AEEDEAR
BREREHEREEERNE
BRERFE - HASEERME
FRE INtEF BB ERN KA
4.03% °

7/



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
i 8RR M (R)

31 December 2019 —E—hFE+_-_A=+—H

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs 2. FERHITIRKBHMZEBEE

— CONTINUED HREER &
(a) Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs — effective (a) EAFTIRLERZ2ERBMK
1 January 2019 - continued WREERA-R-ZF—NF—A
—BAEM—&E
(i) HKFRS 16 Leases - continued (i) BBHBHREEREI165
HE-&
As a lessee — continued tERAMA — &
At
1 January 2019
RZZ—NF
—H—H
RMB’000
ARKFT
Operating lease commitments disclosed as at 31 RZZ-—NF+ZA=+—H
December 2018 B 58 B 48 T B AR 4,105
Less: Practical expedient — leases with lease W AITTREE A - HER
term ending within 12 months from BAEABER12EAR
the date of initial application HERIEE (912)
Effect from discounting at incremental BER_Z—h&—HA—H
borrowing rate as at 1 January 2019 ZIREBEARNNEBR 2 ZE (152)
Lease liabilities discounted at relevant incremental RZT—NE—A—BERBENK
borrowing rates relating to operating leases AR S 165k R FERR
recognised upon application of HKFRS 16 as at 1 KEHEEENIREEEE
January 2019 ERFERYHEZ2HERE 3,041
Add: Obligations under finance leases recognised at m: R=ZFE-—N\F+=-A=+—H
31 December 2018 TR A Bl & M E A 410
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 —WF—A—HB0HEEER 3,451
Analysed into RATERETOM
Current mE 1,479
Non-current FERED 1,972

3,451
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs
— CONTINUED
(a) Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs - effective
1 January 2019 - continued

(i) HKFRS 16 Leases — continued
As a lessee — continued

The carrying amount of right-of-use assets for own use as at
1 January 2019 comprises the following:

Right-of-use assets relating to operating

w8 MEE &M GE)

31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

2. BAMIREERNZERM
WA - &

() BMFTREBER 2B BB

BEEA-R-B—NF—F

—BEXR-&
(i) BEUBHEERFE165
HE-&

EREMA—E&
R=ZF—h&F—HF—H8  {E68H
RpzERREEZ REERE
LATR&IA -

Right-of-use

assets

EREEE
RMB’000

ARET T

ERE BB HREERF16551&

leases recognised upon application of HRELEHER BN

HKFRS 16 EREEE 3,041
Reclassified from prepaid lease payments and & 8118 & 38 R\ & B

intangible assets ik (a) 476,205
Amounts included in property, BEAEB S ERE175%

plant and equipment under HKAS 17 SAYE  BERRENSHE

— Assets previously under finance leases —ERIRBMEREE THNEE (b) A73

479,721

(€)] Upfront payments for leasehold lands in the PRC and
premium over prepaid lease payment in Hong Kong for own
used properties were classified as prepaid lease payments as
at 31 December 2018. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the
prepaid lease payments and intangible assets amounting
to approximately RMB398,000 and RMB475,807,000
respectively, were reclassified to right-of-use assets.

(b) In relation to assets previously under finance leases, the
Group recategorised the carrying amounts of the relevant
assets which were still under lease as at 1 January 2019
amounting to approximately RMB475,000 as right-of-use
assets. In addition, the Group reclassified the obligations
under finance leases of approximately RMB205,000 and
RMB205,000 to lease liabilities as current and non-current
liabilities respectively at 1 January.

(a) R=ZZ—N\F+=ZA=+—
B AEzAE LB
RERBESZERNMEZE
NEERERES EABANM
HERE  REABBSHE
wEERFEI165 % 0 AN
HERBREFEED AL
A E % 398,000 T 2 A R #
475,807,000 E ¥ DA AE
FRREEE -

(b) HEAMNBMEMSETINEE
msE ' AEEER=_F—N
F—A—BMEREBRTZ
FHEENEREEEHNARE
475,000 T E¥ 5 8 A0 A E
BE- M R—A—H K
EEERERERENARE
205,0007T & A & # 205,000
TEHHEEHERE XD
BB RTRE RIEREB AL -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
i 8RR M (R)

31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs 2. FERHITIRKBHMZEBEE

— CONTINUED HREER &
(a) Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs - effective (a) EMFITIRBBR2EBUE
1 January 2019 - continued BEEB-R=-TF—-NE—A
—BAEM—&E
(ii) Interest in an associate (i) REELAZEZ
The associate applied the practical expedients to the ZEE N R E AR ST
leases previously classified as operating lease under ERFEN TR B AKESHE
HKAS 17, and elected not to recognise right-of-use assets EREARTREE  WEBETD
and lease liabilities for their leases with lease terms ends BAEBRERERABHR(ANI=ZZ
within 12 months of the date of initial application (i.e. 1 —hE—A—R)#EF12BAR
January 2019). Such application has had no impact on the HEROEESEREREEELHE
consolidated financial statements of the associate and of the EE1E - AR RS2 S
Group. RAIRAREE 2 R E R E

PRAEM R

The following adjustments were made to the amounts recognised in R-ZE—h&E— A —BHHKEETHEMR
the consolidated statement of financial position at 1 January 2019. Line MARERANESHEEELEUATHAE - &
items that were not affected by the changes have not been included. THEEZHYENEE VY RBIEER °

Carrying Carrying
amounts amounts
previously under
reported at HKFRS 16
31 December at 1 January
PAONES] Adjustments 2019
N

—A—A

AT BEE BTG
—E-N\&E %A
+=-A=1+—H 16518
WERIREE R HERE (B
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AEETT AREFT AEBTT

Non-current Assets FREEE

Property, plant and equipment ME - BE KRG 35,779 (475) 35,304
Prepaid lease payments BNEER 384 (384) S
Right-of-use assets BREEE - 479,721 479,721
Intangibles assets BREE 525,729 (475,807) 49,922
Current Assets RBEE

Prepaid lease payments EREERE 14 (14) =
Current Liabilities nBEE

Lease liabilities HEAE = (1,479) (1,479)
Obligations under finance leases RMEREAE (205) 205 =
Non-current Liabilities kRBEE

Lease liabilities HEAE = (1,972) (1,972)
Obligations under finance leases MEREHAE (205) 205 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REREERERME (R

31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs 2. FERHITIRKBHMZEBE
— CONTINUED WEER — &
(b) New and revised HKFRSs not yet adopted (b) MAREMZHFHITRLERZE
BB IR S 2 B

Effective for annual
reporting periods

beginning on or after
LA B il 2 12 F R
A 2 3R B AR

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Amendments
BB R EERNEIR(LIEET) 2185

HKAS 1 (Revised) and HKAS 28 Amendments

BRERTEFR(EERT) KBS E#ERIE28

A
Conceptual Framework For
Financial Reporting 2018

WS RE B RMESE2018

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

ARG REB IR RE G ERIESR 2 ER]

HKFRS 17
BAMBRELME1TH

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

N

BEUBREAERE 105 LB B S EL
F285R 2 ERT

Definition of a Business

EBEER

Definition of Material

EANER

Revised Conceptual Framework
For Financial Reporting
MRS e RT LS AEZR

Definition of Material

EWN: I

Insurance Contracts

REEH

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture

REFREBENRNEEREMNEE
B E AR

1 January 2020
—ZE_TE—H—H

1 January 2020

—ZT-FTF—A—H

1 January 2020

1 January 2020
—ZE_ZTF—H—H

1 January 2021
—ZT-—%—H—H

To be determined

FEE

AEBEE R ERA AT RE
BERZEEMB RS EANHBE
2 -JBpA/L ESHARRBRL
AT R AR BB BB & R
RS BERB RS - MRAZS
el RBIER 2 BER M B HE LR
AUREAEBNGSMBHRREL
BEARE -

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the related
impact of adopting the above new and revised HKFRSs. So far,
it has concluded that the above new and revised HKFRSs will be
adopted at the respective effective dates and the adoption of
them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
i 8RR M (R)

31 December 2019 — & —

102

i

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies are set out below:

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:

- the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the

investee;

- rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

- the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group losses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and

cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Basis of consolidation - continued

When the Group losses control of a subsidiary, it (i) derecognises the
assets and liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the
date when control is lost, and (ii) recognises the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received, with any resulting difference being
recognised as a gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to the Group.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the combined consolidated
statements of financial position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests
in the results of the Group are presented on the face of the combined
consolidated statements of comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the owners of the Company.

Business combination and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred in a business combination is measured
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Group elects whether to measure non-
controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs
are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Business combination and goodwill - continued
When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value
at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains control),
and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in the consolidated

income statement.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability that is a financial instrument and within
the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
either recognised in profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive
income. If the contingent consideration is not within the scope of
HKAS 39, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate HKFRS.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
and subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests
in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. If, after assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately
in income statement as a bargain purchase gain.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the
end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs, the Group
reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting
is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the
measurement period, or additional assets or liabilities are recognised,
to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that
existed as of the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the
amounts recognised as of that date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Business combination and goodwill - continued

After initial recognition, goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any, and is presented separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill
as at 31 December. For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
is allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units (“CGU") (or
groups of CGU) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those CGU or groups of CGU. Impairment is
determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the CGU (or group
of CGU) to which the goodwill relates. If the recoverable amount of the
CGU (or group of CGU) is less than its carrying amount, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the CGU (or group of CGU) and then to the other assets of
the CGU on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset
in the CGU. Any impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in subsequent periods.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a CGU (or group of CGU) and part
of the operation within that CGU is disposed of, the goodwill associated
with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the CGU retained.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

In the Company'’s statement of financial position, interests in subsidiaries
are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and

receivable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Associate and joint venture

An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant influence,
which is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decision of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists
only when decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

An interest in an associate or joint venture is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method, less any
impairment losses, unless it is classified as held for sale. Adjustments
are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may
exist. Under the equity method, the investment is initially recorded at
cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group's share of the acquisition-
date fair value of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of
the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the
post-acquisition change in the Group’s share of the investee’s net assets
and any impairment loss relating to the investment. Any acquisition-
date excess over cost, the Group’s share of the post- acquisition, post-
tax results of the investees and any impairment losses for the year are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the
Group's share of the post-acquisition post- tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

When the Group'’s share of losses exceeds its investment in the associate
or the joint venture, the Group’s interest is reduced to zero and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the Group’s interest is the
carrying amount of the investment under the equity method together
with the Group’s long-term interests that in substance form part of the
Group's net investment in the associate or the joint venture.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Associate and joint venture - continued

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associate and joint venture are eliminated to the extent
of the Group’s interest in the investee, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which
case they are recognised immediately in the profit or loss. Goodwill
arising from the acquisition of associate or joint venture is included as
part of the Group’s interest in an associate or joint venture.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
(other than construction in progress) are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment other than properties under construction
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using straight-
line method, as follows:

Buildings Over the estimated useful lives of 30 years

Leasehold improvements Over the remaining life of the lease but
not exceeding 3 years

Furniture, fixtures and 10% - 33':%
computer equipment

Production equipment 20%

Motor vehicles 20%

Right-of-use assets The lease term

Plant and machinery 10%

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Property, plant and equipment - continued

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply
or administrative purposes are carried at cost less any recognised
impairment loss. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

Right-of-use assets for buildings are depreciated over their expected
useful lives on the same basis as owned. However, when there is no
reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained by the end of the
lease term, assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and
their useful lives.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation. An investment property acquired in a
business combination are initially recognised at their fair value at the
acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost). Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects
market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the consolidated income statement in the year
in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the consolidated income statement in the year
of the retirement or disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Intangible assets

Film rights and licence fees

Film rights and licence fees are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. It comprised
(i) costs incurred to produce or acquire programme rights for the Group
to broadcast related programmes on the Group’s Over-The-Top (“OTT")
platform and (ii) costs incurred to acquire or licence the film rights for
the Group to broadcast or distribute/sublicence related films on OTT or
other platforms or re-film, are capitalised as “Intangible assets”.

The useful life of the intangible that arises from contractual or other
legal rights shall not exceed the period of contractual or other legal
rights, but may be shorter depending on the period over which the entity
expects to use the asset.

The Group amortises the costs to reflect the expected pattern of
consumption of expected future economic benefits. Film rights and
licence fees related to OTT platform are amortised based on estimated
viewing patterns. The amortisation is on an accelerated basis as the
Group typically expects more upfront viewings at the initial periods
after commencement of viewing. For the other film rights and licence
fees, the amortisation commences when the Group expects to use
the asset to derive the economic benefits. The estimated useful lives
and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Other payments made in advance or in arrears of film right and licence
fees recognised are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position as “Trade and other receivables, deposits and prepayments” or
“Trade and other payables”.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are
measured at the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised. An
impairment loss is made when there has been a change in the estimate
used to determine the recoverable amount and the carrying amount
exceeds the recoverable amount.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Intangible assets — continued

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised at their
fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, other intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for other intangible
asset with finite useful life is provided on a straight-line basis over its
estimated useful life.

Other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised.
The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed
annually to determine whether indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from being
indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Leasing

Definition of a lease (upon application of HKFRS 16
in accordance with transition in Note 2)

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply HKFRS 16 to
contracts that were previously identified as leases applying HKAS 17
and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease and not apply this standard to contracts that were not previously
identified as containing a lease. Therefore, the group has not reassessed
contracts which already existed prior to the date of initial application.

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for

consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1 January 2019,
the Group applies the definition of a lease in accordance with the
requirements set out in HKFRS 16 in assessing whether a contract

contains a lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Leasing — continued

Definition of a lease (upon application of HKFRS 16
in accordance with transition in Note 2) — continued
For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application, the group
assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based on the definition
under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16
in accordance with transition in Note 2)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract
For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate
stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
leases of properties that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. It
also applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another systematic basis
over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

3 the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement date,

less any lease incentives received;
3 any initial direct costs incurred by the group; and

° an estimate of costs to be incurred by the group in dismantling
and removing the underlying assets, restoring the site on which
it is located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Leasing — continued

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16
in accordance with transition in Note 2) — continued

Right-of-use assets — continued
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any

remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the group is reasonably certain to obtain
ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of the lease term
are depreciated from commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED
Leasing — continued
The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16
in accordance with transition in Note 2) — continued

Lease liabilities — continued
The lease payments include:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially
measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual

value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably
certain to exercise the option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by interest
accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) whenever:

° the lease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment
of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the related lease
liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes in market rental rates
following a market rent review, in which cases the related lease
liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments
using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Leasing — continued

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16
in accordance with transition in Note 2) — continued

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the
right to use one or more underlying assets; and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in scope
and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone price to
reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.

The Group as a lessee (prior to 1 January 2019)

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease,
the group remeasures the lease liability based on the lease term of the
modified lease by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities and lease
incentives from lessor by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or non-lease components,
the Group allocates the consideration in the modified contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the
lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.

Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.
All other leases are classified as operating leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Leasing — continued

The Group as a lessee (prior to 1 January 2019) -
continued

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets at
their fair value or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease
payments. The corresponding lease commitment is shown as a liability.
Lease payments are analysed between capital and interest. The interest
element is charged to profit or loss over the period of the lease and
is calculated so that it represents a constant proportion of the lease
liability. The capital element reduces the balance owed to the lessor.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term, except where another systematic basis is
more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from
the leased asset are consumed.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is calculated using the first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is
recognised as an expense in the period in which the related revenue
is recognised. The amount of any write down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense
in the period the write down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which

the reversal occurs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date/settlement date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or

convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value
except for trade receivables arising from contracts with customers which
are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15 since 1 January
2018. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts and payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the

net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest/dividend income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business are presented as revenue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED
Financial assets
The Group assesses the classification and measurement of a financial
asset based on the contractual cash flows characteristics of the asset and
the Group's business model for managing the asset.

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective

is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the group manages together and has a recent

actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging
instrument.

w8 M8 &M (E)

31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

E‘Eggﬁﬂ% . IIE

MBEE
AEERBAENANRS RENBRALBEE
BENEBEATEABEEG SRR E -

MBEEEN T BERGENE

mEA T EHEERRBHEK AN ENTEE
=

s REREBRATHEZHBEE -
MEFENENRZERTRREHNRS

A
nE &

I

s ARHOBRFREERHELEZRERE
MER/INAERAREERSZHME -

B B A B Rk R AT E AR
e

& ToHERM - RIMBEET D BRRHE

BE

. BANEEEMMUREMALE ;5%

o RUIRERE - EAAEEXRER
RGBT AMAH—BH - X
ABERENGTBERER %

o EHEYFEEREREHNTALERN
PTETH ©

Annual Report | 32019 117



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
i 8RR M (R)

31 December 2019 —_ZE—Nh&FE+_-_HA=+—H

118

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Financial assets — continued

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets — continued

(i)

(ii)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method
for financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost.
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired
(see below). For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset
from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at
amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI are measured
at FVTPL.

The Group has certain investments in movie projects which entitles
the Group to receive a fixed and/or variable income based on
the Group’s investment amount and/or expected rate of return
as specified in the respective film investment agreements. All
movie investments which give rise to cash flows that are not
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding are stated at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “other gains and losses” line
item.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses (the
“ECL") on financial assets which are subject to impairment under HKFRS
9 (including trade receivables, loan receivables and other receivables).
The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes

in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default
events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In contrast,
12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that
is expected to result from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the
group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables (except
for receivable from margin clients) and contract assets. The ECL on these
assets are assessed collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance equal
to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, the group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since

initial recognition.

For receivables from cash clients and margin clients, the Group considers
there has been a significant increase in credit risk when the clients
cannot meet the margin call requirement and uses the loan-to-collateral
value (“LTV") to make it assessment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue cost
or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when

assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit

rating;

o significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due, unless the group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED
Financial assets — continued
Impairment of financial assets — continued

(i)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk — continued

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk
on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the debt instrument is determined to have low credit
risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of default, ii) the borrower has
a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term and iii) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash
flow obligations. The group considers a debt instrument to have
low credit risk when it has an internal or external credit rating of
‘investment grade’ as per globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used
to identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers that default has occurred when a financial
asset is more than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more appropriate, except for the
following businesses:

(@)  Money lending
The Group considers that default has occurred when the
borrowing is more than 2 years past due.

(b)  Securities investment
The Group considers that default has occurred when there is
significant financial difficulty if the issuer.

(c)  Securities brokerage services and margin finance
The Group considers that default of trade receivables
has occurred when all collateral has been sold and the
outstanding balances are not guaranteed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued
(if)  Credit-impaired financial assets

(iv)

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of
default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about
the following events:

(a)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

(b)  abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(c)  the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)

would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables,
when the amounts are over one year past due, whichever
occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED
Financial assets — continued
Impairment of financial assets — continued

v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there
is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL
reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure the
constituents of each group continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit impaired, in
which case interest income is calculated based on amortised cost
of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying amount,
with the exception of trade receivables where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance account.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds which entitle the holder to convert the bonds into
a fixed number of equity instruments at a fixed conversion price are
regarded as compound instruments consist of a liability and an equity
component. At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component
is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-
convertible debt. The fair value of any derivative features embedded
in the compound instruments is included in the liability component.
The difference between the proceeds of issue of the convertible bonds
and the fair values assigned to the liability component, representing
the embedded option for the holder to convert the bonds into equity
of the Group, is included in equity as convertible bonds equity reserve.
The liability component is carried as a liability at amortised cost using
the effective interest method until extinguished on conversion or
redemption. The derivative components are measured at fair value with
gains and losses recognised in profit or loss.

Issue of convertible bonds as share-based payment
transactions

If the identifiable consideration received by the Company appears to be
less than the fair value of the convertible bonds issued, the Company
measures the unidentifiable services received (to be received) as the
difference between the fair value of the convertible bonds issued and
that of the identifiable consideration received, and the difference is
recognised in the profit or loss.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity
components of the convertible bonds based on their relative carrying
amounts at the date of issue. The portion relating to the equity
component is charged directly to equity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Financial liabilities and equity instruments -
continued

Financial liabilities

The Group'’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, bond
payables, bank loans, loans from other financial institutions and other
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to
their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its non-financial assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset
belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual CGU, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of CGU for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Impairment of non-financial assets — continued
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a CGU)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a CGU) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, to the extent that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a CGU) in prior years.

A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.
Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue when it transfers control of a product or
service to a customer. Revenue excludes amounts collected on behalf of
third parties.

The Group recognises revenue from the following major sources:

- Sales of goods from processing of fabrics and trading of fabrics
and garment products;

- Services income from subcontracting services on fabrics

processing;
- Income from entertainment and media services;
- Interest income from loan to customers;

- Commission and service income from underwriting, placing and

brokerage and related services; and

- Interest income from margin financing.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Revenue recognition - continued

Sales of goods

The Group sells finished fabrics to customers. Revenue is recognised
when control of the goods is transferred to the customers being when
the goods are shipped to the customer’s specific location (delivery).
Following delivery, the customer has full discretion over the manner of
distribution and price to sell the goods, has the primary responsibility
when onselling the goods and bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in
relation to the goods. A receivable is recognised by the Group when the
goods are delivered to the customer as this represents the point in time
at which the right to consideration becomes unconditional, as only the
passage of time is required before payment is due.

Subcontracting fee

The Group carries out processing, printing and subcontracting services
to fabrics provided by customers. Such services are recognised as a
performance obligation satisfied over time. Revenue is recognised for
these services based on the stage of completion of the contract.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of
income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income from sale of securities
Income from sale of equity and debt securities is recognised on a trade
date basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Revenue recognition - continued

Commission income for security brokerage

Commission and brokerage income are recognised at the rate agreed
in the contract with the customers at the point when the transaction of
securities trading is completed.

Commission income for underwriting and placing
The Group provides placing or public offer underwriting services to
customers under which the Group agrees to subscribe or procure
subscribers to subscribe for (i) agreed number of shares pursuant to
a placing or (ii) shares which are not taken up under public offer.
Commission income is recognised at a point in time upon the placing
shares and public offer shares have been successfully subscribed by
sufficient number of investors. Commission income will be received
immediately based on the rate agreed in underwriting agreement with
the issuers upon the placing and offering shares subscribed.

Income for securities related handling service

The Group provides securities related handling services on collection of
dividends or dividends in kind and physical stock handling for customers’
securities under their custody. Handling services income is recognised at
the point of time when services provided and fee received based on the
listed price of relevant services notified to the customers.

Subscription income

The Group provides subscription services on its Over-The-Top (“OTT")
platform. Subscription income is recognised over time based on the
subscription period provided to its customers.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Revenue recognition - continued

Advertising income

The Group provides advertisement design and production and
advertising services to its customers. Advertising income is recognised
over time when the Group's performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to date. Significant judgment is
required in determining whether the terms of the Group's contracts with
customers in relation to advertisement products with no alternative use
create an enforceable right to payment for the group. The group has
considered the relevant local laws that apply to those relevant contracts.
Based on the assessment of the directors of the company, the terms
of the relevant advertisement design and production contracts do not
create an enforceable right to payment for the Group after taking into
consideration of the Group’s right to be paid for work done to date
if the customer were to cancel the contract before the order was fully
completed. Accordingly, the revenue from advertisement design and
production is considered to be performance obligation satisfied over

time.

Licence fee income of trademarks

The Group licenses its trademarks to its customers in specific period.
Licence fee income of trademarks is recognised over time when
customers have rights to assess the its trademarks.

Licence fee income of film rights

The Group licenses its film rights to its customers. Licence fee income of
film rights is recognised over time when customers have rights to use its
film rights.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than
termination benefits) that are expected to be settled wholly before
twelve months after the end of the annual reporting period in which the
employees render the related service. Short term employee benefits are
recognised in the year when the employees render the related service.

Retirement benefit costs

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are members of
a state-managed retirement benefit plan operated by the municipal
government of the PRC where a group entity operates. The subsidiaries
are required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs to the
retirement benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefit plan is to make the
specified contributions.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ monthly relevant
income, subject to a cap of HK$30,000. Contributions to the plan vest
immediately.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for the intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from ‘Loss before taxation’ as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Taxation - continued

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when
they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for business combination.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not re-translated.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Foreign currencies — continued

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the
assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange
rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Income and expense
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuated significantly during the year, in which case
the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of translation reserve.
Such translation differences are reclassified to profit or loss from equity
in the period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group'’s
entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a disposal
involving loss of joint control over a jointly controlled entity that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or
loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short-term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal
or constructive) as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect
the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future uncertain events not wholly within the control of the Group are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of

economic benefits is remote.
Related parties
(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to

the Company if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Company;

(i) has significant influence over the Company; or

(iii)  is a member of key management personnel of the Company
or the Company's parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED
Related parties — continued
(b)  An entity is related to the Company if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Company are members of the same
group;

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or an associate or joint venture of the other entity of which
the other entity is a member);

The entity and the Company are joint ventures of the same
third party;

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Company or an entity related to
the Company;

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to the
reporting entity or to the parent of the report entity.

Close member of the family of a person are those family members who

may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their

dealings with the entity.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment of goodwill and non-financial
assets

As at 31 December 2019, the Group and the Company have the
following other non-financial assets (other than film rights and licence
fees):

- property, plant and equipment

- right-of-use assets

- intangible assets

- interest in an associate

- investments in subsidiaries

The Group reviews its goodwill and other non-financial assets (other
than film rights and licence fees) for impairment and/or indications of

impairment at end of each reporting period according to accounting
policies set out in Note 3.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - CONTINUED

Estimated impairment of goodwill and non-financial
assets — continued

Determining whether goodwill and other non-financial assets are
impaired requires an estimation of the recoverable amount of the CGUs
to which non-financial assets have been allocated. The recoverable
amount calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the CGUs and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value or recent transaction prices of similar
assets when they are available and depreciation replacement cost when
appropriate for assets. Where the estimation of recoverable amount is
different, there will be a material impact to the Group's profit or loss.

Impairment of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price for inventories, less all the
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sales.
The management reviews the inventory ageing listing on a periodic basis
for those aged inventories. This involves comparison of carrying value
of the aged inventory items with the respective net realisable value. The
purpose is to ascertain whether allowance is required to be made in
the consolidated financial statements for any obsolete and slow moving
items. Although the Group carried periodic review on the net realisable
value of inventory, the actual realisable value of inventory is not known
until the sale was concluded.

Provision of ECL for trade receivable

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for the trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on historical loss as groupings
of various debtors that have similar loss patterns. The provision
matrix is based on the Group's historical default rates taking into
consideration forward-looking information that is reasonable and
supportable available without undue costs or effort. At every reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are reassessed and changes
in the forward-looking information are considered. In addition, trade
receivables with significant balances and credit impaired are assessed for
ECL individually.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY — CONTINUED

Allowance for ECLs on loan receivables

The allowance for ECLs on the loan receivables are estimated based
on assumption about the risk of default and credit risk of respective
receivables. The loss allowance amount is measured at difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows with the consideration of expected future credit loss
of the respective receivables. Such assessment involves high degree of
estimation and uncertainty. When the actual future cash flows are less
or more than expected, a material ECLs or material reversal of ECLs may
arise, accordingly.

The following significant judgements are required in applying the
accounting requirements for measuring the ECL:

Significant increase of credit risk

As explained in Note 3, ECL are measured as an allowance equal to
12-m ECL or lifetime ECL for respective receivables. An asset will use
lifetime ECL when its credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition. HKFRS 9 does not define what constitutes a significant
increase in credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset
has significantly increased, the Group takes into account quantitative
and qualitative reasonable and supportable forward looking information
including available customers’ historical data and existing and forecast
market conditions.

Model and assumptions used

ECLs on the loan receivables which are not assessed to be credit impaired
are estimated using a calculation model using observable data as at
the end of the reporting period, including the difference between (i)
the effective interest rates of interest charged by the Group for similar
categories of the loans; and (ii) the risk-free rate, and adjusted by
forward looking information, for example, GDP growth, etc. Judgements
is applied in identifying the most appropriate ECL model as well as for
determining the assumption used in the model, including those relate to
key drivers of credit risk.

The Group's allowance for ECLs on loan receivables may also take
into account the subsequent settlement, collateral valuation and the
management’s judgement on the effectiveness and marketability
of the collateral properties and customers’ capability of payment at
the estimated valuation and the actual valuation may differ from the
estimation.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The information

about the ECL and the Group's trade and loan receivables are disclosed
in Note 6.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - CONTINUED

Estimated impairment loss on film rights and licence
fees

The management of the Company regularly reviews the recoverability
of the Group’s film rights with reference to its intended use and
current market environment. Appropriate impairment for estimated
irrecoverable amounts are recognised in consolidated profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired. In determining
whether impairment on film rights is required, the Group takes into
consideration the film rights and licence agreements entered into by
the Group, if any, both internal and external market information, for
example, cash flow projections based on expected popularity of the
respective titles, the expected production and distribution costs budget
and the general economic conditions of the relevant market. Impairment
loss is recognised in the period in which the recoverable amount is less
than the carrying amount.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

The best evidence of fair value is the published price quotations in
an active market. In the absence of such information, the fair value
is determined by an independent professional valuer. Such valuation
is subject to limitations of the valuation models adopted and the
uncertainty in estimates used by management in the assumptions.
Should the estimates and the relevant parameters of the valuation
models be changed, there would be material changes in the fair value of
certain financial instruments without quoted prices.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of liability component of
lease liabilities, bond payables, bank loans, loans from other financial
institutions and other borrowings, convertible bonds, net of cash and
cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, reserves and accumulated deficit as
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the directors of the Company consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with the capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors of the Company, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through various means, including but
not limited to the new share issues, raising of bank or other loans or the
redemption of existing debt.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group are regulated by the Securities and
Futures Commission (the “SFC") and are required to comply with certain
minimum capital requirements according to the Hong Kong Securities
and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (“SF(FR)R"). The Group has
established a legal and compliance department which is operated by
experienced compliance officers and is monitored by management. The
principal roles of the legal and compliance department are to monitor
the daily financial status and to review internal control of the Group
regularly to ensure that the Company’s regulated subsidiaries are in
compliance with related regulations. Those subsidiaries have been
in compliance with the capital requirement imposed by the SF(FR)R
throughout the year.

No material changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
for managing capital during the years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Categories of financial instruments

(a)

(b)
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6. BMIETH
(a) BITEER

2019 2018
—TNEF —T-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARKFT

Financial assets MKEE

— At amortised cost (including cash and — IR AN (BER S

cash equivalents) RIREEEY) 283,805 456,211
— At fair value through profit or loss — RN EF AEBZER 91,693 123,237
375,498 579,448

Financial liabilities BMEas
— At amortised cost — RS AR 827,864 911,728
— At fair value through profit or loss —RAFEABRER 25,529 =
853,393 911,728

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s financial instruments include trade and other
receivables and deposits, loan receivables, financial assets at
FVTPL, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade
and other payables and accruals, bond payables, lease liabilities,
bank loans, loans from other financial institutions and other
borrowings, derivative financial instruments and convertible
bonds. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective Notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
equity price risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Market risk

(i) Interest rate risk
Interest rate profile
The Group is mainly exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to variable-rate trade receivables from securities
brokerage and margin finance segment such as cash clients
and margin clients and variable-rate bank deposits which is
mainly relating to the fluctuation of Hong Kong Prime Rate.
The management of the Group monitors the related interest
rate risk exposure closely to minimise these interest rate
risks.

(b) MHEREREZEBEREEK

AEB U BIABREES REME
WERRARES - BRER  BAF
Bt ABERZWBEE - BHEFR
TR RITESRERS B RE
ENERREAER  BHES -
HERE RITER REEMGSH
BEZEFAREMEE « STEMB
TARABEES -REMBTAEZ
HEESERRMEARE - ZEHM
BIAMSZzARBET SRR &
ERR  ABESRRERERR
TXEHINFEZERRZBR - BE
BEEMESEZSAR  ARRKER
A EREUE B 56 -

R
(i) FIRER
FIF MR

REEAR 2B RENRER
ITERBHELEERBERED
B2 R RESREER(NRS
BEPERRBEREPINEERE
BREBMNERBTE 2T SR
TR - AEEEREEYER
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i

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - CONTINUED
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued
Market risk — continued

(i)

(ii)

Interest rate risk — continued

Interest rate profile — continued

The interest rate risk on bank deposits is limited because of
the short maturity.

The directors of the Company consider that the exposure
to cash flow interest rate risk on bank deposits are
insignificant.

Details of the Group’s bank loans, loans from other financial
institutions and other borrowings as at 31 December 2019
and 2018 are disclosure in Note 31.

The Group did not have any floating rate borrowings as at
31 December 2019 and 2018 and accordingly, no sensitivity
analysis on interest rate exposure is presented.

Currency risk

The functional currency of the group entities are mainly
HK$ and RMB in which most of the transactions are
denominated in. The directors of the Company consider
that the group entities are exposed to currency risk related
primarily to other receivables, financial assets at FVTPL,
bank balances and cash, and trade and other payables that
are denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the group entities.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arises.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the end of
the reporting period are as follows:

6.

MBETH-&
(b) MBEREEBEREE - &
s - A
() FEEE - &
FIFRI - &

(ii)

RIOTFFANERHADE - &
EEZNERBRER -

RATEERAFRITFR M E
HHReREMNERERIIES
j( °

AEER_F-AFR_FT-N
FEr=H= + EIE’J%E?‘TE,TA
KB E M BEE 2 B A
fEERFHIENIREI 1 EE -

—E-NFR=F-NF+=
A=t—H  AKBEYEEFE
BEE - EUEEZ5EHEAN X
R 2 BURE DA

f%ﬂ@
EERCIGEERTIERET
&/\Eﬁg ABDRZXGAARE
nf@ j%%wu/‘?%’ %E‘E
Ei%ﬁkaf”#]‘ﬂKﬁIEEﬁiﬁ‘rlﬂ)@
WERR - BAFEF AR
MG EE - R1TA ﬁ%&ﬁ%u&
BoHREMENERRER @ %%
HENEEEBINGEREREIAINZ
BHEHE -

AREE B A SN EP R R
AW BEEERIERR - I
BRHEEREEH B AIMNER

G o
v

AEEUSNESHES SREER
A ERBEBEARSNERE
e

Assets Liabilities
BE afE
2019 2018 2019 2018
—NEF — )\ —h&F —N\&F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARTFT AREFT ARBEFT ARETFT
RMB AR 931 737 - -
United States Dollar (“USD"”) ZE7t([ZEx]) 3,962 5,296 12,876 17,040
Singapore Dollar (“SGD")  #rans ([T )) 2,479 1,271 - -
ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGS LIMITED | S E R Z R E R 2 7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — CONTINUED
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued
Market risk — continued
Sensitivity analysis
For the year ended 31 December 2019, the following details
the Group's sensitivity to a 5% increase in RMB, the functional
currency of the group entities against the relevant foreign
currencies. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the end of the reporting period for a 5% change
in foreign currency rate. A positive number below indicated a
decrease in loss and where the functional currency of the group
entity strengthens 5% against the relevant foreign currencies.
For 5% weakening of the functional currency of the group entity
against the relevant foreign currencies, this would be an equal and
opposite impact on the loss/profit.

If RMB had strengthened/weakened by 5% against the relevant
foreign currencies, with all other variable had been held constant,
the profit before income tax would be increase/(decrease) as
follows:

rate change by 5%

w8 MEE &M GE)

31 December 2019 —E—AF+_-_A=+—H

6. MIETH-&
(b) BIEMEEEERKE -

s EEE - A

R
TXHIARNEEEHE_FT—NF
ToAZt-RALFEEEERZY
BEEH — AR LABMSNE FHES % B
ZHREE - WBRES TR BEMDA
BRHSEETEERIRR - LA
KIERM5% BB TEN RS HMEAR
RRRE - THMERRTEEER
MIIBE B R RBINETHES %R+ &
BoRD BEREEBONEERE L
HEBINERZES %N - BIFEEE
FEK EEMBR AT E o

s AR AR INETHE, B2 1E5 % 1M
A EMEBERFTE  RAASHA
R CRAN T

2019
—NEFE
Decrease/(increase) in loss
after income tax if exchange

2018
— N\
Decrease/(increase) in loss
after income tax if exchange
rate change by 5%

RIS EBEEEXREE S KGR EABETEXRES S
S5%EER A (3Em)  S%mER TR ()
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AR Tz AR®FrT AR¥FT ARKFT
RMB AR 39 (39) 31 (31)
UsD £7T (509) 509 (948) 948
SGD NI T 104 (104) 53 (53)
Credit risk and impairment assessment =B @ R B E 1

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising
from the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its trade and
loan receivables, other receivables and deposits and cash and cash
equivalents.

RZF—NAF+ZA=+—8 K&
Bz R EERR(EEF 75 R

FEATEAET 4 A SR BIER 2 B 1R R)
REHEETBRARMASREER
M EEZREE

AEBBREZEIRUERRERE
N HMERERRIEZESURRE R
ReEEMELHEERE -

143

Annual Report | 32019



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

i & R B R = 0 o ()

31 December 2019 —_ZE—Nh&FE+_-_HA=+—H

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - CONTINUED 6.

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued
Credit risk and impairment assessment —
continued
In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group has policies in
place for determining credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

Trade receivables

(i) Securities brokerage and margin finance business
The credit risk arises on the margin portfolio and clients’
trade settlement. When the market goes downside, the
possibility of bad and doubtful debts will arise. The margin
clients may be unable or unwilling to settle the sum owed.
As such, credit assessment and continuous management
of credit exposures are indispensable. The Group has
established the credit policies and procedures setting out
in details the structure of the credit risk management,
the credit approval and monitoring mechanism, and the
issue for overdue debts. Meanwhile, the management has
overseen the Group’s overall credit risk exposure arisen
from margin clients.

The receivables from margin clients are secured by clients’
pledged securities which are equity and debt securities listed
in Hong Kong and overseas. Margin calls are made when
the traders of margin clients exceed their credit limits or a
shortfall existed after taking into the account the securities
collateral. Any such excess is required to be made good
within the next trading day. Failure to meet margin calls
may result in the liquidation of the clients’ positions. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables.

Moreover, the Group closely evaluates the margin clients’
credit rating, financial background and repayment
abilities. The assessment is based on a closely monitoring
and evaluation of the collectability of individual account
and on management’s judgement from different aspects
including the current credit worthiness of the margin
clients, collateral value and the past collection history of
each individual margin client. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk on
receivables from margin clients is significantly reduced.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 December 2019 —_E—hF+_-_HA=+—H

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — CONTINUED 6. HMIIEITH-&
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BIEAREEEEREE - &

policies — continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment —

continued

Trade receivables — continued

(i) Other segments
Most of the Group’s customers do not have independent
credit rating. Trade receivables are continuously monitored
by assessing the credit quality of the customers, taking into
account its financial position, past experience and other
factors. Credit limits of customers are reviewed periodically.

In order to minimise the credit risk on trade receivables
from other businesses, the management of the Company
assessed the expected loss on the trade receivable with
significant balances individually by estimation based on
the historical credit loss experience, general economic
conditions of the industry in which the debtors operate and
an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date. In addition,
the management of the Company closely monitor the aging
to recover any receivables outstanding over 90 days as
well as subsequent settlement of each of the receivables
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk on the trade
receivables from other businesses is significantly reduced.

Loan receivables

In order to minimise the credit risk on the advances to third
parties, the management of the Group performs preliminary
analysis of the customers’ ability to repay principal and interest,
real time supervision of the actual repayment status throughout
the loan period and closely monitor the follow-up action taken
to recover any loans outstanding over 180 days. In addition,
the Group monitors subsequent settlement of each of the loans
receivables to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk on the loan
receivables is significantly reduced.
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6.

146

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - CONTINUED

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment —
continued

Other receivables

In order to minimise the credit risk on other receivables, the
management of the Group closely monitor the follow-up action
taken to recover any receivable balances outstanding over 180
days. In addition, the Group monitors subsequent settlement of
each of the receivables to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group'’s credit risk on the other
receivables is significantly reduced.

Pledged bank deposits and bank balances

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international
credit — rating agencies and PRC stated-owned banks with good
reputation.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which are
deposited with several banks with high credit ratings, the Group
does not have any other significant concentration of credit risk.
Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread
across diverse industries and geographical areas.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - CONTINUED 6. BIIA-&
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BIEAREEEEREE - &
policies — continued
Credit risk and impairment assessment — EEREERBEFL - &
continued
The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment comprises the AEBAEERRTRE TR
following categories: ARRK

Trade receivables in all business

Internal credit except securities brokerage and
rating Description margin finance business Other financial assets
RS A A0 I ARTE & BLE RIS IA

AEMEEFAR SNPRE RN E ZEUERR  HMMBEE

Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default Lifetime ECL 12-month ECL
and does not have any past due amounts — not credit-impaired

{livE RHGEFHNELHRBDE - B & 2 HEBEEEE T @A P EEEE
EREFaEiE/SE] - EEERE

Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates Lifetime ECL 12-month ECL
but usually settle after due date — not credit impaired

ERAE BEHARERIFERER  ERE 2B EEEE T EABEPEEEE
REE B EER - EEERE

Doubtful There have been significant increases in Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
credit risk since initial recognition through - not credit-impaired — not credit-impaired

information developed internally or

external resources

2+ B Y RABAREERREBABE 2 HEREEEE 2 HEBEEEE
7B KL Sk NER B TR R E AN - BIEERE - EEERE
Loss There is evidence indicating Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
the asset is credit impaired — credit impaired — credit impaired
&8 BEBETEENREERE > HFEEEEEE > HFEMEEER
- EERE - EERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor Amount is written off Amount is written off

is in severe financial difficulty and the
group has no realistic prospect of recovery

bLEez] BEBETEBRANGREV R FIEE B IS B e
NG BN E R AT S & 2
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - CONTINUED 6. MIEITH-#&
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BIEAREEEEREE - &
policies — continued
Credit risk and impairment assessment — =EREER BTG - &
continued
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group’s TREFMBEEHEEBBIGAS
financial assets which are subject to ECL assessment: B BEEMAERCEERR

Gross carrying amount
HREA(E
Internal credit 12-month or 2019 2018

rating lifetime ECL —ZE—NF —E-)N\E
REEE +=EAk RMB’000 RMB’000
BESE 2 HEHEEEE ARBFT AREFT

Financial assets at amortised costs

REBHRATRZHBERE
Trade receivables 24(a) (Note a) 12m ECL 28,927 99,593
— securities brokerage and margin (Hizta) +-EAEREEEE
finance business
- BRREIRECRERED
Lifetime ECL - not credit impaired 5,025 2,973
SHRBEEEE - EGEAE
Lifetime ECL - credit impaired 44,742 42,890

EHRMEREBR - FERE

78,694 145,456
Trade receivables 24(b) (Note b) Lifetime ECL - credit impaired 4,528 2,954
— other segments (Kta#b) SHEHEEEE - FERE
B Z W R
- EfHE
Lifetime ECL - not credit impaired 5,872 7,582
EHRBEESRE-BEERE
10,400 10,536
Other receivables 6(b)(iii) (Note c) Lifetime ECL — not credit impaired 14,234 22,545
H e iRk (Hiztc) FHEREEBRE - BEEERE
Loan receivables 25 (Note ¢) Lifetime ECL - not credit impaired 94,826 106,514
Y E R (Ktitc) FHEREESRE - BEERE
Credit-impaired 14,816 14,552
EERE
109,642 121,066
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - CONTINUED 6. BIIA-&
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BIEMEEBZERBUR -
policies — continued
Credit risk and impairment assessment —
continued
Notes: BisE

=EERRAETE - &

For securities brokerage and margin finance business trade
receivables, the Group reviewed and assessed for impairment
individually based on customers’ LTV and other qualitative and
quantitative information including the credit worthiness, past due
information and subsequent settlement.

The estimated loss rates are estimated based (i) the Group’s
estimates of the market borrowing rates for each of the grouping
less risk-free rate, which reflect the credit risk of trade receivables
from securities brokerage services and margin finance segment and
loan receivables and (ii) time value of money and are adjusted for
forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

For trade receivables from other segments, the Group has applied
the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance
at lifetime ECL. Except for debtors with significant outstanding
balances or credit-impaired, the Group determines the expected
credit losses on these items by using a provision matrix, grouped by
past due status, and adjusted by forward-looking information.

The Group uses debtors’ aging to assess the impairment for its
customers in relation to its operation because these customers
consist of a large number of small customers with common risk
characteristics that are representative of the customers’ abilities to
pay all amounts due in accordance with the contractual terms.

For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group
uses past due information to assess whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition for its loan and other
receivables.

Simplified approach is applied to measure the lifetime ECL for loan
receivables of short term in duration (i.e. less than one year) and the
remaining loan receivables and other receivables are measured on
12-m ECL basis unless there had been significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition.

HREFELCRREEHEEB2ES
BYRERRME - AEERBERFZE
REELAREMEERTEEER
(BREEEER BHRERREREN
AR5 B 5122 B R RT AR RE ©

B R TR () AN & B Y & 4 5l
MG EE R R bt (k& RRF
*Z;) C R B S EAL R RIRFE 2 R
B D ERE 5 MR T A KB E 3R
HEERR  Ri)2ENEEEER
& WIREHEMNHBERARE S
BRI B R ATIE B BT -

MEMDE B ZRKERME @ A
SECRABRBHEHRELENFHR
E’U%ﬂtiﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁi‘ﬁ%ﬁ{éfﬁ%%ﬁ%%
BEE - RARBEAREESHREL
ERRBERNEB A - Zli’il%lfxﬁﬁﬁz
B D B RIZ AT (£ B R TT 8
EuB e EE % SR E NREE

AEE(ERESARR DT EES
BEPZRE  ARZERFHAESR
HEREBRFHR 2 FPEK » ZEHE
REEFPRBANIGREEMBEH
IR ©

RABERARERTE - AEER
SRR M R S R A R
FEANREREERARETAR
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - CONTINUED 6. K ITH-&
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BIEAREEEEREE - &
policies — continued
Credit risk and impairment assessment —

continued
Notes: — continued Bfisk : - &

=EERERAETE - &

continued

Allowance for ECLs on loans receivables are estimated using a
calculation model based on observable data as at the end of the
reporting period, including the difference between the interest rates
of interest charged by the Group for similar loans, and the risk-free
rates, and adjusted for forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost and effort. The Group has recognised allowance
for ECLs, representing approximately 2.11% - 9.11% of the gross
carrying amounts, against all loan receivables as at 31 December
2019 due to the collective assessments which indicated that these
receivables may not be fully recoverable because of risks associated
with the customers and the industries, in which the customers
operate.

As at 31 December 2019, all loan receivables are classified as lifetime
ECL.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — CONTINUED 6. HMIIEITH-&
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BIEAREEEEREE - &
policies — continued
Credit risk and impairment assessment — EERERFBEFE - &
continued
(i)  Trade receivables — other segments () EBZEKEZ—EMmS5E
The following table shows the Group's expected credit loss TRAEATNEHREHHIZREER
rates (shown on weighted average basis) adopted to the 87 & 5 e WBR SR BR iR 0 T PR
aging analysis of trade receivables based on the invoice date RAzASEEEHEEBRE(R
as at each reporting date: IIREF I EAEFER) ¢
Gross carrying amount BREAE
2019 2018
—T-NEF —Z-N\F
Average Trade Average Trade
Internal credit rating loss rate receivables loss rate receivables
AP EERT A& THEER  BIHRKER THEREE  EHRIERK
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
0 to 90 day(s) 0E90H 1.67% 5,649 1.69% 3,922
91 to 180 days 91£180H 3.11% 223 89.01% 3,114
181 to 270 days 1812270H NAT 33 A - 100.00% 7
271 to 365 days 2712365H NA/iE A - 62.64% 539
Over 1 year BiB1F 100.00% 4,528 100.00% 2,954
10,400 10,536
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - CONTINUED 6. MEITH-&
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BIEAREEEEREE - &
policies — continued
Credit risk and impairment assessment — =EREER BTG - &
continued
(i)  Trade receivables — other segments — continued () BSEWKRI—AmMmoHE

Movement of impairment loss on trade receivable of other

segment are as follows:

-
R A2 B S RRE AR
AR -

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(credit (not credit
impaired) impaired)
2 HiTEHA 2 HTEH
=EmEE 5 ={:31:-|
(FERE) RE)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMETFT ARKEFT AREFT
As at 1 January 2018 RZZE—N\&—H—H 3,689 125 3,814
Changes due to financial instruments 4 R 522 8 81 75
recognised during the year: TE&H :
— Impairment losses recognised - BRERREBE 2,973 37 3,010
— Impairment losses reversed - BERESE (580) (74) (654)
- Exchange adjustments - EHAE 119 2 121
As at 31 December 2018 and RZZE-N\F+=A=+—H
1 January 2019 k=ZF—-hF—HA—H 6,201 90 6,291
Changes due to financial instruments 4 RHERH) 81 75
recognised during the year: TA#
— Impairment losses recognised - ERRRERSR 1,247 52 1,299
— Impairment losses reversed - BERESE (2,789) (39) (2,828)
— Exchange adjustments -EHAR (133) - (133)
As at 31 December 2019 R=-ZB-hE+=-A=+—-H 4,526 103 4,629
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REREERERME (R

31 December 2019 —E—hFE+_-_A=+—H

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — CONTINUED 6. BIITH-E&
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BIEEREEEERBE -

policies — continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment — EEREERBEFL - &

continued

(i)  Trade receivables — other segments — continued () EBZEKEZ-EMS5E

_ /=

Changes in the loss allowance for trade receivables are B RRIRRNEEREES
mainly due to: FEHR -

As at
31 December 2019

Increase/(decrease)
in lifetime ECL -
not credit impaired
2HEHEE
Eﬁ?ﬁiﬁﬂ/ W) —
EIEERE
RMB’000
AREFIT
Increase in trade receivables in processing, RERGAEINT - EfEREEZE S
printing and sales of finished fabrics in PRC JE UK AR R 38 384
Settlements received from trade receivables in B 82IR & E A B 2
Media CGU (Note) B 5 RRWIR R R 2 & TR (HYat) (1,913)
Note: Media CGU belongs to Group's reportable segment of media, Mizt : HRBESELBEMBNASEE
cultural and entertainment business. HIIREE « ML RIREEETS 2B
iﬁd:/'\*g
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
i 8RR M (R)

31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — CONTINUED 6. M ITH-&
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BIEREEEEREK-&
policies — continued
Credit risk and impairment assessment — EEERERBEFG - &
continued
(i)  Trade receivables — other segments — continued (i) BZEWREF—H E
- &

As at

31 December 2018
RZZ—\F
+—A=+—H
(Decrease)/increase
in lifetime ECL -

not credit impaired

BEORD), /G —
EEERE
RMB’000
ARKEFT
Settlement received from trade debtors in BRI @AEINT - ENfERIHE 2
processing, printing and sales of finished B S 1E AME 2 15 5RE
fabrics in PRC (654)
Increase in trade receivables in Media CGU HEER S EE BN
Z 5 AR FIE N 3,010
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REREERERME (R

31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - CONTINUED 6. BIIA-&
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BIEAREEEEREE - &

policies — continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment — EEREERBE G - &

continued

(i) Trade receivables in securities brokerage and (i) FEHELRIREDFEE
margin finance business B2 B S ENAR
Movement of impairment loss on trade receivables in BARLERRBEMEERZE
securities brokerage and margin finance business are as SRWERFUREEBES T
follows:

Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
not credit credit

12m ECL impaired impaired

+=f@A \
BHEEEE EZERE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETE  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR

As at 1 January 2018 RZZ-\F—A—H - 162 3,720 3,882
Changes due to financial instruments ENBANTHILLE
recognised during the year:
— Impairment losses recognised - ERRBEERE - 63 5,596 5,659
— Reversal of impairment recognised - BEIEERRE - (158) (50) (208)
- Currency realignment - BEHE - 5 620 625

As at 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 R=Z—NE+-A=+—-HK

—E-hE—-A—H - 72 9,886 9,958
Changes due to financial instruments FRRERNGETAZS)
recognised during the year:
~ Impairment losses recognised - ERRRERSE - 9% 10,836 10,932
~ Reversal of impairment recognised - RO RRRE - (68) (1,688) (1,756)
- Amounts written-off as uncollectible - WisH AR E £ 5 - - (4,791) (4,791)
— Currency realignment - BERZE - 2 39 4
As at 31 December 2019 R=F-AF+=A=1-H - 102 14,282 14,384
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

i 8 M ¥ 8 &M (E)

31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - CONTINUED 6.

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment —

continued

(i)  Trade receivables in securities brokerage and
margin finance business — continued
Changes in the loss allowance of trade receivables are
mainly due to:

As at 31 December 2019

12m ECL

+=fEA
BHEEERE
RMB’000
AREFT

Increase in the trade receivables EREBEYER B S RMEZEM
with higher LTV ratio -

BMEITHE-&
(b) BIREMEEEERKE - &

=EERERAEE - &

(i) FEFELRRELHBER
B EZEWES - B
EEYLES Gttt DY
EE

R-ZFE-NF+=-A=1t—8

Lifetime ECL
(credit
impaired)
2 HITEH
B
(EEERE) (FERE)
RMB'000 RMB’000
AEETFT AEETT

Lifetime ECL
(not credit

impaired)

RMB000
AEETT

28 4,357 4,385

As at 31 December 2018

12m ECL

BA
RHEERE
RMB’000
ARETT

Increase in the trade receivables B S RWERFE -

R=-2-NF¥t+=-A=+—A8

Lifetime ECL
(credit
impaired)

2 HEE

Lifetime ECL
(not credit
impaired)

2 HEH

.fé 1

H{E) (FERE) st

RMB'000
ARETT

RMB’000
ARETT

RMB'000
ARETT

(208) 5,659 5,451
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - CONTINUED

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment —

continued

(if)  Trade receivables in securities brokerage and
margin finance business — continued
The analysis of credit-impaired trade receivables of the
Group was as follows:

w8 MEE &M GE)

31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

6. MIETH-&
(b) BIEMEEEERKE - &

=EERRAETE - &

(i) FEHERLERRESHER
BZEGENKEN - &
REENEEREE S EIRIER
AT -

Gross Value of

Net carrying

collaterals

B mER
RMB'000

AR T

amount
BREEE
RMB’000
AREFT

amount ECL
Ft EHEEEE
RMB'000 RMB’000
AEEFT ARETFT

As at 31 December 2019
Trade receivables in securities brokerage and

R=2-NFt-A=t-AR
BHRLRFESRERS

margin finance business ZESEWRER 44,742 (14,282) 30,460 34,257
As at 31 December 2018 R-B-NE+-A=+-A
Trade receivables in securities brokerage and ~ EHEL MR ELREER

margin finance business 2B HEBEER 42,890 (9,886) 33,004 51,809

(iii) Other receivables
Movement of impairment loss on other receivables are as
follows:

(iii) B A EW IR
H i fEU R R 2 R E S 15 2 3 10
T

12m ECL and
lifetime ECL -
not credit impaired

+—{EA TR

EEEERZH

TRHEEEE -

BEEERE

RMB’000

ARETFT

As at 1 January 2018 RZZE—-—NF—H—H 2,833
Changes due to financial instruments recognised & AR 7% T EEF)

during the year:
— Impairment losses reversed - BB AERE (2,866)
— Exchange adjustments - [E R AR 33

As at 1 January and 31 December 2019

R-Z2-AF—-—A—-HR

+t=A=t-~8 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
i 8RR M (R)

31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - CONTINUED 6. BIEIRA-&
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BIEAREEEEREE - &
policies — continued
Credit risk and impairment assessment — =EREER BTG - &
continued
(iii) Other receivables — continued (i) BEmEWER - &
Changes in the loss allowance other receivables are mainly Hh R R B R B g T+
due to: ZEHER
As at
31 December 2018
KB N\&
+=-A=+—H”
Decrease in
lifetime ECL
2 HIFEHEE
B
12m ECL
+ =18 A
EEEE
RMB’000
ARMBF T
Settlement in full of other debtors with a 2 HABREEER AK®98,383,0007T
gross carrying amount of approximately HHMEEA
RMB98,383,000 (2,866)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REREERERME (R

31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — CONTINUED
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued
Credit risk and impairment assessment —
continued
(iv) Loan receivables
Movement of impairment loss on loan receivables are as

follows:

6. MIETH-&
(b) BIEMEEEERKE - &

=EERRAETE - &

(iv) EREF
REE R REEREBHMT

Lifetime ECL-  Lifetime ECL -
not credit credit
impaired impaired
2 HATEER ZHITEER
EEBE- FEEE-
EEERE FERE :
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETFT AREFT
As at 1 January 2018 RZE—NE—A—H 5,127 9,391 14,518
Changes due to financial instruments & AR B K T AZE) -
recognised during the year:
~ Impairment losses recognised - BERREBE 3,882 4,469 8,351
— Impairment losses reversed - BEIREEE (3,002) - (3,002)
- Currency realignment - EERHE 314 692 1,006
As at 1 January 2019 RZZE—NF—HF—H8 6,321 14,552 20,873
Changes due to financial instruments & AR H B K T ASE) -
recognised during the year:
— Impairment losses recognised - BERAEBE 6,157 - 6,157
— Impairment losses reversed - BERERE (4,198) - (4,198)
— Currency realignment - BEFR 405 - 405
As at 31 December 2019 R=B-N&E+=A=+—H 8,685 14,552 23,237
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
wEMESERME(R

31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - CONTINUED 6. MIEITH-#&
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BIEAREEEHEREE - &
policies — continued
Changes in the loss allowance loan receivables are mainly due to: U EREERBEESH HIEEHN

As at 31 December 2019
R-F-nF+=A=+—~
Increase/(decrease) in lifetime ECL

2 PEREEBEREMOfRD)

Non-credit
impaired  Credit-impaired

EEERE EERE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARKFT ARKEFT

Advance of loan receivables FEU B SR A 2R 6,157 -
Repayment of loan receivables BEERER (4,198) -

As at 31 December 2018
K= N\F+-A=t+—~
Increase/(decrease) in lifetime ECL
2 EATEEAE S BRI IR )

Non-credit

impaired  Credit-impaired

EEERE EERE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSFT ARMTFT

One loan receivable defaulted RZE—NF+=ZA=+—H
as at 31 December 2018 BN —BREKER = 4,469
Advance of loan receivables R E Z B TR 3,882 -
Repayment of loan receivables BEERER (3,002) =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
8RB RN (R

31 December 2019 —_E—hF+_-_HA=+—H

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - CONTINUED 6. BIIA-&
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) B¥EREEEERBEK -&

policies — continued

Liquidity risk

The Group has net current liabilities of approximately
RMB303,331,000 at 31 December 2019 which include
secured bank loans and unsecured loans from third parties
of approximately RMB47,050,000 and RMB264,879,000,
respectively.

As detailed in Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements,
all the unsecured loans from third parties were defaulted for
repayments respectively as at 31 December 2019 and/or on
the approval date of the consolidated financial statements. The
directors of the Company closely monitor the cash flows of
the Group and the Company and taken action to mitigate the
liquidity issues faced by the Group and the Company. Based on
the good working relationship with its other lenders, the Group is
negotiating for extension or revision on the repayment schedule of
the other loans or borrowings.

In addition, the Group is exposed to liquidity risk in relation
to financial guarantees given to banks provided by the Group.
The Group’s maximum exposure in this respect is the maximum
amount the Group could have to pay if the guarantee is called on
(Note 38).

The directors have carried out a detailed review of the cash flow
forecast of the Group for the twelve months ending 31 December
2020 and other measures taken by the management as referred
to in Notes 3(b)(ii) to the consolidated financial statements, and
consider that the Group will have sufficient working capital to
meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due for the
twelve months from 31 December 2019.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment terms. For non-derivative financial liabilities,
the table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of non-derivative financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent
that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is
derived from interest rate at the end of the reporting period.

AEEBR_ZTE—NF+_A=+—
AZhRsBaEFENEARE
303,331,0007T * BEREBE=ZF 2
EERBRTERRERBERITERS
B4 A R ¥ 47,050,000 ¢ & A R #
264,879,0007T °

MANER A ISR M EE3 1 AR AL - P
BREFE=T 2 EERERGH HIR
“E-AFTZA=t+T—-HR KR
EMBHER AR RBRENR - A
RAEFBYNERAEEARARAFZ
BenE  THEMITHAREAREE
RARRHE ZRBESHE - ER
AEEEE M ERARERIFNEE
BR - AEEEEBTRAEREAM
EXAEEZERERE -

dhoN - AEEHE R RITIRE 2 B
ERMEHEBRDESER - &
Bt H 2 AR A i E B Sk
BOTEBEREASBEAEAYNZES
S E(HIzE38) °

EEEFARIAEREEZE T -
F+-—_A=+—HAL+t=@AZHES
TR TEBI A R AR & BA TS 3R T 53 (b) (i)
Fril B2 BRIz EMiE - LRA
AEBRERERAETEEESBITTRN =
T-NF+_A=+—HB8i+=F
RZBER B AT ©

N IR SR IR 165 T AR X B AN & B 3R OT
EUMBEEZRBANEEA - I
TEFBABMS @ TROVBREBEAE
EsP A RERERFTEVBAR
ERAMBRBZHMRASREMNR
Z HEREFNERAEHERE - &
MELFE - ARMBESEILERSE
HRARBNMEESH -

Annual Report | 32019 161



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
wEMESERME(R

31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - CONTINUED 6. MIEITH-&
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MKRREEEEREX-&
policies — continued
Liquidity risk — continued REBELREE - &

Weighted
average  Ondemand Total
effective  orlessthan 3 months to undiscounted Carrying

interest rate 3 months Tyear  Over 1 year cash flows amount
VA=

AERRS
—EE i R

RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000
ANREFT  AEBFTT  ARETR

At 31 December 2019 RZZE-NE+_A=1-A

Trade and other payables* 25 REMERRER - 337,405 - - 337,405 337,405
Bond payables &S 8.00 5,005 67,571 - 72,576 68,613
Lease liabilities HEaRE 3.99 640 1,610 999 3,249 3,160
Bank loans FITER 6.37 - 48,440 - 48,440 47,050
Loans from other financial institution KEH & REE 7 &3 24.29 223,764 - - 223,764 223,764
Other borrowing Hife 8 13.57 41,115 - - 41115 41115
Convertible bonds mHRES 18.90 - 10,344 200,211 210,555 126,348

607,929 127,965 201,210 937,104 847,955

Weighted

average  On demand Total Carrying

effective  orlessthan 3 months to undiscounted amount at

interest rate 3 months Over 1 year cash flows ~ 31.12.2018
—FN\E

+=R
=+-A
—ENE MEBT ZEHE

RMB'000  RMB'000
NREFE  AREFT

At 31 December 2018 RZZ-\E+ZA=1+-H
Trade and other payables* ZHREMERRR - 367,664 - - 367,664 367,664
Bond payables RS 8.00 4,916 66,369 - 71,285 67,393
Obligation under finance leases BERERE 6.35 54 162 209 425 410
Bank loans BIER 5.68 - 92,961 - 92,961 90,350
Loans from other financial institution REEf S @EE 2 EX 19.30 217,354 3,719 - 221,073 220,866
Other borrowing HibfeE 25.55 171,215 - - 171,215 165,045
761,203 163,211 209 924,623 911,728
& The amount includes trade payables, other payables, customers’ * ZRIERIEE ZEMEDR - B ER
deposits, amounts due to a director/director of a subsidiary/a HIE - BPES  ENESHBA
shareholder of the Company/non-controlling owners of a subsidiary/ RESE /ARQFIREHBARIEE
related companies (2018: trade payables, other payables, customers’ BESEAEA BEATRE(ZZ
deposits, amounts due to a director/director of a subsidiary/a — N\ : EHEMNERR - HibERMIK
shareholder of the Company/non-controlling owners of a subsidiary/ B RBEIRSRENES HEBAT
related companies). B ARARRE/WERAIIER

REEAA/FEDRFREA) -
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - CONTINUED

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its investments
classified as financial assets at FVTPL. The management manages
this exposure by closely monitoring the price movements and the
changes in market conditions that may affect the value of the

investments.

A decrease of 5% on equity price would have an negative
impact of approximately RMB1,567,000 (2018: RMB6,162,000)
on profit or loss. An increase of 5% in the value of the listed
equity securities would have a positive impact on the Group's

performance in a similar amount.

Fair values of financial instruments
(i) Financial instruments not measured at fair value:

The principal amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities with a maturity of less than one year (including
trade and other receivables, loan receivables, pledged bank
deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and other payables,
bond payables, finance leases, bank loans, loans from other
financial institutions and other borrowings) are assumed to
approximate their fair values.

(i) Financial instruments measured at fair value:
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities with
standard terms and conditions and traded in active markets
are determined with reference to quoted market bid and ask
prices respectively.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

i & M B8] & W EE (18)

31 December 2019 —_E—hF+_-_HA=+—H

6. HBIHA-&

(b)

BHERABREEERRBE - &

R (&
AEBRKER D BARAFEFTA
BRER MBEEMAZRERR -
EREEEATYEERERTRE
ENRTEREBEZARKERL
[

THARE TS % - EEHIBSIRIERL
AR®1,567,000it(ZF—N\F : A
R#6,162,0007T) 2 BEFE - W L
MRAES ZBELFAS% - HiHA
SERAETREESEZIEETE -

BB TAZAFE
(i) WIFELFEGTENTE
TAH:

AMMBRIN—FZHBEER
FBaE(RRES REMEK
BRA - BIRER - BERRTTE
H o RITEHERE BHRE
MR - BYES - BEH
& ROTEFR  REEMSEE
B2ERREMEER) A2 TR
REHNTEBE

(i) HRFEFAEMHFELR -
ABEREER R L ERD
SEERZHBAERSBRES
DYEABISETHEARER
BEEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
i 8RR M (R)

31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - CONTINUED 6. MEITH-&
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MERKREEBEERER - &

policies — continued

Fair values of financial instruments — continued BIBTAEZAFE-&

(i) Financial instruments measured at fair value (i) EAFEGTEHTFTA
— continued - &
The following table presents the carrying value of the TRE2HIRIER ST BHELER]
Group's financial instruments measured at fair value across FI3R A TFEHEIAREZ
the three levels of the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS ZEABHRATFEEREEURT
13 “Fair Value Measurement” with fair value of each Bt E2 RS EMB TR ZRE
financial instrument categorised in its entirety based on B SUBTEZAFEUER
the lowest level of input that is significant to that fair value TEFEMEEERERNZRE
measurement. The levels are defined as follows: BREmASBEAKIBETER Y

B RAHERBHRSENT

Level 1: fair values measured using quoted prices B4 HEMEIAEZAFE
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical RERTHHRE(TF
financial instruments. FE)EE -

Level 2: fair values measured using Level 2 inputs i.e. EBf2: FAER2@E ASE
observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, (BN TRFEERERI 2T
and not using significant unobservable inputs. B ABIE) M E
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market EEV IR 23PN -
data are not available. BErE2AFE - 1

B m A BBRIEIL&ET
5 B KL B AN BUE ©

Level 3: fair values measured using significant unobservable B3 : FREATAHRHA
input. BB ECATE -

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TRIFAREEFBTAZ AT

hierarchy of the Group’s financial instrument: B 2B

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B B2 B3 st

RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT

At 31 December 2019 RZZ-NE+=A=+—8
Financial assets at FVTPL BRATEFABREZ
HBBE
~ Movie investments, at fair value —BYRE (BRRTER) - - 60,332 60,332
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong,  — &8 kA ES
at fair value (BAFERD) 28,882 - - 28,882
- Equity securities listed in overseas, at ~ —84h FAIRAE 5
fair value (FRAYER) 2,479 - - 2,479
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BATEABRRZHEAE
- Derivative financial instruments —TEHKIA - - (25,529) (25,529)

31,361 - 34,803 66,164
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - CONTINUED

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

(c)

policies — continued
Fair values of financial instruments — continued

At 31 December 2018 RZZ—N\E+=A=1+—H
Financial assets at FVTPL BATESABRR e HBEE

i3

& R B R & I EE (R)

31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

6. MKEITH-&

(b)

Level 1

B

RMB'000
ARETT

BHREMEEBREREE - &
MBETAZAFE-&

Total

a5
RMB’000
AREFT

Level 3
EB&R3
RMB’000
AREFr

Level 2
B2
RMB’000
AREFr

~ Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, at - BB L TRAE 5
fair value (R R FER) 121,966 = = 121,966

— Equity securities listed in overseas, at fair - BN ETRAE
value (R FER) 1,271 = = 1,271
123,37 = R

There were no transfers between the three Levels during the year
and prior period.

For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group will normally
engage external valuation experts with the recognised
professional qualifications and recent experience to perform the
valuations.

Financial assets and financial liabilities
offsetting

The disclosures set out in the tables below include financial assets
and financial liabilities that are subject to an enforceable master
netting arrangement or similar agreement that covers similar
financial instruments that are either:

3 offset in the consolidated statements of financial position;
or
3 no offset in the consolidated statements of financial

position as the offsetting criteria are not met.

Under the agreement of continuous net settlement made between
Group and Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited
("HKSCC"), the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
the money obligations receivable and payable with HKSCC on the
same settlement date and the Group intends to settle on a net
basis.

(c)

RERARBEBRAR  THEE=ZERER
Z R EE s o

AEFINFEAEME @ AEEK—
REEABRAIFXEERAMGEE
K52 IMNEEEFAETT ©

MBEERMBERBEZEE

TRAFBZBEERRZARHANTE
BEREAERBRBURZEMRRZY
BEERMIGAE  BE

o RESMBHIRARAE 2 B
SRTIA

o RAMFAEHEEMILENGS
BMBARERAEEZ EUSFH T
H o

REASERFTEFREZGRAA
([BEREE DIFRZHEFHREER
M AEETEA GO R G HITEN
ARERAEE B EE S 4 E KRR
RENFIREME  BEAEEEZFHE
HELE o

A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
i 8RR M (R)

31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - CONTINUED

(c)

Financial assets and financial liabilities
offsetting — continued

In addition, the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off the
trade receivable and payable with its cash clients in the Group's
brokerage business (“brokerage clients”) that are due to be
settled on the same date with reference to the settlement method
set by HKSCC and the Group intends to settle these balances on a
net basis.

As disclosed in Note 28(v), the Group has a legal enforceable right
to set off the other receivables of the net distribution revenue
arising from the movie investment and the payable relating to the
acquisition of certain film rights and licence under the settlement
agreement.

Except for the above mentioned, financial collateral including
cash and securities received by the Group and deposit placed with
HKSCC do not meet the criteria for offsetting in the consolidated
statements of financial position since the right of setoff of the

6.

recognised amounts is only enforceable following an event of

default.

At 31 December 2019
—-WE+-A=t-R

RMB'000

Gross amount

Amount offset
BEHEE
RMB'000

A T

MIETH - &

(c)

Net amount
et AHIE

MEEERMBAERZEE -
]

BESN A SR A O T 38 BT HE
MAREREE BE2E B BREE]
UMEHT AR EBEREH 2R
SEF(ERERDEHINEED
B SRR REMNRE - B AREERE
FREREHLSRES -

MK FE 28T HE - ARBERIE
‘BEBEEA AR LA RGBITRORE
Ao AEZREEENRTREFHE
B E A BRI S B B T &
P RERI R A 6 FE A R AR ©

Br EXPrt &SN - AR E RS EE
HEERN HIREDF MR ARG
17 BeRERn(BRAREMEE
EREZ) RERREBEHZEEY
TR ENEGE MR RIEH 2 R -

Related amounts not offset

Finandial Collateral

received Net amount
ERERR

RMB'000

instruments

RMB'000 RMB'00

Amount of trade receivables arising from ERBERRECREERES
the securiies brokerage LBIRNER S8
and margin finance business
- HKSCC -BRRE 12,984 (9,700) 3,284 - - 3,284
- Cash clients -REEP 12,269 - 12,269 - - 12,269
- Margin dlients -REEEP 48,757 - 48,757 (36,319) (41,372) 12,438
Amount of other receivables arising from movie ~ EFARAELMEHEN
investment EneE 835 (835) - - - -
74,845 (10,535) 64,310 (36,319) (41,372) 27,891
Amount of trade payables from the securities ~ BHELRRELREEKH
brokerage and margin finance business ESRMNENEE
- HKSCC -BERE 9,700 (9,700) - - - -
- Cash clients -Re%P 63,657 - 63,657 - - 63,657
~ Margin clients -RELEP 11,066 - 11,066 - - 11,066
Amount of other payables arising from YR BT R RE Y
acquisition of film rights and licence EHERERSE 31,104 (835) 30,269 - - 30,269
115,527 (10,535) 104,992 - - 104,992
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - CONTINUED

(c) Financial assets and financial liabilities

offsetting — continued

At 31 December 2018
‘\*ﬂ'iﬂﬁ'—ﬁ

Gross amount
RMB'000

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

w8 MEE &M GE)

31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

6- ,H\Zl-i%j:ﬂ i IIE
() MBEERMBEMBEZIKE -
&

Related amounts not offset
TEEH AGLR

Financial Collateral

Net amount

HHIA ERERR i

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

= = T =

Amount offset Net amount instruments received

LR et

RMB'000 RMB'000

Amount of trade receivables arising from the BRORRRECREEREL
securities brokerage and margin LBERNE e E
finance business
- HKsCC -FkiE 26,456 (26,456) - - - -
- Cash clients -HE%F 25,478 - 25,478 - - 25478
- Margin clients - REGEP 110,215 - 110,215 (40,212) (62,400) 70,003
162,149 (26,456) 135,693 (40,212) (62,400) 95,481
Amount of trade payables from the securities ~ EHELRRESHEEKEL
brokerage and margin finance business LBSRENEE
- HKSCC -BEE 42,806 (26,456) 16,350 - - 16,350
- Cash clients -REEP 99,667 - 99,667 - - 99,667
- Margin clients -RELEFE 30,840 = 30,840 - - 30,840
173,313 (26,456) 146,857 - - 146,857
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
i 8RR M (R)

31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

168

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group derives its revenue from the transfer of goods and services

over time and at a point in time in the following major product lines.

This is consistent with the revenue information that is disclosed for each

reportable segment under HKFRS 8.

Revenue from contracts with customers within
the scope of HKFRS 15, analysed by types of
goods or services:

EXERDEER
AREZRHERANTEEES FIE—R
B RS B R R RS - UL ERAR
BE B REEAI BRI S BRESE
B2 U AR —H -

2019
“E-NEF

2018
—ZT—N\F
RMB’000
ARBFT

RMB’000
ARHFTE

BBU RS ERF 1557 EBE A

BEAHWE  HEm

BRAGFERIEIT AT :

Sales of goods from AT miE s
— sales of finished fabrics - HEKmmE 29,855 33,914
— trading of fabrics and garment products -MHEREERES - 3,027
29,855 36,941
Subcontracting services income A BERBFUA 82,871 57,938
Advertising income BEEWA 6,772 15,202
Subscription income sTBIA - 4,237
Licence fee income — Film right RIEBWA - & EF - 1,519
Licence fee income — Trademarks REBWA - HiF - 3,816
Other entertainment and media services income i 252 %4 K #5 82 AR 7 U A 6,313 59
Brokerage and related services income 440 R ARRE RS A 5,421 8,883
Underwriting and placing services income 84 R Bl &5 AR A WA 1,069 7,282
Handling services income BRI RISUA 210 645
132,511 136,522

Revenue from other sources H A 2OR 2 Yz
Loan interest income =&Y ON 18,210 18,160
Margin financing interest income RBCHBEFSBA 6,171 11,343
156,892 166,025
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TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION -
CONTINUED

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are organised by
a mixture of both business lines (products and services) and geography.
In a manner consistent with the way in which information is reported
internally to the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment, the Group
has presented the following six reportable segments. No operating
segments have been aggregated to form the following reportable
segments.

o Processing, printing and sales of finished fabrics and
subcontracting services in the PRC;

o Trading of fabrics and clothing;

° Money lending;

° Securities investment;
. Media, cultural and entertainment; and
° Securities brokerage services and margin finance.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the Group's senior executive management
monitors the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable
segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include non-current assets and current assets
attributable to the activities of the individual segments. Segment
liabilities include trade and other payables attributable to the activities
of the individual segments and bank loans managed directly by the
segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments with
reference to sales generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise from the
depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.

31 December 2019 — & —

7.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

w8 M8 &M (E)

NFET-A=+—H

EXBERIBEEN-&

DEBE

AEBRIRAFNPIERER - MHBFIRRE
VAT 251 (ZE aa M AR TS ) A3t IR B 19 75 =X
AE - AEB2FIATRERBRESE - Ut
HAFEREN T AEBEKRHHRTERE N
1’?&5)@“@5&%5@%%&’]%‘&*?& o WS
PFEEDBAER A TEREDHR -

o RAPEZAKSEMEMI - NEKRHEE
KD BIR ;

o IRERKES
. K

. BERE:

. B ERER%: R
. BEELRRBRRFLME -
PEFE EENRERE

B S ﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁ“@Zﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁ

5 ARERSMTERERA TEEER
= i&%ﬁiﬁﬁf&?z%ii BEEMARE:

SRERERRBBREBLNBRZ B2
RBEENRBHEE - DHBERREFEEN
BEILD B EE 2B 5 M E M BN BRFUA

MEDBEEERE ZRITER
Hﬁlﬁ?&&?ﬁﬁ)’ﬁﬂ%%g”‘*ﬁ&tﬂiZiﬁEu&
ZENRESIEAREDBREZEEN

%ﬂ%&iﬁﬁﬁéﬁi@?ﬁiﬁﬁn RETRABMEDE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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7. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION - 7. ZXHERKoEER -&
CONTINUED

Segment results, assets and liabilities — continued PHEEE BEERAE-E
Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as provided RERDERTESEREAMAAEERS
to the Group’s most senior executive management for the purposes of AITEEERBZASEBARESBEZEH
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance is set out (N

below:

Securities
Processing, brokerage
printing and Trading of services and
sales of fabrics and Money Securities  Entertainment margin Unallocated
finished clothing - lending - investment - and media - finance - corporate Inter-segment
fabrics - PRC Hong Kong Hong Kong Hong Kong Hong Kong office elimination

AEREH

2019 9 2019
F nE —hE hE j fu & —nE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 l [ RMB'000 RMB'000

Revenue from external customers RESMREP 2 W5 112,726 - 18,210 - 13,085 12,871 - - 156,892
Revenue from inter-segment HERKE - - - - 4,365 - 28,706 (33,071) -
112,726 - 18,210 - 17,450 12,871 28,706 (33,071) 156,892

Reasonable segment revenue and ~ AHREVEUERUERRAZEED
timing of revenue recognition
Products and services transferred ata  NE-EHEHBERRRH

point in time 29,855 - - - 3337 6,700 2,646 (7,011) 35,527
Services transferred over time Ba-RERELRE 82,871 - 18,210 - 14,113 6,171 26,060 (26,060) 121,365
Reportable segment revenue AREDBUS 112,726 - 18,210 - 17,450 12,871 28,706 (33,071) 156,892
Reportable segment (loss)/profit BRESE(HR)/8H

(adjusted EBITDA) (#:3%EBITDA) (9,691) (49) 14,473 134 (7,957) (3,824) (59,046) - (65,960)
Depreciation and amortisation HEREH (7,781) - - - (26,326) (2,088) (1,128) - (37323
Impairment on intangible assets B AEZRE - - - - (47,492) - - - (47,492)
Impairment of property, plant and 0¥ BERIEZRE

equipment (18,954) - - - (6,990) - - - (25,944)
Impairment of right-of-use assets EREAEZRE (384) - - - (93,505) - - - (93,889)
Net (impairment)/reversals of EHREMERERZ (FE)/

impairment loss on trade REBRELD IR

and other receivables (265) (119) - - 1913 (9,176) - - (7,647)
Net reversal of impairment loss on BEBAER 2 ke 2 RESR

deposits paid to suppliers FE 3,071 - - - - - - - 3,071
Net impairment loss on loan receivables JEW &7 ZBEFRZE - - (1,959) - - - - - (1,959)
Net impairment loss on inventories FEZREBRTE (3,249) - - - (955) - - - (4,204)
Net loss on financial assets at fair value  FAFEF ABREL

through profit or loss HRBEZEREE - - - (42,387) (21,224) - - - (63,611)
Loss on derivative financial instruments  $TA8#% T & 518 - - - - - - (100,744) - (100,744)
Finance costs BERA (4,828) - (26,060) (2,596) (1,781) (1,515) (111,762) 26,060 (122,482)
Impairment loss on interest in REANFZERZRESE

an associate (21,075)
Share of loss of an associate HMEMERABE 11,089)
Loss on deemed disposal of BELEBRENAzER

an associate (21,527)
Loss before taxation BHAEE (621,875)
Reportable segment assets ARENBEE 107,181 108 86,458 31,358 508,774 200,796 550,520 (472,027) 1,013,168
Additions to non-current REFRBHREAE

segment assets 2412 - - - 69,539 1,793 3,295 - 77,039
Reportable segment liabilities AREIEAE 127,059 4,014 473,100 23,785 186,983 84,640 547,184 (472,027) 974,738
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

7. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION -
CONTINUED
Segment results, assets and liabilities — continued
Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as provided
to the Group’s most senior executive management for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance is set out
below: — continued

w8 MEE &M GE)

31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

7- %%%ﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁﬂ - IIE

TEFRE AERABE-&
REARSERFEHBERANALEERS
PWTERBREAEBARED AR
M - 4

Processing,
printing and
sales of
finished
fabrics - PRC

Trading of
fabrics and

clothing -
Hong Kong

Money
lending -
Hong Kong

2018

RMB000

Securities
investment -
Hong Kong

Entertainment
and media -
Hong Kong

NE
RMB‘000

Securities
brokerage
services and
margin
finance -
ng Kong

Unallocated
corporate
office

Inter-segment

elimination

AEREH
2018

RMB'000

Revenue from external customers RESREFZNE 91,852 3,007 18,160 - 2,833 28,153 - - 166,025
Revenue from inter-segment ARG - - - - 16,709 - 26,869 (43,578) -

91,852 3,027 18,160 - 41,542 28,153 26,869 (43,578) 166,025
Reasonable segment revenue and ~ AHE I EURRUERAZEE

timing of revenue recognition
Products and services transferred RE-BEREBERRES

at a point in time 33914 3,027 - - 1,519 11,343 26,869 (43,578) 33,094
Services transferred over time BE-RERELRE 57,938 - 18,160 - 40,023 16,810 - - 132,931
Reportable segment revenue BREN B 91,852 3,027 18,160 - 41,542 28,153 26,869 (43,578) 166,025
Reportable segment profit/(loss) BREAERR/ (FB)

(adjusted EBITDA) (HEBZEBITDA) 4,382 6 18,104 (5473) (131,498) 14,548 (42,287) - (142,218)
Depreciation and amortisation FEREH (10,606) B - - (81,058) (174) (820) - (92,661)
Impairment on goodwill BEZRE - - - - (114,366) - - = (114,366)
Impairment on intangible assets EVEEZRE = - - - (40,683) - = - (40,683)
Impairment of property, plant and 0% BRRXEZRE

equipment (3,606) - - - (26,531) - - - (30,137)
Net reversals of impairment loss/ 25 REMERER L

(impairment) on trade and other HEBRED/GlE)FE

receivables 503 20 - - (2,879) (5,451) 2,866 - (4,941)
Net reversal of impairment loss on BEBARER ke

deposits paid to suppliers REBRTE 5,095 - - - - - - - 5,095
Net impairment loss on loan receivables FEEF 2 HEEEFE - - (5,349) - - = = = (5,349)
Net impairment loss on inventories FEZ) ] (26,037) - - - (16,560) - - - (42,597)
Net loss on financial assets at fair value &ATF(E ABHEZ

through profit or loss HREEZERFE - - - (43,589) - - - - (43,589)
Finance costs BERK (5,947) - (19,719) (2,617) - (4,384) (53,435) 19,719 (66,383)
Impairment loss on interest in REEARZ R RERR

an associate (56,798)
Share of loss of an associate HEBERABE (205,129)
Loss before taxation BBiAIEE (839,756)
Reportable segment assets AREDREE 159,847 230 100,245 202,881 580,355 338,912 1,098,537 (1,048,002) 1,433,005
Additions to non-current segment assets /& FEEI D EEE 2,979 - - - 41,170 729 362 - 45,240
Reportable segment liabilities BREVEER 138,091 3,898 412,380 67,233 160,977 208,349 417,138 (412,382) 995,684
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7. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION - 7.

CONTINUED

Geographical information

The following table sets out information about the geographical location
of (i) the Group’s revenue from external customers and (ii) the Group's
non-financial assets (“specified non-current assets”). The geographical
location of revenue from customers is based on the location at which the
services were provided or the goods delivered. The geographical location
of the specified non-current assets is based on the physical location of

the asset.

%%%ﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ = IIE

TRHFIEHEODAEBERBIRAETPL 2R
@ RNARE 2 EMBEE([FEEIR
BEEDWMEVEZHBEN - REFFK
BWHIEUERERRERREXZINERD
FEMEE - HEFRBDEENMIELER
ENEEEEMEMEMERE

Turnover Specified non-current assets
=k EEFRBDEE
2019 2018 2019 2018
“T-nF —E-N\F —E-NAF “ENF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT AREFT ARETT
PRC B 112,726 95,668 1,178 26,575
Malaysia B pg s - = 63,720 118,141
Hong Kong B 44,166 70,357 461,006 556,524
156,892 166,025 525,904 701,240
Information about major customers FHRXEEFZEH

There are no customers who individually contribute over 10% of the
total revenue of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION -
CONTINUED

Contract balances

The following table provides information about receivables and contract
liabilities from contracts with customers.

w8 MEE &M GE)

31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

7- %%%ﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁﬂ - IIE

BRER
TRBIIEES 2 A0 2 BRERR AL
B EER -

2019 2018
—E-NF —E—)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARWFT ABRET T
Receivables, which are included in “Trade and FATES REAMEWERR]Z
other receivables” (Note 24) FEURBR SR (KT e£24)
— Sales of goods from finished fabrics and -RamARRREERZ
garment products [EGEREEES 5,680 2,152
— Subcontracting services income - D ERBEA 91 E5
— Entertainment and media services income — IR RS AR S UL A - 2,058
— Brokerage and related services income (Note) — — 4842 R ABBE RIS A (A% ) 64,310 135,498
70,081 139,743
Contract liabilities, which are included in “Trade st A [BZREMERNRRIZE4
and other payables” (Note 28) BE(HE28)
— Sales of goods from finished fabrics and -RmARRREERZ
garment products EmiHeE 11,023 5,720
— Subcontracting services income - D ERBEBA 12,978 12,551
— Entertainment and media services income — IR IR BE AR AU 4,468 11,442
28,469 RONAIB

The contract liabilities comprised the customers’ deposits and receipt in
advance.

The Group applies the practical expedient in paragraph 21 of HKFRS
15 and does not disclose information about remaining performance
obligations that have original expected durations of one year or less.

Note: Due to the business nature of brokerage services and margin finance
business, it is assumed that the entire trade receivables balances belong to
the category of brokerage and related services income as customers would
not indicate whether they are settling the brokerage and related services
fee, handling services fee or margin financing interest.

BRNREREEPEE RIAKFA -

AEBEEREEMBREERNE155-H H21
BRA{THRENE  MEBEREEEZER
ERHNBERFHA—FIURZHBTROR
EZE# -

e - ERNEERBEERESREXRB 2 EHM
B AUBRREHEZBEEREHRABR
BERERRFRAZERN  RAREFPT
BRPESTRABREREARBER &
ERBELIRESHENSZHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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8. OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES), NET 8. Htz (558)FE

2019 2018
—2-nE —2-N\F

RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®ET T

Net reversals of impairment loss on deposits  #[E B (L fER 2 1% & 2 24(c)

paid to suppliers B 8% 3,071 5,095
Net exchange gain/(loss) X We (E18) J$58 151 (12,624)
Loss on disposals of property, plant and HEWE  BERRHBLZ

equipment [igi=| (484) (8,754)
Loss on de-registration of subsidiaries F 8 A RIBR 2 B 18 - (8)
Bank interest income HRITFEHA 425 689
Loan referral income ERE A - 595
Government subsidies* BT & B * 124 360
Sundries income from entertainment and IREE N IR BERRIS DA 2

media services segment MIEWA 1,027 -
Dividend income R EMA 357 71
Gain on disposal of intangible assets** HERPEE 2 W 11,025 -
Others HAt 1,082 705

16,778 (13,871)

@ The government rewards and subsidies were provided by the PRC * BT 228 &% & B Jh £l AR B A A) AR A [ AR 4

government as an incentive for energy saving and organisational ERABBASERMERABTER BB -

development of the Group. There are no conditions and contingencies U B 75 B8 B T & B I 48 B 45 fAT i1 R s AR
attached to the receipt of the government subsidies and they are non- FIH BARBEIITBRAKEEEEE -

recurring in nature.

**  During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has disposed of > BE_Z-AF+-_A=+—HBLFE"
one of its film rights with the net carrying amount of approximately AEBMBLE=FHELP —HEEF
RMB3,456,000 to an independent third party at a cash consideration of BEH A AREES,456,000TH S F R - 1]
approximately RMB14,481,000. As at 31 December 2019, the unpaid SREDNBARK14,481,000 - R=ZF
consideration of approximately RMB2,350,000 was included in “Other —NE+=ZA=1+—H8 KREREBEHARK
receivables and prepayments”. 2,350,000 7T 5T [ b FE 45 BR 5% B 78 1+ 50

-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

9. FINANCE COSTS 9. MEMAK
2019 PAONES]
—E-NF —TtF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT AREFT
Interest on bank loans RITIEEZFE 4,821 5,780
Interest on other secured loans” Hih G ERERZFE" 49,733 15,786
Interest on other unsecured loans” HihmERERZF S 57,296 35,409
Interest on bond payables ERES 2 FE 4,939 4,726
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 18(c)) HEABEZFE(HZE18() 149 =
Interest on finance leases BMEREZFE - 17
Interest on convertible bonds (Note 32) ARRES 2 B (M aE32) 929 -
Other finance costs HAb gl & KA 4,615 4,665
122,482 66,383
* The amount comprised the interest payable for the year ended 31 December * ZREAEEE_E-NF+_A=+—8
2019 and the default interest at rates of ranging from 6% to 36% per WFEEZEMFE - LARBIEBBEE RS
annum accrued on the overdue outstanding balance in accordance with the B8 HA SR (E B A RN T-6% £ 36% 2 F
relevant loan agreements. KpEG 2 BT S o
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31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

10.

176

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

Loss before taxation has been arrived at after
charging/(crediting):

BRI EE Ik, (GEA) T
IR

RMB'000
ARETTT

2018
—E—N\F
(Note)

(K1)
RMB’000
AREFT

Directors’ remuneration (Note 12) EEME (HE12) 3,706 5,792
Staff cost (excluding directors’ remuneration)* ETIHE(TEEEEMNE )
— Staff salaries —BI%Fs 66,219 106,555
— Retirement benefits scheme contributions —ROREFIET IR 1,128 2,685
— Staff welfare — B T4A 739 340
Penalties to the SFC HBEEEH TN 4,410 T
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 19) B EECBE(ME19) 7,394 72,591
Depreciation # of; AT EBEZITE
— Property, plant and equipment (Note 16) —WE - BB RERE(HE16) 11,136 20,070
— Right-of-use assets (Note 18) —(ERREEE(HF18) 18,793 -
Auditor’s remuneration and other services 2 ERET N & & H b AR 75
— Audit services —BZR% 1,235 1,122
— Non-audit services —FEZRTE 128 358
1,363 1,480
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses THEZEERA(BIEFEEMRF
(including net write-down of inventories BARKA4,204,0000( = — )\
amounting to RMB4,204,000 F: AR¥42,597,0007T))
(2018: RMB42,597,000)) 68,854 83,768
Net loss on financial assets at fair value through 1ZA VBT ABEC MK EE
profit or loss EEFE
(a) securities investment (a) BHIRE
— Realised loss/(gain) on disposal (Note 26) —BEZEEEEE(KE)
(HiF26) 32,793 (5,247)
— Fair value loss — A FEERE 9,594 48,836
(b) movie investment (b) ERARE
— Fair value loss — RN EEERE 21,224 i
63,611 43,589
Operating lease rentals in respect of ERNUTHEEZEERERAS
— prepaid lease payments —TBRHEENIE - 14
— rented premises (Note 18(c)) —HEWEHE18(c)) 1,289 7,261
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

10. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION - CONTINUED

11.

Note:

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using the modified
retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative information is not
restated. See Note 2(a).

3 The SFC has reprimanded and fined the Group HK$5,000,000 for a series of
internal control failings and regulatory breaches.

& Total staff cost of approximately RMB32,851,000 (2018: RMB57,775,000),
RMB6,115,000 (2018: RMB15,146,000) and RMB29,120,000 (2018:
RMB36,659,000) has been charged to cost of sales, distribution and selling
expenses and administrative and operating expenses, respectively for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

& Total depreciation of approximately RMB5,313,000 (2018: RMB7,063,000)
and RMB24,616,000 (2018: RMB13,007,000) has been charged to cost of
sales and administrative and operating expenses, respectively for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

ACQUISITION OF ASIA TELEVISION LIMITED
("ATV")

On 30 April 2016, Star Platinum Enterprises Limited (“Star Platinum”), a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into arrangements in
relation to the acquisition of approximately 52.42% equity interests in
ATV and, together with the joint and several provisional liquidators (the
“Provisional Liquidators”), had proposed the scheme of arrangements
to the creditors of ATV by which all liabilities of ATV shall be assumed
by Star Platinum. As a result, ATV should be debt-free and given a fresh
start upon the completion of the scheme of arrangements.

On 29 July 2016, Star Platinum had acquired approximately 52.42%
equity interests in ATV and its subsidiaries (collectively refer to as “ATV
Group”) and the Company had given undertaking to provide sufficient
financial support to ATV to rebuild its business and operation. The
liquidation position of ATV had been released by the Court on 8 January
2018 and ATV Group became subsidiaries of the Group.

w8 M8 &M (E)

31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

10. l%ﬁﬁﬁ&ﬂﬁ - 18

11.

B aE

AEER=-ZT—NF— A BRBAKETERES
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BEMTTEY - #FRHE2) °

- BESRAEE R APEERRREE
2 R B8 T LAZEE I E1545,000,0005 7T °

# BE-ZT—_hE+=-A=+—HILEE -
BIKABELN ARK32851,0007T (=
T—)\F : AR#¥57,7750007T) * A
R#¥6,11500 T (-2 —N\F: AR
15,146,0007% ) 2 AFR#29,120,0007L (=%
—\F : AR#36,659,0007T)E 2 Blst A
SHEKAN « DHEREERIARITRREZ
X -

# BHE_T—NE+_A=+—HLEE  #f
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AR#7,063,0007T) X AR #E24,616,0007T
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11. ACQUISITION OF ASIA TELEVISIONLIMITED 1. W B = M E R F R 2 7

("“ATV"”) - CONTINUED ([ER]) - &
On 8 January 2018, the Group completed the acquisition of ATV Group RZFE—N\E—ANB ' AEERTHAT
(the "Acquisition”) after completing a series of arrangements (i) scheme — Ry BN E R RER ([ WESE
of arrangement to be approved by the creditors and the High Court of ] (YERARBERZEER (AR Dt
Hong Kong (the “Court”); (i) the Court granting the order to sanction ZEBEERHE (i) AP EEG < & TR
the withdrawal of the winding-up petition against ATV; and (iii) ATV HY R IEREE  RINDERTEES
resumes normal operation under the management of its new board of SvEBETNRELETEE - Atk - BIEIEH
directors. As such, ATV was considered as a subsidiary of the Group and et BRE/RAREBE ZHB AR K
was consolidated to the Group on 8 January 2018 in accordance with the RZZE—N\F—ANBRAEEZEREB AL
relevant accounting standards. PN
The fair value of net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed Pl B8 2 2048 &2 B n] =% Bl & B B K& P& e
of ATV Group at the acquisition date were disclosed as below: ZEEEEEEREEABR 2 ATFEEEN
i
RMB’000
ARETFr
Investment properties (Note 17) "EMZE(HE17) 1,130
Other intangible assets (Note 19) Hinfmp & E(HaE19) 492,227
Trade and other payables B 5 R E At BT AR K (65,551)
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRIE S 3,071
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 33) EERIBAE (M E33) (75,528)
Net assets acquired PR iE 2 & EEFAE 355,349
Non-controlling interests IR 35,383
390,732
Goodwill (Note 20) & (HE20) 114,366
Total consideration wRE 505,098
RMB’000
ARETT
Total consideration BRE
— Deposit paid in previous year —BEFEENES 415,204
— Amount due from ATV — FE R AR R IE 89,894
505,098
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11. ACQUISITION OF ASIA TELEVISIONLIMITED 1. KB = M E R F R A 7

("ATV"”) - CONTINUED ([ER]) - &
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of ERARBEFRE RS RRSEEMRNFE
the Acquisition was as follows: DT
RMB’000
ARKFT
Total consideration wRE (505,098)
Cash and bank balances acquired of FrisiE 2 30 & R IRTTAE 4 3,071
Deposit paid BEffiES 415,204
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents ERWERBATZES R
in respect of the acquisition of subsidiaries ReEBYRLHHE (86,823)
Reconciliation of non-controlling interests share net assets of ATV Group JEE R S DR EE B B E R E 2 H R
RMB’000
ARBTFT
Net assets acquired gz BEFEAE 355,349
Share of net assets to non-controlling interests JEEREE DG EEFE (169,075)
Less: Share of amount due to the Group W EFEN AN B FOE 204,458

35,383
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11.

180

ACQUISITION OF ASIA TELEVISION LIMITED
(“ATV") — CONTINUED

The share of amount due to the Group was recorded as liabilities in ATV
Group's financial statements and this amount was required to be shared
to non-controlling interests but there was no effect on the Group in
regard of the Acquisition.

The Group had chosen to recognise non-controlling interests at their
share of fair value of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
of ATV Group.

Upon completion of the acquisition of ATV, the directors of the
Company had engaged an independent firm of valuers, Valtech
Valuation Advisory Limited (“Valtech”), to carry out a valuation of a
media cash generating unit including ATV and another wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, Asia Television Digital Media Limited that was
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination, based on
facts and circumstances existing as at that date.

The directors of the Company became aware of the impairment loss
at the date of the Acquisition so that the Group fully recognised
the impairment loss of the goodwill arisen from the Acquisition of
approximately RMB114,366,000 during the year ended 31 December
2018.

ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGSLIMITED | EH ER Z R E R A A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S 12. ES - THEBRES M
AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
Details of emoluments paid by the Group to the directors of the AEBAARAESRITBAE I N 2HE
Company and chief executive officer are as follows: SEMT

2019 2018
“R-0E 2\
Retirement Retirement
Salaries benefits Salaries benefits
and other scheme and other scheme

Fees benefits  contribution Total Fees benefits  contribution Total

fig  # BE o fat iz BEIAS At
RMB0OO  RMB000 RMBOOO  RMB000 ’ RMBO0O  RMB000

Executive directors YrES
- Mr. Sze Siu Bun - s - 528 15 543 = 506 15 521
- Mr. Tang Hon Kwo (Note (j) -BEREEA) - - - - - 464 8 4an
- Mr. Ma Zhi (Note (i) - BEREWE) - - - - = 393 6 399
~Mr. Law Kin Fat (Vote (i) - BRI () - 376 3 379 . 231 15 23%
- Mr. Deng Junjie (Note (i)) - BlEARE(WiRy) - 1,057 15 1072 - 597 1 608
- Mr. Wang Jia Si (Note (i) - IREEAE (M) - 12 12 U - - - -
~Mr. Chan Wai Kit (Note (v) -REEEE (W) - 640 14 654 - 57 - 57
- Ms. Sun Tingting (Note (x) -RERRL (M) - 334 7 341 = = = -
= Mr. Lin Wan Qiang (Note (xi) - EREE (W) - 278 5 283 - - - -

Non-executive directors FHTES
= Mr. Li Wenfeng (Note (vi) - BNEEE (W) - - - - - 1,060 9 1,069
- Dato’ Sri Lai Chai Suang -SEHERVERT - 25 - 25 - - - -

(Note (xi) (Hritt)

Independent BUFHAES
non-executive directors
- Ms. Tao Feng -Brt - - - - - - - -
- Mr. Han Xingxing -BEELT 115 - - 115 110 - - 110
-Mr.Li Yu -5%5E 115 - - 115 110 - - 10
= Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam (Note (vi) - KA E (W) 10 - - 10 10 - = 110
- Ms. Wong Chi Yan (Note (i) - EEERT(Wiety) 145 - - 145 - - - -

385 3,250 il 3,706 330 5398 64 5792
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12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S
AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS -
CONTINUED

Notes:

(i)
(ii)
(iii)

(iv)

(vi)
(vii)

(vii)

(ix)

(xi)

(xii)
(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

182

Mr. Tang Hon Kwo was resigned as an executive director with effect from
15 June 2018;

Mr. Ma Zhi was resigned as an executive director with effect from 1 June
2018;

Mr. Law Kin Fat was resigned as an executive director with effect from 13
February 2019;

Mr. Deng Junjie (“Mr. Deng”) was appointed as an executive director with
effect from 15 June 2018;

Mr. Wang Jia Si was appointed as an executive director with effect from 27
November 2018 and resigned as an executive director with effect from 23
January 2020;

Mr. Chan Wai Kit was appointed as an executive director with effect from
27 November 2018;

Mr. Li Wenfeng was resigned as a non-executive director with effect from 1
August 2018;

Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam was resigned as an independent non-executive
director, the chairman of the audit committee and a member of each of the
audit committee, the nomination committee and remuneration committee
with effect from 31 January 2019;

Ms. Wong Chi Yan was appointed as an independent non-executive
director, the chairman of the audit committee and a member of the
nomination committee and remuneration committee with effect from 31
January 2019;

Ms. Sun Tingting was appointed as an executive director with effect from 21
June 2019, retired as an executive director with effect from 27 June 2019,
and re-appointed as an executive director with effect from 28 June 2019;

Mr. Lin Wan Qiang was appointed as an executive director with effect from
21 June 2019, retired as an executive director with effect from 27 June
2019, re-appointed as an executive director with effect from 28 June 2019,
and resigned as executive director with effect from 30 October 2019;

Dato’ Sri Lai Chai Suang was appointed as a non-executive director with
effect from 20 December 2019;

Mr. Leong Wei Ping was appointed as an executive director with effect from
23 January 2020.

Mr. Lee Cheung Yuet Horace was appointed as an independent non-
executive director, a member of each of the audit committee, the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee of the Company
with effect from 28 February 2020.

Mr. Yong Kim Seng Andy was appointed as non-executive director with
effect from 28 February 2020.

12. EE - THHEBREEETMH -

=
i

(i) HEXEEB T —N\FEAATHAREE
WMITES

(ii) EEEEB T \EXNA—HERBREHT
B

(i) BREEBEEEB-FT-NAF-_AT=ARERE
MITES

vy BERNEE(HBEEDB=_F-/\FXA
THEEERERPITES

)  EXRMEEE_FT-NAFt-A-FTLAE
EZERHUTESF YA-F-_FF—A
“T=RERERTES

(vi) REFEEE-ZT-NFt+-A-F+tAE
BZERNTES

(i) FEXEEEA=ZT—N\FN\A—BREEFE
MITES

(ii) RERMEEB-T—NF—A=+—HEF
ABULIFPTES BREEESEFEURE
REEE  REZEERTMEEESEZ
KB

(ix) BEBLTBZT-AF-—A=+—HEE
RERBIUFNTEE BERZEREFEMN
LRt ERRFHEEEKE

(x) HRiEsZ+tB-—E—NLFAA=-1+—HiE
BEERMTES YR -_ZFT-—NAFEXA
—+tHRERTES  HEB-T—NF
NAZTN\BREERSHTES

x) MERELEB-_F-AFRA-_T-HE
BZEARTES IN_FT-NEXA
“HERRERTES KK T -hF
NAZTN\BREERANITES  YH =
Z-NFTA=ZTHBRENTES

i)y EBHERYEBLE-_FT-NFT+_-H
“TRBERERIFNMTES

(i) REFEALEA_FT_FTF-—A_T+=HLE
?Eﬁﬂ”§$

xiv) FHRELEBE-_FT-_FF-_A-_+/\Biek
RERAARBILIFNTESTURBERER
g FMEEERERZEERE -

(xv) BEREEB_T-_TE_A_+/\ALE
REFBIFNTES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S
AND EMPLOYEES’' EMOLUMENTS -
CONTINUED

Salaries and other benefits paid to a director is generally an emolument
paid or receivable in respect of that person’s other services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiary
undertakings.

Of the five highest paid individuals in the Group, 1 (2018: 1) was
director, details of whose emoluments are set out above. The
emoluments of the remaining 4 (2018: 4) highest paid employees for the

year ended 31 December 2019 are as follows:

w8 MEE &M GE)

31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

12. B  TRAAREEFH -

&

INTFEEZFEREMEN -RAAEH
EEpRIRHAREE R QB REKE AR
=R EMRB M HEN 2B

AEEBREZEZERFALR  —H(ZFE—N
F:—RBIREF RZHMERFINEX -
RBE-Z-—NFT-A=+—HLEFEZ
HEHpmE(Z2—-N\F: IR ReHEELZ

FHEN T -
2019 2018
e e
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARTT

Employees {==|

— basic salaries and allowances - EXFH S KERM 5,706 7,504
— retirement benefits scheme contributions — RIREFIFHEIHERR 60 72
5,766 7,576

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000

1,500,001 7T 22,000,000 3 3
2,000,001 7c%£2,500,000 1 1

During the year ended 31 December 2019, an executive director, Mr.
Wang lJia Si, waived emoluments of approximately RMB1,894,000 (2018:
Nil).

Except for above, there was no other arrangement under which a
director or the five highest paid individuals waived or agreed to waive
any remuneration during the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).
In addition, no emolument was paid by the Group to any of the directors
or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join, or upon
joining the Group, or as a compensation for loss of office (2018: Nil).

REBEZE-_ZE—NE+-_A=+—BILEFE -
HTEETIXDNEEREZEFHOARE
1,894,0007C( —ZT—/\4F : ) o

B Xt &S REE—T-NAF+_A
=t BLFERERHEEN AR RS
ATHES R B REEAHFIMZ Ehs (=
TN\F ) o A AEEYEAERNE
EXRAEREFALIINME  ES/MAR
SEFEMAREER 2 RE) BB E (=T
— N\ E) o
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13.

14.

184

DIVIDEND

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil). The Board resolved not to declare
the payment of any final dividend for the year (2018: Nil).

INCOME TAX CREDIT

The PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) is calculated at the rate of 25%
prevailing in the PRC jurisdiction for the year ended 31 December 2019
(2018: 25%). Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at
the rate of 8.25% or 16.5% (2018: 8.25% or 16.5%) on the estimated
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year.

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed The Inland
Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”) which introduces
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law
on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on the following day. Under the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of
the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above
HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not
qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be
taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

13.

14.

3=\
ARARBRE-F-AET-A=+—AL
FEYMERASEEARS(—F NG :

) - ERRBARAFE TS REMRAR
B(B—N\EF )
FrgBiE R

RECEMSH(EEMBSHDUBEE=Z
—NE+-A=+—BUHEEFHAEER
ZEBIEI5%FTE(ZT—/)\F : 25%) ©
FERNERREBEE 2 GRS FIEF
K8 25% K 16.5% (=T — )\ : 8.25% 3K
16.5% ) FT IR BB TSR o

RZZ—N\EFE=ZA=+—8 FBELLEB
BT —EFRBUER] (B7HR)GRBIER)
(MEBIEZ]) @ SIARBHFNESHEHE -
KO ERR-_ZT—N\FE=A =+ NAFEK
BiEE - WHRBRAFIEERR - RIBMASF
BHREHE  6ERESEEBNE288ST
B R H5128. 25 % M R F - MEBE2H &
BITHI RS2 16.5% W REH - A
MAHFSHEFENEEE B EGEE
1216.5% 85t — Tt R o

2019 2018

—T-hE  —F-NF

RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARBFT ARKTT

Current tax BNHEARR 18

— Hong Kong Profits Tax - BB 184 1,391
— PRC EIT - R EATISH 845 620
— (Over)/under-provision in respect of prior year - F—%%E (HBEEE), BETRE (3) 6
1,026 2,017
— Deferred tax (Note 33) — EERIB(HT2£33) (17,588) (2,634)
(16,562) (617)
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REREERERME (R

31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

14. INCOME TAX CREDIT - CONTINUED 14. FIBBiER - &
Income tax credit for the years are reconciled to loss before taxation as FRFAEHIER BRI EBYIRNT ¢
follows:

2019 2018
—T—hF —T-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARBFT
Loss before taxation KR 7 Al 518 (621,875) (839,756)
Tax at the applicable rate RERAMESE 2 HIE (107,807) (141,814)
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purposes HERFIU A Z FiiE 7 2 (6,550) (771)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax e A 2 R 2
purposes 66,866 52,501
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences RIERA MR E =R 2B
not recognised T 11,362 18,612
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIERBIBEIB 2 B & 14,376 37,225
Tax effect of share of loss of an associate DG ERARER BB TE 1,830 33,846
Tax effect of loss on deemed disposal of RIEHERBERNE 2R
interest in an associate EEzRBTE 3,552 -
Tax concession U ER (146) =
(Over)/under-provision in respect of prior year BAEFE GREEE) BETR (3) 6
Others HAtb (42) (222)
(16,562) (617)
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i 8RR M (R)
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15. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS 15. A A TEAE AELERER

OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic loss per share for the current year and prior
year are based on the loss for the year attributable to the owners of the
Company, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year are set forth below.

The calculation of diluted loss per share for the year are based on
the loss for the year attributable to the owners of the Company. The
weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation is
the number of ordinary shares in issue during the year and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at
no consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, as the Company’s outstanding
convertible bonds had an anti-dilutive effect to the basic loss per share
calculation, the conversion of the above potential dilutive shares is not
assumed in the computation of diluted loss per share. Therefore, the
basic and diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2019
are equal.

The calculations of basic and diluted loss per share attributable to
owners of the Company are based on the following data:

Kir&t FENSEREABRIIREAR
NEER ANREFARIETE  MERNEE
TTE BB HEEHIIMT -

£ Py S IR S S 1R T AR R R A T A B
ERRIEEE o SHE TR 2 BRI ET
BAFNERTERMIEE - W LR NS
THRKE B REHID AT RREHELE
TEHE 0 TR X IR 0 R T A
7

BE_Z-NF+-A=1t—BLFE H
RAR B RITEARRES ST HEERE
AERABEREENE WA ESREEE
BRI ERR LS L AR EEEEE K
Bt BE_FT-AF+-_A=+—H
IR 2 BRERREEEIRAS

ARBEEANREFREAREEEHE 25
HIERATEUE

2019 2018
—h&E —T—)\F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARSFT AREFIT
Loss %]
Loss for the year attributable to owners of ARGTEESRERNBEZAR
the Company used in the basic BFEABEFTRNEE
loss per share calculation (557,550) (800,530)
Add: Interest on convertible bonds (Note 9) o ATRRRES RIS (A7RE9) —* -

AR ESREEHIEZ A RF
A AEEFRRRARER

Adjusted loss for the year attributable to
owners of the Company used in the

diluted loss per share calculation (557,550) (800,530)

Number of shares BHEE

Weighted average number of ordinary shares AR ESREAREEEE
in issue during the year used in the basic and F R DI BN T 158
diluted loss per share calculation 7,301,969 7,055,668

AREEREL EEERE HE -

i No adjustment/effect considered due to anti-dilutive effects. @
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

w8 MEE &M GE)

31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

16. ¥ - MERR®E

Furniture
fixtures and
Leasehold computer  Production Motor Plant and
Buildings improvements  equipment  equipment vehicles  machinery
BT REKR ERE AE BERES
RMB’000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB000
AREFT AREFT AREFIT ARETT AREFr ARETT T
cosT B
As at 1 January 2018 W=2-\E—F—H 125,230 1,467 9,924 1,408 4,224 189,576 331,829
Additions NE - 4,638 36,562 678 342 2,970 45,240
Disposals irt: - (1,134) (6,601) = = (38,359) (46,094)
Currency realignment BERE - 223 1,802 104 200 - 2,329
As at 31 December 2018 RZE-\§+=A=1+-AH 125,230 5,244 41,687 2,190 4,766 154,187 333,304
Upon initial application of HKFRS 16 &R fEREAE s £
(Note 2(a)) N6 (M 20) = = = - (982) = (982)
As at 1 January 2019 W=2-NF-F—H 125,230 5,244 41,687 2,190 3,784 154,187 332,322
Additions "B - 699 3,302 217 114 2,297 6,629
Disposals HE - - - - (738) (7,078) (7,816)
Currency realignment MERE - 34 251 10 44 - 339
As at 31 December 2019 R-B-hE+=A=1+-H 125,230 5977 45,240 2,417 3,204 149,406 331,474
DEPRECIATION And IMPAIRMENT ~ HERFE
As at 1 January 2018 RZZ-\§-A-H 103,222 761 3415 39 2,692 172,281 282,410
Deprediation (Note 10) wE (K10 3,963 1,011 7,657 400 461 6,578 20,070
Impairment loss RESE 2,922 2,794 22,454 1,283 - 684 30,137
Disposals irt: > (1,028) (1,331) = = (34,523) (36,882)
Currency realignment MERE - 155 1,442 70 123 - 1,790
As at 31 December 2018 RZE-\+ZA=1+-AH 110,107 3,693 33,637 1,792 3,276 145,020 297,525
Upon initial application of HKFRS 16 &R fEREAE s £
(Note 2(a)) N6 (M3 20) = = = - (507) = (507)
As at 1 January 2019 RZB-hE-A—A 110,107 3,693 33,637 1,792 2,769 145,020 297,018
Depreciation (Note 10) FEWFE10) 3,963 584 2,408 123 283 3,775 11,136
Impairment loss REBE 11,160 1,218 5,975 493 116 6,982 25,944
Disposals ik - - - - (344) (6,371) (6,715)
Currency realignment BERZ - 20 175 9 37 - 241
As at 31 December 2019 R-E-hE+=A=1-H 125,230 5515 42,195 2,417 2,861 149,406 327,624
CARRYING VALUES EEE
As at 31 December 2019 RIB-NET=A=+-H - 462 3,045 - 343 - 3,850
As at 31 December 2018 RZZ-N\E+ZA=1-H 15,123 1,551 8,050 398 1,490 9,167 35,779
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

i 8 M ¥ 8 &M (E)

31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - 16. 1% - MERRZE - &

CONTINUED

The carrying value of the Group’s properties which are situated on land
held under medium-term leases is analysed as follows:

NNRIRBEFHEERA 2 T2 AR B Y%
ZEEREEDFTMT

2019 PAONES]
—E-hEF —T-N\F

RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT AEETIT

Buildings in the PRC B2 EF

- 15,123

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has pledged all of its buildings
to certain banks to secure the credit facilities granted to the Group
(Note 31(a)).

The Group’s motor vehicles held under finance leases (Note 30) which
were pledged as security have a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB475,000 as at 31 December 2018. The Group has initially applied
HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using the modified retrospective approach.
Under this approach, motor vehicles at 31 December 2018 was
reclassified to right-of-use assets (Note 18) at 1 January 2019.

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment belonging to

each cash generating unit (“CGU") are as follows:

RZB-NAF+ZA=+—H TEEEH
HAMERFERATETRT  MMEALTKE
EREERE (MFE31() 2 &

R-ZE—N\F+-_FA=1+—8 ' ~&EERE
MEMRERFE 2 /A= (HI5E30) Ty E K 17
m o HEREFEL A AR 475,0007T © &
EER=-ZT—NF—B—AXALBEITEN
EERERE BV ERELERFE 165 - BRI
ZAhE RZE—\F+ZA=+—HZA
BERZE—NEF—A—RAEHOEEFEH
A E(MFE18) o

BREReELBN((REELBM )2
X BELREBEREEENT

2019 2018

—=-NF —ZE-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARSFT ARBTFT

CGU 1 e EEBENR - 20,651
CGU 2 REEEBR2 - 4,366
CGU 3 REELBM3 - =
Media CGU BB G EEBN - 8,192
Brokerage and Margin CGU (Note) RO RRBELR S EL BN (H ) 532 799
Unallocated corporate office RAOBRRIFER 3,318 1,771
3,850 35,779

Note: Brokerage and Margin CGU belong to the Group's reportable segment of
securities brokerage services and margin finance business.

The impairment assessments of property, plant and equipment of (i)

Media CGU and (ii) Brokerage and Margin CGU are set out in Notes 19
and 20 respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
8RB RN (R

31 December 2019 —E—AF+_-_A=+—H

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - 16. 1% - MERRZE - &

CONTINUED

CGU 1, CGU 2 and CGU 3 belong to the Group’s reportable segment
of processing, printing and sales of finished fabrics. The impairment
assessments of property, plant and equipment of these CGUs are set out
below:

The directors of the Company identified:

(@)  The demand from emerging markets of fabrics business remained
weak; and

(b)  There were downsize of sale scale and gross profit margin in these
CGUs.

Therefore, the directors concern about the recoverability of the carrying
amounts of these CGUs and performing impairment review on non-
financial assets of these CGUs.

CGU 1

As at 31 December 2019, the recoverable amount of the CGU 1 has
been determined based on a value-in-use calculation (2018: value-in-
use calculation) with reference to a professional valuation performed
by Valtech. The value-in-use calculation used cash flow forecast derived
from the most recent financial budget approved by the management
based on their best estimates. The projected period was 5 years and the
growth rate and pre-tax discount rate used in the forecast was zero and
11.61% (2018: zero and 17.32%) respectively, for CGU 1.

Based on the assessment, the impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets of approximately RMB15,880,000 and
RMB384,000 (Note 18) respectively were recognised in the profit or loss
during the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: the impairment loss on
property, plant and equipment of approximately RMB3,606,000).

BEELEMNT BeELSMRBESES
BA3BRAEBEARS ZKMMAHMT -~ £
EREENE - WEREELEEUZYE
M KRR R A EE T

RRAREEDHH

(a) RIS R B E 5 R F Sk B R
95 &

(b) REELZBMMHERBEEMNER

Do

At EFFIRFREELEMREED
A EE - SRR FR S ELE B A IER TS
BEETREERN -

HEeEEEEM
RZFE—NFE+=A=+—10 REELE
M2 A BESENRESEFIRETZEE
HMEZERBEFE(ZS—N\F : TREE
SEEE cEABENEEFERATEEER
BRI 1% L 2 S ST ATt A Sl B 7%
A#ME%UEEWO%ﬁéﬁiﬁumﬁ
= %wﬁﬁmaiﬁﬁwﬁﬁzﬁﬁfﬁm
ATEAIR R DB ABER11.61% (=T —/)\F ¢
T17.32%) °

BEFE  RBEE=Z—NF+=ZA=+—
HIEFE ¥ BERZEARGCHES
EZREEED N AR15,880, 0007_5&
AR¥384,000 (HF18) N EmER(ZF
fﬂi-mi‘ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁzmﬁgﬁmA
R#3,606,0007T) °
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31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

16.

190

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT -
CONTINUED

CGU 2

As at 31 December 2019, the recoverable amount of the CGU 2 has
been determined based on a value-in-use calculation (2018: value-in-
use calculation) with reference to a professional valuation performed
by Valtech. The value-in-use calculation used cash flow forecast derived
from the most recent financial budget approved by the management
based on their best estimates. The projected period was 5 years and the
growth rate and pre-tax discount rate used in the forecast was zero and
11.61% (2018: zero and 12.18%) respectively, for CGU 2.

Impairment losses of approximately RMB3,074,000 were made in respect
of property, plant and equipment of CGU 2 for the year ended 31
December 2019 as a result of the impairment test (2018: Nil).

CGU 3

CGU 3 was processing the de-registered during the year and became
inactive as at 31 December 2018. The de-registration completed on 21
January 2019.
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HEeELEE N2
R-Z—NE+-_A=+—0 BEELE
22 A Bl RBIHIREBESEHIRET 2 HE
HEZEREEAE(ZE—/\F : £AEE
FTE)ETE  EREENEEERATEEER
ERAE 1% L 2 S AT AT A9 il BA R 7%
BEMNRESRERA - RRESELBMN2M
= BAFEHRSEmMBEAMAZ ERER
TEEIRES R AT R11.61%(ZZF— N\F :
T 12.18%) °

A =k o

HE_E-—NF+-A=+—HIEE &
RETRENR  ERIRESEEBM2ETIRR
EEEHARKES,074,000T( = — )\ F :
) o

HeELE N3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s property interests held for undetermined future use, are
measured using the fair value model and are classified and accounted
for as investment properties. Movement of the carrying amounts can be

summarised as follows:

w8 MEE &M GE)

31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

17. REWE
AEBEFERRTETHRN Y ERER TR
AATERAGE  UHoBRAREAKRE
Y% o IREEZBMMT ¢

2019 PAONES]
—ZT-hF —ZE-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARBFT
Residential property located in the PRC: LR B2 EEY

As at 1 January n—HA—H 1,130 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 71) BB AR (ATaE11) - 1,130
Currency realignment KA 20 =
As at 31 December ®n+=—A=+—8 1,150 1,130

Fair value hierarchy NFEEZNMEE

An independent valuation was performed by Valtech, to determine the
fair value of investment properties as at 31 December 2019 by adopting
the direct comparison approach (2018: direct comparison approach).
The direct comparison approach considers the sales, listing or offerings
of similar or substitute properties and related market data establishes a
value estimated by processes involving comparison.

The fair value of the Group's investment properties is a level 3 recurring
fair value measurement. The fair value measurement is based on the
above investment properties’ highest and best use. During the year
ended 31 December 2019, there were no transfers between Level 1 and
Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3 (2018: N/A).

The following table give information about how the fair values of the
investment properties are determined.

Significant

unobservable inputs

BEXATABERARE

Valuation technique

fEE R

Direct comparison approach Quality of properties such as

BELEE location, size and level of the
properties
MENE  BEREES

Range of significant
unobservable inputs

EXTABERABE 2EE

Market price: RMB4,700 (2018:
RMB4,800 per square meter
Mg« §FIKARK4,7007T
(Z2—N\F: ARK48007T) BEALRZNFELEERS

FREETELME  ARAERLEE(Z
E-N\F EEEBREER T NF
T-A=THZREVEATE BEY
BESEERABERBRYE IR - HER
BEEER - MBETSSIEERS R
BIERE BEEMGR

AEERENEZ ATFEBEIBREELER
FEEE - AFEFENER LAREYE
ZREERERSE BE_T-NAF+_H
=+—BIEFE  F1EREF2ER2HEL
BEEMNER  TEBEARBHFEIER(ZE
— N\ TER) -

TREHEBNAETRENEATENE
# o

Relationship of
significant unobservable
inputs to fair value
ERRAERBARE
HAFEZER

The higher the quality of properties
with reference to comparables,
the higher the fair value

AFHERS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
i 8RR M (R)

31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE 18. EAEEEREERARE
LIABILITIES
As a lessee fERABEA
The Group has lease contracts for various offices and branches used REBREHLEMANZEAREERLS A
for its operation. Those leases generally run for an initial period of one AIMEESYN - ZEHE— RV A —
to two years. There are no lease contracts that include variable lease EMF - BELSUEAENKNEES
payments. Certain leases of motor vehicles were accounted for as 4 - ETREHAENFEE T —NE+=
finance leases during the year ended 31 December 2018 and carried A=+—BItEEEABREREARE iR
interest ranged from 2.95% to 3.81%. 2.95%%3.81 %1 B °
(a) Right-of-use assets (a) BAEEE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and the AEBFEREEEZRAERERE
movements during the year are as follows: AT :

Premium Prepaid
Leased  over prepaid lease Motor
properties lease payments payments vehicles Total
BNEE BNEE

HEME BB RE " st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIE ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETIL

As at 1 January 2019 R-_Z—NE—F—H
— Upon adoption of — BB
HKFRS 16 (Note 2(a)(i)) AR F 165 1E
(Kt22(a)01) 3,041 475,807 398 475 479,721
Additions NE 1,793 - = 1,793
Depreciation (Note 10) WE(HE10) (1,811) (16,771) (14) (197) (18,793)
Impairment loss RIEEE = (93,505) (384) = (93,889)
Currency realignment MERE 54 7,466 - 6 7,526
As at 31 December 2019 R-Z—NEF
T=HE—E 3,077 372,997 - 284 376,358
2019 2018
—E-NF —ZT-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBFT
Analysed into: DT -
Media CGU BB SELSM 372,997 -
Brokerage and Margin CGU KERRIESREEFEN 3,077 =
Unallocated corporate office RO ARIMRERE 284 -
376,358 =
The impairment assessment of Media CGU and Brokerage and ERASELBURELRREBSR
Margin CGU are set out in Note 19 and Note 20 respectively. BB A B AL B R E R DRI E R I R
19520 °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REREERERME (R

31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE 18. FAEERHESEE - &
LIABILITIES — CONTINUED
As a lessee - continued EREBEA - &
(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEESE
The carrying amounts of the lease liabilities and the movements HEAGBLERAERFREEHNT :

during the year are as follows:

Leased Motor
properties vehicles Total
HEWZE E #E
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKFT ARBEFT AREFT
As at 1 January 2019 RZZE—h&—HA—H
— Upon adoption of HKFRS 16 —RRB B ISR
(Note 2(a)(i)) ERERE165R1%
(HeE2(a)i) 3,041 410 3,451
Additions NE 1,793 - 1,793
Accretion of interest recognised BRI SR
(Note 9) (Ktet9) 138 11 149
Payments NE (2,074) (217) (2,291)
Currency realignment EAE 53 5 58
As at 31 December 2019 R-ZE—NF
+=A=+-~8 2,951 209 3,160
Analysed into: MU :
Current portion BN D 1,963 209 2,172
Non-current portion ERBEBD 988 - 988
2,951 209 3,160
The total cash outflow for leases and the maturity analysis of HEZReRHEERHEESE 2
the lease liabilities are disclosed in Notes 39 and 6(b) to the BB DD RN ER & B 15 MR M 539
consolidated financial statements, respectively. K6(b) 555 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
i 8RR M (R)

31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE 18. EFREEEREERAGE - &
LIABILITIES - CONTINUED
As a lessee - continued ERABA - &
(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are as (c) HEERERERRAZSE|NT
follows:
2019
—E-hEF
RMB’000
ARBFT
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 9) HEBERN L (M:29) 149
Depreciation charged on right-of-use assets FREEEZIE L (MZE10)
(Note 10) 18,793
Expenses relating to short-term leases and BEEHREERABTHAR S —IF
other leases with remaining lease terms ended +—A=t—Hs ARz
on or before 31 December 2019 (Note 10) HthAEE@ 2R (f:E10) 1,289
Total amounts recognised in profit or loss RIBEERTERZ B3 20,231

AEEREELSARE209,0007T 25
BHERKFPFETRT  UMEALEE
EREERE 2T (ME31@0)) -

The Group’s motor vehicles with carrying amount of
approximately RMB209,000 was pledged to certain banks to
secure the credit facilities granted to the Group (Note 31(a)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERNE (R

31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. B EE

Premium over Film rights
prepaid lease and licence Trading
payments Trademarks rights

REEE [l Rk 5t
RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000

AREFT ARETT AREFT AREFT ARETFT
(Note (i) (Note (i) (Note (iii) (Note (iv))
(Hia()) (Hai) (Haii) (Hia(v)

COST B
As at 1 January 2018 R=Z-\&—A—H - 26,735 2,484 6,512 35,731
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 11) WeEER B AR (A2 11) 465,858 253 26,116 - 492,227
Additions NE - 82,197 - - 82,197
Currency realignment H(E R 26,427 4,784 1,690 295 33,196
As at 31 December 2018 R-E-\E+=-A=1+—H 492,285 113,969 30,290 6,807 643,351
Upon initial application of HKFRS 16 BAERBBMBRE

(Note 2(a)) ERIE 16514 (M1522(a) (492,285) = = o (492,285)
As at 1 January 2019 R-_E—N&E—F—H - 113,969 30,290 6,807 151,066
Additions NE - 68,617 - - 68,617
Disposals (Note 8) & (f1aE8) - (15,053) - - (15,053)
Currency realignment BEAZ - 523 500 123 1,146
As at 31 December 2019 R-E-hE+=A=1+—-H - 168,056 30,790 6,930 205,776
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION R BHERAE

AND IMPAIRMENT
As at 1 January 2018 RZE-\F—A—H - - - = =
Amortisation (Note 10) B (hit10) 16,048 56,543 - - 72,591
Impairment loss REER - 40,680 3 - 40,683
Currency realignment EERE 430 3,918 - - 4,348
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
wEMESERME(R

31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS — CONTINUED 19. B EE - &

Premium over Film rights
prepaid lease and licence Trading
payments fees  Trademarks rights

] ar il
it REER Bl Rtk 5t
00 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

RMB’0
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

(i) (Note (iii) (Note (iv))

(Note (i) (Note

(H1z()) (i) (Bt (i) (B (v)
As at 31 December 2018 RZZ2-N\E+ZA=+—-H 16,478 101,141 3 = 117,622
Upon initial application of HKFRS 16 BRERBBMERE
(Note 2(a)) ERIE1651& (M5 2(a) (16,478) = — - (16,478)
As at 1 January 2019 RZZ-NF—-HA—H - 101,141 3 - 101,144
Amortisation (Note 10) BE(ME10) - 7,394 - - 7,394
Disposals (Note 8) HE (Hizts) - (11,597) - - (11,597)
Impairment loss EEE - 47,492 - - 47,492
Currency realignment KEHRE - 958 - - 958
As at 31 December 2019 R-B-h&E+=-A=1+-8H - 145,388 3 - 145,391
CARRYING VALUES REE
As at 31 December 2019 R-B-h&E+=-A=1+-8H - 22,668 30,787 6,930 60,385
As at 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F+=-A=1+—H 475,807 12,828 30,287 6,807 525,729
Analysed into: AWHT
As at 31 December 2019 R-ZB-h&E+=-A=t-H
Media CGU KRRSELEN - 273 28,106 = 28,379
Brokerage and Margin CGU BERRECREEEEN - - 2,681 6,930 9,611
Unallocated corporate office VAN NG Y - 22,395 - - 22,395
- 22,668 30,787 6,930 60,385
As at 31 December 2018 R=ZB-\E+=-A=1+—8
Media CGU KERSEESM 475,807 12,828 27,607 - 516,242
Brokerage and Margin CGU EERRESHSESEN - - 2,680 6,807 9,487
475,807 12,828 30,287 6,807 525,729
Impairment assessments of intangible assets of Brokerage and Margin RO NIRBGIRSELEBNNETLEENR
CGU are set out in Note 20. B SR HzE20
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS — CONTINUED

The carrying amount of non-financial assets allocated to Media CGU are
as follows:

w8 MEE &M GE)

31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

19. B EE - &
SDEEEBRCEABNVMNIETHEEERA
(=R N

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2019 2018
—T—NEF = N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARWFT ARWFT

Carrying value: ARTEME :

Property, plant and equipment (Note 16) M - BE &R (KFE16) - 8,192
Right-of-use assets (Note 18(a)) EFREEE(H7F18(a) 372,997 =
Intangible assets A E 28,379 516,242
401,376 524,434

The recoverable amount of Media CGU as at 31 December 2019
has been determined to be approximately RMB401,376,000 (2018:
RMB524,355,000) based on the value-in-use calculation (2018: value-
in-use calculation) with reference to a professional valuation performed
by Valtech. That value-in-use calculations use cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management covering an
indefinite period (2018: indefinite period) as estimated by the Group
as there is no foreseeable limitation on the period of time over which
the CGU is expected to generate economic benefits to the Group. The
pre-tax discount rate used of 16.91% (2018: 15.29%) for Media CGU.
Management determined the budgeted revenue and costs based on
past performance and its expectations for the market development.
The cash flows beyond five years (2018: five years) have been
extrapolated using a steady 3% (2018: 3%) growth rate for revenue
and expenses respectively. Based on the assessment, impairment loss
on property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and right-of-use
assets of approximately RMB6,990,000 (Note 16), RMB7,101,000 and
RMB93,505,000 (Note 18) respectively were recognised during the year
(2018: the impairment loss on intangible assets and property, plant and
equipment of approximately RMB40,683,000 and RMB26,531,000 and
respectively).

HREBESCELABEMNR_T—NLF+=-A
=t+—AZARESENIRESE HR#ET
ZEEGEZERAEEFE(ZZE—NF :
ERAEAENE)EE RN ARKAL01,376,000
(=T —N\F : AR¥524,355,0007T) °
EHREREETERAERNEEBIERS
AEBGFAERH(ZT—N\F : ERH)
ZHENMGERE cHemETEA - I8
RBCEEEMWEAER R - RiHlE
TEHAAEET REENZ - RERBREE
EBEMAERZ AR EE16.91% (=%
—N\F :1529%) - EEEREBTRER
HYMBRRZPEETBERS IR -
WakAXZBBRAFH(ZE—N\F: A
FHIZREeREDAERABELREI%
(ZZ—\F : 3%) 8 - BETH - FA
HRYE  BMEREE  BREENRER
BEEZREEED L ARE,990,000
TT(FisE16) ~ AR®7,101,0007T &2 A R #
93,505,000 T (MisE18) (=T — )\ & : &}
BENRDE  BERREBZREEBES 5
# AR #40,683,0007T K2 AR ¥ 26,531,000
JT) °

1Y/
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
i 8RR M (R)

31 December 2019 —_ZE—Nh&FE+_-_HA=+—H

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS — CONTINUED

198

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Upon completion of the acquisition of ATV, the directors of the Company
re-assessed the nature of the leasehold land and buildings included in
property, plant and equipment of the ATV. Hence, the leasehold land and
buildings were reclassified as “premium over prepaid lease payments”
included in intangible assets. The underlying prepaid lease payments
has lease term of 42 years commencing 22 September 2005. Therefore,
premium over prepaid lease payments is amortised over 29 years which is
the remaining lease term since acquisition of ATV. Upon the application
of HKFRS 16, the premium over prepaid lease payments was reclassified to
right-of-use assets as at 1 January 2019 (Note 2(a)).

Film rights and licence fees represent direct expenditure incurred by the
Group until the programmes are available to broadcast on the Over-The-Top
("OTT") platform of the Group. Film rights is the fees incurred to acquire
the right for broadcasting transcripts of films on the OTT platform of the
Group during the terms ranging from 1 year to 2 years. Licence fees are
fees incurred to obtain rights to use film rights or music copyrights owned
by the independent third parties for production of films by the Group. Film
rights and licence fees are amortised on estimated viewing patterns. The
amortisation is on an accelerated basis as the Group typically expects more
upfront viewings.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group entered into two film
rights and licence agreements with two independent third parties (“Vendors
A and B"”), pursuant to which the film rights and the licences of twenty
movies were acquired by the Group for contractual period of 4 years at
the consideration of approximately RMB32,177,000 and RMB31,104,000
respectively (2018: Nil). The Group is entitled to (i) broadcast and distribute
the underlying movies on its newly launched OTT or distribute to other
platforms and (ii) re-produce the films. The Group begins amortisation when
the Group expects to use its film rights and licence. During the year ended
31 December 2019, the Group has not provided any amortisation as the
new OTT platform will be officially launched in early 2021.

These film rights and licences are identifiable assets which generate cash
flows that largely independent of the cash flows from the Media CGU,
so separate impairment assessment has been conducted. The recoverable
amount of the film rights and licences as at 31 December 2019 have been
determined by external valuation experts, AP Appraisal Limited (“APA"),
based on the present value of expected future revenues and related cash
flows arising from the distribution of the relevant films and their residual
values, which were derived from discounting the projected cash flows using
a discount rate of 14%.

The carrying amounts of film rights and licence fees have been reduced
to their recoverable amount through recognition of the provision
for impairment losses of approximately RMB47,492,000 (2018:
RMB40,680,000).

Trademark was acquired by the Group as part of ATV (Note 11) and Million
Federal International Limited (“Million Federal”). The trademarks have no
foreseeable limit to period that the Group can use to generate net cash
flows, accordingly, the trademarks are considered as having an indefinite
useful lives.

Trading rights represents rights that confer eligibility of the Group to trade
on the Stock Exchange as part of the acquisition of Million Federal. The
trading rights have no foreseeable limit to period that the Group can use to
generate net cash flows, accordingly, the trading rights are considered as
having an indefinite useful lives.

ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGSLIMITED | EH E R ZE R B R A A

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

19- ﬂﬁgﬁg . ng
B &t

MK BBERE - ARREEEHT G
AR - BB RREOEE L RE
FHME - At HETHREFHREHRS
BAFAEVEETN [BBRNEENR
WaEl FHENEEXERECFHERR
B-ZTRENA -+ HiR425F o FHt -
BBENEERENRERN B REEER
BT HEHN29F N - NERTBME
HEERE16551L - BBBRNEEFRN
EBENPRE_ZT-NF-—A-—BZERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REREERERME (R

31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

20. GOODWILL

20. &

2019 PAONES]

—T—NF —ZT—)\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARMFT

As at 1 January mw—A—H 20,077 20,274
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 71) s B AR (Hfat11) - 114,366
Impairment loss RIERE — (114,366)
Currency realignment BEARE 364 (197)
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—8 20,441 20,077

RZEBE-NF+ZA=+—HZEETAK
BEOIMEL UNEELKLEMRBLRS
ELEEBL -

Goodwill as at 31 December 2019 was arising from the acquisition of
Million Federal which was allocated to Brokerage and Margin CGU.

PRERREFRBERECELEM 2 MK
BEZIREEWT :

The carrying amount of non-financial assets allocated to Brokerage and
Margin CGU are as follows:

As at 31 December
®+=A=+—8

2019

—T—NF
RMB’000
AREFT

2018
—ZT-N\F
RMB’000
ARBFT

Carrying value: ARMEIE :

Property, plant and equipment (Note 16) Y BB REE (A EE16) 532 799

Right-of-use assets (Note 18(a)) EREAEME18() 3,077 =

Intangible assets (Note 19) | EE(HaE19) 9,611 9,487

Goodwill S 20,441 20,077
33,661 30,363
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i 8RR M (R)

31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

20.

200

GOODWILL - CONTINUED

The recoverable amount of Brokerage and Margin CGU as at
31 December 2019 has been determined to be approximately
RMB39,136,000 (2018: RMB69,102,000) based on a value-in-
use calculation (2018: value-in-use calculation) with reference to
a professional valuation performed by Valtech. That value-in-use
calculation use cash flow projections based on most recent financial
budget approved by management covering an indefinite period as
estimated by the Group as there is no foreseeable limitation on the
period of time over which the CGU is expected to generate economic
benefits to the Group. Cash flows beyond the projection period are
extrapolated using an estimated growth rate of 3% (2018: 3%). The
pre-tax rate used to discount the forecast cash flows is 17.11% (2018:
15.58%).

The key assumptions for the Group have been determined by the
Group’s management based on past performance and its expectation for
the industry development. The pre-tax discount rate reflect specific risks
relating to the relevant segment.

Based on the assessment, no impairment loss was recognised during the
year (2018: Nil).

For sensitivity analysis, had there been a 1% reduction of future
business growth rate or 2% increase in discount rate in the value-in-use
calculations each in isolation, no significant impairment loss of goodwill
is resulted.

ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGSLIMITED | EH E R ZE R B R A A

20- %% oy IIE

KERRBSHESELEBEMNR=_Z— L&
TZ A=+ HAZAKELEERES
ERHRETZEXFEZCAEBETE
(ZZE—N\F: CAEBEHE)BETAHA
R #39,136,000t(ZZE—\F : AR
69,102,0007T) - AR EBEFERARE
REREIERERNEE (T AEREZH
MrSI R BEE 2R RET8 - 1T
HRESEESEMWERTER ZHR - Rl
HBBMAARE BT REEN o BiBTERF
HzReREFEAMHTEREIR(ZT—N
F 3% - ARRBERARESREZH
BIAIRAE17.11%(ZF—\F : 15.58%) °

AEENIZBRRDBEAEEEEEREZE
EXRAREHTERRNAHAMETE - Hial
BRI R AR SRR D B R R B o

HERAFE - FATEERRESE(ZE—N
FE) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

20.

21.

22.

w8 MEE &M GE)

31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

GOODWILL - CONTINUED 20. BE - &
Goodwill arose from acquisition of ATV during the year ended 31 REBEE_Z—\F+-_A=+—HIFER
December 2018 was allocated to Media CGU. WEGEMEAZRE A HEBHESES
B o
Upon completion of the acquisition of ATV, the directors of the R UIBERE  RARESRELSE
Company engaged Valtech, to carry out a valuation of the Media CGU NERZABFENSEREBER - HEEE
that was expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination, mREHRINE KR SELESEMETT
based on facts and circumstances existing as at that date. The directors BE - AR EFAERKEER B 2R
of the Company became aware of the impairment loss at the date of BEE  BAKBEEREE_Z—/\F+=
acquisition of the ATV so that the Group fully recognised the impairment A=+t—HItFE2EERRESWEBELD
loss of the goodwill arisen from the acquisition of ATV of approximately AER#114,366,0007T 2 EEREEE -
RMB 114,366,000 for the year ended 31 December 2018.
OTHER DEPOSITS 21. HR<
Other assets mainly represent statutory and other deposits with the EMEETEANBIFIREEMZEER
Stock Exchange and clearing houses, which are non-interest bearing. Hiixe - EATEE o
INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 22. A& NS 2R
As at 31 December
R+=—RA=+—AH
2019 2018
—ZT-NF —ZT—)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARKFT
Share of fair value of net assets on acquisition ~ H{EKEREEFEZAFE 235,817 235,817
Goodwill EES 149,579 149,579
Share of post-acquisition profit or loss DEY R &R T S g 1E (217,799) (206,710)
167,597 178,686
Less: Loss on deemed disposal B SRIERE 2 EE (21,527) -
Impairment loss RIEEE (77,873) (56,798)
Currency realignment EAR (4,477) (3,747)
63,720 118,141
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
i 8RR M (R)

31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

22. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE - CONTINUED 22. REFENT o - 18

Particular of the associate are as follows: BE AR ZERNT

Place of

Percentage of ownership

Particulars of incorporation/ interest attributable

issued shares held

P E 31T

operation

Al eV

to the Group
REEPTIGHEAE

Principal activity

202

RipHEE

Yong Tai Berhad
("Yong Tai")

150,030,000
(2018: 150,030,000)
ordinary shares; and
60,000,000
(2018: 60,000,000)
ICPS (as defined
below)
150,030,0004%
(ZZ2—N\&F:
150,030,000/ )
Tak o &
60,000,000/%
—E-)\F:
60,000,000/%)
ISR B8 [0 AT AR B 5
R (E&E R TX)

Malaysia

ARG E (kK ]) i

EIEMh R R
2019

19.78%

o) EEX
2018

—ZE-N\F

28.60%  Property development
and development and
operation of tourism

stage performance

28.60% WEERURZERREE

I 5E 6 2R

On 9 May 2017, Full Winning Developments Limited (“Full Winning”),
a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an
agreement with Impression Culture Asia Limited, a subsidiary of Sino
Haijing Holdings Limited (Stock code: 1106) to acquire 107 million
ordinary shares of Yong Tai (“Yong Tai Shares”), a company listed on the
Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, at the consideration
of approximately Malaysian Ringgit (“RM") 117,700,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB189,016,000). Following this acquisition, the Group
owned as to 16.42% equity interest in Yong Tai.

On 2 August 2017, Full Winning entered into the subscription agreement
with Yong Tai. Under the subscription agreement, Full Winning had
conditionally agreed to subscribe for 43,000,000 new Yong Tai shares
at the issue price of RM1.26 (equivalent to approximately HK$2.29) per
share which represents 6.17% equity interest in Yong Tai as enlarged by
the allotment and issue of the subscription. Following this subscription,
the Group owned as to 21.53% equity interest in Yong Tai.

ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGSLIMITED | EH ER Z R E R A A

RZZ—tFRHANA ARRIZEERZE
MEARLREERABRAR ([ EHE])EHRE
BEERERA R (RHARE : 1106) 2B
A allmpression Culture Asia Limited&] 32 155
F o AREAR(—ERSRALELRRS
FrEiR £ 2 A 7)) 2 107,000,0000% & i i%
([RRI&D]) P R2REHR/FRA
HoE([F%1)117,700,0007T (FBEZERL A
[R#189,016,0007T) - WK IZ - ANEH
WA KK Z16.42 %A -

R-Z—+tFENA-H  LFEKATIR
B - RIERERZ  YRAKERER
BITEEREE1.26T(HEERK2.29% )
AHE43,000,0008 K KFTAD  HHERER
BREREITMERZ KAREZ6.17% °
RETRE  AEBBEAKKZ21.53%K
T o
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22. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE - CONTINUED 22. REgENT 2= - &

On 9 January 2018, Full Winning acquired 60,000,000 Irredeemable
Convertible Preference Share (“ICPS”) of Yong Tai at the consideration
of RM66,000,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB109,312,000)
which represents 8.17% equity interest in Yong Tai because the Group
has determined that the ICPS represented present ownership interests
in Yong Tai as the ICPS are convertible to its ordinary shares from 28
November 2019 without any further consideration. The effective interest
of the Group in Yong Tai after taking into account the ICPS and all issued
and outstanding ICPS held by other parties would be 28.60% as at 31
December 2018.

Upon the special issue and conversion of ICPS during the year ended
31 December 2019, the registered capital of Yong Tai was enlarged
from approximately RM535,901,000 to RM611,404,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB852,375,644 to RMB994,081,000) and the Group’s
effective equity interest in Yong Tai was diluted to 19.78% resulting in
a loss on deemed disposal of approximately RMB21,527,000. In view of
the significant influence can be still exercised through participation in
the directors’ and shareholders’ meeting of Yong Tai, it continued to be
classified as an associate even the equity interests was diluted to lower
than 20%.

Based on the quoted market price of the ordinary shares and ICPS held
by the Group, total impairment loss of approximately RMB21,075,000
was recognised in the profit or loss during the year ended 31 December
2019 (2018: RMB56,798,000).

The financial reporting date of the above associate is not coterminous
with those of the Group, as it has financial year ending 30 June.

R=ZZF—NF—ARNLB Hr 2FKE
60,000,000 & 7k X 1~ AJ & [E] A #2 ik 18 5t ik
(I AR AmRELER])  REARSE
66,000,0007T (H85 R 4 A K #109,312,000
TL)  fhKKR8.17% M - REARERTA
BEOAEBREERIE T —hF+—A
“+HN\BRREEESHARTER WASKE
B 52 5 A BE B Pl 32 AR 4B SR AR AR B A BR B
KK Z A R o A& 5T A fE B A #2
REEBRRABHEMATRAEZBEZEITR
EETABELRAMRRELER  NEBR T
—NF+ZA=+—BBEBEZRKABEEEZR
7228.60% ©

REBEE-_ZT—NE+_A=+—HBILEEE
Bl % 17 I 8% 2 71 A fE B AT 3R BR B R AR 18
KR Z #E & AN B 49 55 % 535,901,000 7T 4%
AEFE 611,404,000 (HERODARE
852,375,644 7T & A R #994,081,0007T )

MAEBRKAR 2 B RE#RE519.78% -
BHBRELHEZEBEBLHARE21,527,000
TL o BRI B RBEK A ZEEEH MR
RASTEEAFES]  EREESER
R20% @ HEEW B ABENF -

ERAEEIFE N EBR &R0 E R Rk
BEBRHTISHRE  REBEE-T—NF+=
A=+ BILFEZERERAREEBLEE
HARE21,075,000L (=2 —N\F : ARK
56,798,0007T) °

st B X B B A i B R E R AR B Y B

BmsAMTEpE  RANREEARS
~AA=+8 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
i 8RR M (R)

31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

22. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE - CONTINUED 22. REFENT o - 18

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s material KRNEBREE 7ERBEAL - HEIEER
associate, Yong Tai, extracted from its consolidated financial statements (Fsr B B A M SmER )BT
is as below:

2019 PAONES]
—E-hEF —T-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARBFT
As at 31 December R+=—HA=+—H
Current assets mENEE 672,991 582,694
Non-current assets ERBEE 431,380 414,143
Current liabilities mEAE (603,486) (550,201)
Non-current liabilities JEmBEE (245,756) (282,942)
Equity and net assets e R EEFE 255,129 163,694
Year ended 31 December BEt+t-A=+—HLEE
Revenue W25 150,486 184,154
Loss for the year FREE (40,863) (709,313)
Total comprehensive expense FHEMS B (40,863) (709,313)
As at 31 December R+=—H=+—8~
Fair value of the Group's investment based AEEETREENTISREAE
on quoted market price /NS 63,720 118,141
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

23. INVENTORIES

w8 MEE &M GE)

31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

23. 78

2019 PAONES]

—ZE-NF —T-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFr ARKFiT

Raw materials R 35,015 43,830
Finished goods A 50,922 47,671
85,937 91,501

As at 31 December 2019, certain inventories with original cost
amounting to approximately RMB161,283,000 (2018: approximately
RMB161,625,000) were stated at net realisable value of approximately
RMB25,011,000 (2018: approximately RMB28,882,175).

As demand from (i) emerging markets of fabrics and trading business
and (ii) Hong Kong market of Set Top boxes of entertainment and
media business remained weak during the year ended 31 December
2019, the Group has made net write-down of inventories amounting to
approximately RMB4,204,000 (2018: approximately RMB42,597,000).

R-ZT—AFE+-—A=1+—8 ' RIEREY
AR¥161,283,000(ZF—\F : HHAR
#161,625,0007T) 2 & THEE®&RA # 1 )5FE
HARHE25,011,0000( Z2—NF : HAR
#28,882,1757C) BBk °

HRGOME K E S EREHNET IS KR
S EREEENRBEEEMEBZERKR
BE_ZT-hhE+-_A=+—HIEE4%
BED A5EEMBREEFEOAR
B 4204000 C(ZE—NF: HARE
42,597,0007T) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
i 8RR M (R)

31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 24. EE R EMEWEZ - R4 R

AND PREPAYMENTS T RIE
2019 PAONES]
—ZE-NEF T N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFr AR Fr
Trade receivables from securities brokerage BELLERBRRES
services and margin finance segment BMEDHEZE S RKIRER
(Note (a)) (K17t(a) 78,694 145,456
Less: Allowances for bad and doubtful debts  J& @ RIZERE (14,384) (9,958)
64,310 135,498
Trade receivables from other segments HEihpiE 2 E S ERERK
(Note (b)) (K17 b)) 10,400 10,536
Less: Allowances for bad and doubtful debts  Ji : RIZERE & (4,629) (6,291)
5,771 4,245
Deposits paid to suppliers (Note (c)) B RER 2 R (Mat(c) 21,518 29,081
Less: Allowances for impairment R R B (8,561) (11,632)
12,957 17,449
Other deposits, receivables and prepayments Hbizs - BRI R IB B
— Value-added tax recoverable — Al [El 7 I E R 850 913
— Other receivables and prepayments - Efth U AR R TR SR IE
(Note (d)(i)) (Bt aE(d)(i)) 30,582 54,034
— Other deposits - Efhiz & 1,038 1,105
— Amounts due from related companies - [EURREE A RIFB
(Note (d)(ii)) (Bt az(d)(ii)) 1,090 4,365
33,560 60,417
116,598 217,609
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS - CONTINUED

(a)

Trade receivables from securities brokerage
services and margin finance segment

Trading limits are set for customers. The Group seeks to maintain
tight control over its outstanding trade receivables in order to
minimise credit risk.

Trade receivables from cash clients and securities clearing houses
arising from securities dealing business are repayable on demand
subsequent to the settlement date. The normal settlement terms
of said trade receivables are, in general, two days after trade
date. The Group allows a credit period mutually agreed with the
contracting parties for receivables from margin clients.

The Group maintains accounts with the securities clearing houses
through which it conducts securities trading transactions and
settlement on a net basis.

Except for receivables from margin client, the Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.
The Group is allowed to dispose of the securities or futures
deposited by the customers with the Group to settle any overdue
amount.

The receivables from margin clients (net of impairment) of
approximately RMB48,757,000 (2018: RMB110,215,000) bears
the interest at a range of 8.63% to 11% (2018: 8.5% to 11%) per
annum and are secured by investments held by margin clients of
approximately RMB110,747,000 (2018: RMB470,418,000) as at
31 December 2019.

The impairment of trade receivables arising from cash client and
securities clearing house is measured on lifetime ECL basis. For
impairment of trade receivables from margin client, the Group
applies the general approach and considers there has been a
significant increase in credit risk when the client cannot meet the
margin call requirement and specific LTV to make its assessment.

No aging analysis by invoice date is disclosed for trade receivables
from securities brokerage services and margin finance segment as,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, an aging analysis
is not meaningful in view of the business nature of securities
dealings.

i & M B8] & W EE (18)

31 December 2019 —_E—hF+_-_HA=+—H

i f’i%& {hEWARR - BER
'f—J'?rAIE ]
(a) BELREBRBRRAREESRHES

B2 E 5 BURR
AEEREEFZSRE - AEEK
REESER AT YA

BREEE  BRGEERRAERE -

%Q%%E?ﬁ%%zrﬂﬁﬁé@ﬁ&
BHREMCEIRRERREE
fé:/,\?%z%*fak%°—ﬁﬁu bt
SEVER 2 EREERAR SRR
MK e Kﬁl?ﬁﬂgﬂﬁl%gﬁé%ﬁZE
WHRRGE TRITNDERBEZEE
H -

AEBEBSEEMARERS » AR
ﬁTTnA%EE X5 I&/?%Eg+5g

1T#E -

RERRESE S 2 BRI - &

EEVERZSERTEEAERR

HEHMEEERIER - NEBEEAR

HEBRFTFERASEEZESLHAE
LABE R HAFRIE -

T—NAF+=ZA=+—H ' EIK
17‘% w2 EWER K (F0BRIRE) 4
ANR#48,757,0007c(ZZ—/\F : A
R ¥110,215,0007T) 1% F ) & 8.63%
QH%(:”-/\E S 8.5%%FE11%)5t
CWARBESRFABRAEANAR
%110,747,0007c(_;:—/\¢ AR
#470,418,0007T ) {EIE 3 o

RERECBFPRESFGEEMZESE
WEERZBENRE2BEREESE

EEGE - BRERBFEREPZES
BRERZBREMS @ NEBEER—
MAE - BERFPEERNREBHRE
2EXK  AEERAEERREZE
B WEAREERE B EH T
(=

HRARRERENBFEEZER
MEMRBRROTEE A I
ﬂ?ftﬂi@?“%i‘“%aﬁﬁi’%&%?“éﬁﬂé
%EZ SRR ERER B Y
BEBS DA o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 24. S R EMEWES - 4R
AND PREPAYMENTS - CONTINUED BAFIE-&
(a) Trade receivables from securities brokerage (a) BHELRLBRERAIFSHES

services and margin finance segment -
continued

Movement in the allowances for impairment:

BB ZRWIRR &

EREES

2019 2018

—E-NF —ZE-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETF T ARETFT

At the beginning under HKAS 39 REDRBEBGHERE395% - 3,567
Impact on initial application of HKFRS 9 BRERAE BV EREER

BORHTE - 315

Adjusted balance at 1 January R—A— BREARESR 9,958 3,882

Impairment loss made during the year FERRERETE 10,932 5,659

Reversal of impairment loss recognised F AR EEERE

during the year (1,756) (208)

Amounts written-off of uncollectible 85 AT U 2] 458 (4,791) -

Currency realignment MERE 41 625

As at 31 December ®n+=—A=+—8 14,384 9,958

The impairment allowance is considered as adequately provided
for as the directors of the Company have individually evaluated
their trade receivables after taking into account the LTV for each
borrower, and other information available of those borrowers
in default of settlement to determine the net present value of
expected future cash inflow.

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables from

securities brokerage and margin finance business are set out in
Note 6(b)(i).

208 ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGS LIMITED | = ER =R AR 4 &

HRARAEERNEBSBRAZE
REEL AR ARE MR RZERA
ZHMABEREK EREZREE
FOETTERBIFE M - #E T EE RHIAR K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS - CONTINUED
(b) Trade receivables from other segments
The Group does not provide credit period to its customers. The
ageing analysis of the trade receivables from other segments, net
of impairment as at the reporting date, based on invoice date and
due date, is as follows:

w8 MEE &M GE)

31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

24. ESREMBWERR - BER

BARE - &

(b) Hftn ¥ 285 ERIRK
ARETEARRPREREN - R
SCEEREYPS P2 £ VG
(S RLME) B % TR A B R B M A 2 B

BT :

2019 2018

—2-hEF —2-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ANRETT ARBT T

0 to 90 day(s) 0%90H 5,555 3,583
91 to 180 days 91£180H 216 461
181 to 270 days 1812270H - -
271 to 365 days 271%2365H - 201
5,771 4,245

The Group applies the simplified approach for all trade receivables
of other segments. To measure impairment, trade receivables
have been grouped base on shared credit risk characteristic as the
days past due. The impairment also incorporated forward looking
information.

AREEREMO B ZAEE S REE
RERBIEIE - BREtEREE E5
e Wi B R B AR R L R 5 B L B A U
BEHEBCETT A o RETA AR
MEF -
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31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 24. S R EMEWES - 4R

AND PREPAYMENTS — CONTINUED FENRE-&

(b) Trade receivables from other segments - (b) HthoBEESEWERR - &
continued
Movement in the allowances for impairment: TREREED)

2019 2018
—E-hF —ZE-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARWFT ARBFT
At the beginning under HKAS 39 RENRBESGTERE395% - 2,712
Impact on initial application of HKFRS 9 BAXERE BV BMREEL
FORHTE - 1,102
Adjusted balance at 1 January R—A—BERARER 6,291 3,814
Impairment loss made during the year FR IR EEE 1,299 3,010
Reversal of impairment loss recognised FANERREEERE
during the year (2,828) (654)
Currency realignment MAE T (133) 121
As at 31 December W+—_A=+—H 4,629 6,291
Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables from other KEEMDENE HRKERZRE
segments are set out in Note 6(b)(ii). FTE B ER M 6 (b)) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REREERERME (R

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS — CONTINUED

Deposits paid to suppliers

Deposits was paid to certain independent third parties as deposits

(c)

(d)

to purchase raw materials of the processing and printing of fabrics

in the subsequent period. Movement in allowance for impairment

of deposits paid to suppliers is as follows:

31 December 2019 — & —

NE+-ZA=+—H

24, ESNHMEWERR - ek
FANRIE - &
() ENftEEZZS
AEBERETBEIYLE =X TR
& - (EARE%Z R B A R0 T A0 ED
TIFRBEMBZES - BRIHE
AZEE 2 REREESHOT ¢

2019 PAONES]

—NE —\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARSFr AREFT

As at 1 January nW—HA—H 11,632 16,727

Impairment loss during the year (Note 8) FERREEE(H28) 1,182 2,908

Reversal of impairment loss recognised FRERBRE/BERD(FZ8)

during the year (Note 8) (4,253) (8,003)

As at 31 December w+—A=+—8 8,561 11,632
Other deposits, receivables and prepayments (d) Hftize  BEURERRAEMSRK

(i)

(i)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group paid
approximately HK$34,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB29,849,000) to an independent third party which had
been processing the claims of the creditor of a partial-
owned subsidiary, ATV, under a scheme of arrangement
(the “Creditor Scheme”) approved on 12 September 2017.
As at 31 December 2019, the remaining balance of the
claims is amounted to approximately HK$15,470,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB13,827,000).

Save for the above, the balances as at 31 December
2019 included (i) the prepayments of certain operational
expenses; (i) the consideration receivables in relation to the
disposal of intangible assets; and (iii) the receivables from
the sales of electronic components.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, a provision for
impairment amounted to approximately RMB2,866,000 was
reversed as the settlement received in full.

The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand.

(i)

(i)
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HE-Z—/\&+=-A=+—H
LHFEE  AEBRA—ZBUE=
75 % 15t #934,000,0003% 7T (#8 &
RH AR #29,849,0007T) * #%
E=F—ERBR=Z—tF
NWA+=B#AEN—BEKEE
ZHE ([ EEARTE]) EE—
BOEBWE QAR EE
ABER - RZT—NF+=H
=t+—H ZF5HRRIZHBBEHA
15,470,000 7T (HERH AR
#13,827,0007T) °

B X pratE SN - B _gﬁfhi
T-A=+—RZEHREHE>)
TREMX ZANRE u)ﬁ
MEERTEEZRKAKE &
(i) 2 F AP A 88 6 2 FE MR BR X o

BE—_ZE-/\F+-A=+—H
EFE - aARBI 2 8&E MR
B MEERERBNARE
2,866,0007T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

i 8 M ¥ 8 &M (E)

31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

25. LOAN RECEIVABLES

25. EWER

2019 PAONES]
—T-NF —ZT—)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFr ARETFT

Unsecured loans EEMER
— principal - K& 89,494 108,763
— interest - F B 20,148 12,303
Less: Impairment loss recognised B BERREEE (23,237) (20,873)
86,405 100,193

The Group’s loan receivables, which arisen from the money lending
business in Hong Kong, were denominated in HK$. The net carrying
values of the loan principal and interest receivables in original currency
as at 31 December 2019 amounted to approximately HK$85,127,000
(2018: HK$102,349,000) and approximately HK$11,544,000 (2018:
HK$11,779,000), respectively.

Aging analysis of loan receivables (after impairment allowances)
prepared based on loan commencement or renewal date, which were

not past due, set out in the relevant contracts is as follows:

AEBZEBER(AREBHNREEBT
EE)AATHE - R=ZE—NLF+=A
=t—HzZREREFRAERMNE(ERRRZ
B ZEREFE S 54 485,127,000 7T

—Z— J\4 : 102,349,000/ 7T) R4 A
11,544,000 7L (=ZZF— )\ : 11,779,000/
JT) °

HEAAOMHERERFBAHREEBD S
REZRBBEKRERCRERER) ZIRIE
DT

2019 2018

—ZE-NEF —ZT-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARBFIT

Less than 1 month PR —1EA - =
1 to 3 month(s) —EAZE=M@A 54,749 26,013
4 to 6 months PO{E A =~ E A 15,099 46,906
7 to 12 months +t@AZE+=M@A 16,557 27,274
86,405 100,193

Loan receivables as at 31 December 2019 are unsecured and interest
bearing at fixed rates ranging from 10% to 36% (2018: 10% to 24%)

per annum.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

25. LOAN RECEIVABLES — CONTINUED

The Group measures lifetime ECL for the loan receivables when the
credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition.

The following is a credit quality analysis of loan receivables under HKFRS
9. In the event that an instalment repayment is overdue, the entire
outstanding balance of loan receivables is classified as overdue.

w8 MEE &M GE)

31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

25. EWWER - &
BB ERUNREER G BEEINE K&
Bt 2RWERZ2HEHEEEE -

AT RE B SHREERNFEMIE T UK
MEBEERIN - WES BEHRS AL - A
ERE R 2 REEEREDRREE -

2019 PAONES]

—T—hF —T—)\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT ARMFT

Neither past due nor credit-impaired BR 38 B IR (S EDRUE 94,826 106,514
Past due and credit impaired BHREERE

- 181- 365 days past due —#H3181%365H - 4,649

— more than 365 days past due — @ BB 365 H 14,816 9,903

109,642 121,066

Less: Allowance for ECLs B EEEBEEEE (23,237) (20,873)

86,405 100,193

Movement in the allowance for impairment:

AR

2019
—ZT-NF

RMB’000
ABHTFIT

PAONRS]
—T-N\F
RMB’000
ARBF T

At the beginning under HKAS 39 REPNRBEES SRR E395% - 9,391
Impact on initial application of HKFRS 9 BIRIE R BB & ER 9%
he, - 5,127
Adjusted balance at 1 January R— A — BRI AR 20,873 14,518
Impairment loss recognised during the year £ R#R 2 MERE 6,157 8,351
Reversal of impairment loss recognised BB FANERZ
during the year IEEE (4,198) (3,002)
Currency realignment MBI 405 1,006
As at 31 December w+=-—A=+—H 23,237 20,873

All the loan receivables are entered with contractual maturity within
3 months to 1 year (2018: 3 months to 1 year). The Group seeks to
maintain tight control over its loan receivables in order to minimise credit
risk by reviewing the borrowers’ or guarantors’ financial positions.

Subsequent to the year ended, the Group entered into an agreement
with one of its borrower and the Vendor B (defined in Note 28(v)),
pursuant to which the Group agreed to fully offset the outstanding
balances due from the borrower against the amount payable to Vendor
B (Note 28(v)). As at 31 December 2019, such loan receivables was
amounted to approximately RMB28,181,000.

Details of impairment assessment of loan receivables are set out in Note

6(b)(ii).

BERKERZEHNIHARR=EAE—F
N(ZE-N\F: ZHAZ—F) - "AEER
NiEBEBERARBERANIBIR - 4
R R E R BERES - BRBERERR

BMERRE -

RERE  AEEBHREFR—ZERARES
Z(EERMWEE28(v)) eI L% @ Bt - A&
EREZENENES 2 BAERR(HE28(v))
SEEBERERERAZREELEL - R=2F
—NFE+ZA=1+—8 BEEERKRERNAE
AR #28,181,0007T ©

M E TR 2 R ERHE BRI FE6(b) i) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

i 8 M ¥ 8 &M (E)

31 December 2019 —E—hAE+=-A=+—H

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

FIEEEZ LM

Listed securities held for trading,

E

26. BERVHEFABZRZUKE

2019
—F—

2018
—ZN\F
RMB’000
ARHTFT

NAF
RMB'000
ARET T

at fair value: (B AFER) :
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong and BB RBIN ETHIRANGE
overseas at fair value (Note (a)) (L RFEE) (Kat(a) 31,361 123,237
Movie investments, at fair value (Note (b)) BEIRE (AT E) (Atb)) 60,332 -
91,693 123,237
Notes: MaE -
(@)  Fair value of listed securities were determined with reference to quoted (@) LEWMBEHFZAFEDNLL2EMBFzMHK

market closing price. During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Group disposed of listed security with carrying amount of approximately
RMB57,109,000 (2018: approximately RMB184,165,000) and recognised
the realised loss of approximately RMB32,793,000 (2018: realised gain of
approximately RMB5,247,000) (Note 10).

As at 31 December 2019, certain listed securities with fair values of
approximately RMB28,855,000 (2018: approximately RMB121,795,000)
were pledged to other financial institutions to secure the credit facilities
granted to the Group (Note 31(b)).

(b) On 11 April 2019 and 14 May 2019, the Group had entered into two movie
investments agreements with a film producer who is an independent third
party, pursuant to which the Group made certain investments in the movie
projects. These two agreements are accounted for as a single transaction
based on the terms and conditions of the agreements and their economic
effects. Total consideration of approximately HK$92,500,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB82,677,000) was based on the fair value estimated
by reference to a professional valuation performed by APA and such
consideration was satisfied by allotment and issue of 370,000,000 ordinary
shares (Note 34), based on the market price of each share of HK$0.25 on
issue date.

The Group is then entitled to a pre-determined share of net distribution
revenue of the respective movies as prescribed in the movie investments
agreements.

The fair values of the movie investments as at the date of acquisition and
31 December 2019 have been determined by APA, based on the best
estimation on the expected future revenue generated by the films less
relevant costs. The fair value of movie investments is level 3 fair value
measurement.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group entered into an
agreement with the film producer and Vendor A (defined in Note 28(v))
to offset the payable of film rights (Note 28(v)) against the share of net
distribution revenue from one of the movies already launched during the
year of approximately RMB835,000.
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=+—HLEFE AEEHERABELNA
R¥#57,109,000T(ZZE— \F : HARK
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RN ARK32,793,000T( =T —/\4F :
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REREERERME (R

31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

27. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK
BALANCES AND CASH
Bank balances carry interest at market rates ranging from 0% to 0.35%
(2018: 0% to 0.35%) per annum as at 31 December 2019.

27. EERFRTERURBRITHEER
ERE
RoE-AF+=A=+—0  BORBE
B4 B K0%Z0.35% (B —\FF : 0% %

0.35%)FH 8 °

2019 2018
—T-NEF = N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKFIT ARKFIT
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR KRR
- segregated accounts (Note (i) - B (H773)) 71,417 135,815
— pledged bank deposits (Note (ii) - BEBRITERA ) - 20,620
— general accounts and cash - —REFPREAS 29,750 16,675
Total bank balances and cash BIRITHR RIS 101,167 173,110
Less: Clients’ monies in segregated account B BERBMRPE 27K
(Note (i) (Ktat() (71,417) (135,815)
Cash and cash equivalents BE MRS EEY 29,750 37,295
Notes: i
(i) From the Group’s ordinary business in provision of brokerage and related (i) ANEBNETIRERL L RABBRG 2 —RE

services, the Group receives and holds money deposited by clients in the BRI SR ETEE - @ U RRE
BPIERZFOR - %ERPHIAF RN G
TSR ZBILIRITREA - REBED R

RIAEZ BIREEF 2B HEMNRR -

course of the conduct of the regulated activities. These clients’ monies are
maintained in segregated bank accounts at market interest rates. The Group
has recognised the corresponding trade payables to respective clients.

(ii) As at 31 December 2019, there was no bank deposit (2018: two) had been (ii)
pledged (Note 31 (a)).

RZT—hFE+—A=+—8  HECKH
BITER(ZZ—\F : mE) (HE31@)) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

28. E5 R EAENIRK

2019 2018
—E—NF

—ZN\F
RMB’000
ABRKFIT

RMB’000
ABHTFT

Trade payables from securities brokerage services FEHFELRBERREFESHENEZ

and margin finance segment (Note (i) B S RERNBRR (A ZEG) 74,719 146,858
Trade payables from other segments (Note (ii) Hihnfaz B 5 EMERR (AT aEG)) 14,733 16,529
Other payables and accruals (Note (iii)) E b e BRI N BT B A (A2t i) 97,257 69,814
Other payables under Creditor Scheme BEREAGTEIIE T HALFER AR

(Note (iv)) (Ktat(iv) 13,125 31,792
Other payables on film rights and FREFRFESE 2 H A B RRK

licence fees (Note (v)) (K1) 80,096 =
Amount due to a director (Note (vi)) FEE B RIE (B (Vi) 13,299 626
Amounts due to directors of the ENBARESRE

subsidiaries (Note (vi)) (Bt vi) 310 153
Amount due to a shareholder of FERZR A RIIR R 5KIE

the Company (Note (vi) (K&t vi) 393 386
Amounts due to non-controlling owners of FEASHBRT /B A R FEIE AR HE B AR IE

subsidiaries (Note (vi)) (HiaEvi) 3,491 55,007
Amounts due to related companies (Note (vii)) JE 5} B A B A (HaE(vii)) 29,824 105
Deposit on disposal of subsidiaries (Note (viii)) HE B A B RIR S (e (viii)) 16,982 16,681
Contract liabilities (Note (ix)) SR8 EM () 28,469 29,713

372,698 367,664
Notes: Bt -
(i) The trade payable balances arising from the ordinary course of business of 10 BEEESHNEYSTESRR AR YES

securities brokerage services and margin finance are normally settled in two
trading days after the trade date except for the money held on behalf of
clients at the segregated bank accounts which are repayable on demand.
No aging analysis is disclosed for as in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, an aging analysis is not meaningful in view of the business nature
of securities dealings and margin financing.

ARBREERIN RN —REFLLRRE R
RECHEXBZEBBRTELZEFE
NEREHREENRZ AHEMERS A
H-ARAEFERA  EREFHEERRE
ERMBRBZEBLE  RROMZERZTDT
R B - WERBERR DT

RREBRRERE - BHRABRFIREER
HHZ2SIZREDTAOT

(i) The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based on the (ii)
invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

216

2019 2018

—T-NF —F-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBEFT AREFT

0 to 90 day(s) 0%F90H 5,797 7,403
91 to 180 days 91ZF180H 1,096 688
181 to 270 days 181%270H 242 993
271 to 365 days 271£2365H 967 864
Over 365 days HBiE365H 6,631 6,581
14,733 16,529
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES - CONTINUED

Notes: — continued

(iii)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Other payables mainly represents (i) amounts due to certain independent
third parties of approximately RMB11,200,000; (ii) interest payables of
approximately RMB36,167,000; and (iii) accrued staff costs and director’s
remuneration of approximately RMB15,349,000 (2018: payables to acquire
or produce film rights, acquire licence and property, plant and equipment).

Other payables under Creditor Scheme represents the amount due to the
claimants of a partial-owned subsidiary, ATV, under Creditor Scheme. These
claims were in process as at 31 December 2019.

The balances represented the payables to acquire the film rights and licence
of twenty films (2018: Nil) (Note 19(ii)) during the year ended 31 December
2019.

On 23 September 2019, the Group entered into the settlement agreement
with the film producer (Note 26(b)) and one of the vendors of film rights
and licences (“Vendor A”) (Note 19(ii)), pursuant to which the Group is
allowed to offset the relevant payables of approximately RMB31,104,000
against the share of net distributed revenue from two movie investments
classified as financial assets at FVTPL (Note 26(b)). During the year ended 31
December 2019, the Group’s share of net distribution revenue generated
from one of the relevant movies investment of approximately RMB835,000
was offset against the consideration payables partially.

The remaining payables of approximately RMB30,269,000 would be offset
against the net distribution revenue generated from the other movie
investment. The Group is not required to compensate the Vendors A any
shortfall in case of the share of net distribution revenue cannot cover the
remaining consideration payable. As at 31 December 2019, such movie is
not yet being screened.

Subsequent to the year ended, the Group entered into another settlement
agreement with another vendor of film rights and licences (“Vendor B")
(Note 19(ii)) and one of borrowers of the Group (Note 25), pursuant to
which the Group agreed to offset the relevant loan receivables against the
payables of approximately RMB32,177,000, the difference arising from such
offsetting will be recognised in profit or loss at the date of offsetting. As at
31 December 2019, the net carrying amount of the relevant loan receivables
was amounted to approximately RMB28,181,000 (Note 25).

The amounts due were unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

The amounts were due to related companies which directors of certain
subsidiaries have significant influence or direct equity interest which were
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

On 16 July 2018, Co-Prosperity Investment (International) Limited, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an
agreement with an independent third party (the “Vendor”), pursuant to
which the Vendor was conditionally to acquire 60% shareholding of Million
Federal at the consideration of approximately RMB87,790,000 (equivalent
to HK$100,000,000). Such transaction is not completed, and the balance
represented the deposit not yet returned to the Vendor as at 31 December
2019.

w8 M8 &M (E)

31 December 2019 —E—hE+=-A=+—H

28. BEF RHMEBNIRR - &

PRt - - &

(i) HbENEREZEONENETBELE=H
RIBH AR11,200,0007T : (i) & F| S
#HANRH36,167,0007T ¢ K (i) 5T B A
$&§$$ﬁ@ﬁ‘|%’]/\§’%15349000ﬁ(_7
—\F : WEKEEZAER  REERK
M - BB REEHREMERR)

(iv) EEAGFEI T RO MM RRIE RN EREA
sHEIT B A BB R FER A ERARK
B eRZT-—NF+ZA=+—R0 ZZH
RIDEHETT °

() ZEERERBE_T-NF+_A=t—
BRI TRERE 2 AN kIR
ZRNRR(ZF—/N\F &) (FFE19()

RZF—AFALA=1+=H A5EHEKS
2 (FEE26(0)) LA R EL AR — R 2 1 A 7 R 4
B (TERRD)(MEE190) FT L A E 1
Bt - AEEE R FUASBEAE AT ETA
BEE 2 M5 EE (HiE26(b) 2 MEEFR
B RTINS R EE 2 5 B AR SE AR BE FE A BR 3K
#AERH31,104,000TC - REBEE=T—hF
+ZA=+—ALFE  REBREHEF—
BERBEFRENBITRESFEZ KON
R¥835,000 T EHHH D EMANARE -

# T AR 4 A R 30,269,000 7T # A
REB—EEHZRENBEITHE FEEIKE -
BTG FREZ D AR BE IR SHER T B R
B AEEBERAESRHETFNTEE -
RZF—hFE+=—A=+—8  BHEZH
R

RER®E  AEEES —FHEFRZE
BH(ERZ ) (HE190)) RAEEH

h—ZERA(ME25) T 2 — &
& Bt AEBRBUEMFEROARE
32,177,000 K S5 HE R E UK B 3K *ﬁl%a}ii
HEEZZRBNIEHE BERRER - B

= 7n¢+:ﬂz+75-$aﬁaf§uﬁzhm
ZEEEFEN A ARE28,181,0007T (Hf 5
25) °

(vi) ENFORAEER 28 RARENREE -
RRENTHRAEEATE NREREE

K
ETHBARNER CHEAR  LAEK
BB RARENRER -

(vii)

—N\ELHA+/-8 ARAREER2E
IKHE AlBEHLRE (BER) AR AR E—
EBLE=F(TER DI e - Bt - &
FHEGEKEE R 260%ME - RELNAA
R % 87,790,000 7T (48 & # 100,000,000 %
TT) e AR G ARTER - MREHRIER =
E-—hE+-_A=+—BHAEREH2&
@ °

(viii)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
i 8RR M (R)

31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES - CONTINUED

Notes: — continued

(ix)

218

28. EEREMENERNR - &

PRt - - 4

Contract liabilities, representing customers’ deposits and receipt in advance (ix)

relating to sales of fabrics segment and entertainment and media segment.

Movement of contract liabilities is as follows:

BREBEABAMKEE S BARRERE
ROBPZEFPRERTAWHIE - aHEEE

BT

2019 2018
—T-NF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
As at 1 January ®—A—H 29,713 17,771
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of AHEERFAKBRHEELRS &
receiving forward sales deposits and 2 BAASH FRT 35 An
instalments during the year 57,999 52,645
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of A H A ERFNRERK S MR
recognising revenue during the year (59,357) (41,146)
Currency realignment MEFHE 114 443
As at 31 December RET-=H=+—§H 28,469 29,713

Revenue recognised during the year ended 31 December 2019 that was
included in the contract liabilities as at 1 January 2019 was approximately
RMB18,660,000 (2018: RMB13,807,000). There was no revenue recognised
in the current year that related to performance obligations that were

satisfied in prior year.
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29. BOND PAYABLES

On 15 October 2015, the Company as issuer (assignor) and the
assignee, who is an independent third party, as subscriber entered into
a subscription agreement in respect of the subscription of the one-year
15% coupon secured bond to be issued by the Company in the principal
amount of HK$70,000,000 which would be secured by the share charge
to be executed by Widerlink Group Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company) (the “Chargor”) in favour of the assignee over the
entire issued share capital of a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.

A supplementary subscription agreement was signed on 14 October
2016, the maturity date was extended to 14 October 2017 and the
interest rate was adjusted from 15% to 8% per annum for the period
from 15 October 2015 to 14 October 2017.

A second supplementary subscription agreement was signed on 14
October 2017 and interest rate was remained at 8% per annum for the
period from 15 October 2015 to 14 October 2018.

A third supplementary subscription agreement was signed on 15
October 2018 and interest rate was remained at 8% per annum for the
period from 15 October 2015 to 14 October 2019.

A forth supplementary subscription agreement was signed on 15
October 2019 and interest rate was remained at 8% per annum for the
period from 15 October 2015 to 14 October 2020.

31 December 2019 — & —

29.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

w8 M8 &M (E)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

i 8 M ¥ 8 &M (E)

31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

30. OBLIGATION UNDER FINANCE LEASES 30.

The Group leases certain of its motor vehicles (Note 16) under finance
leases.

As at 31 December 2018, the future minimum lease payments under
finance leases together with the present value of the net minimum lease

payments are as follows:

MEHERIE
ANEEREREMERRES T/9E(ME
16) °

RZE-NF+ZA=+—H mEAER
TZARERIEEE N FE R FERE R FOF
BZBEWNT

Minimum Present value of

lease Minimum lease

payments payments

SRR SRR

=EEERK ZHE

2018 2018

—E-N\F —ZET-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARMBTFT

Amounts payable: FERTFRIA

Within one year —&FR 216 205

In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_FEERF(REEEMTE) 209 205

Total minimum finance lease payments =K E TR 4a%8 425 410
Future finance charges RRpE &R (15)
Total net finance lease payables e R E R E IR F AR 410
Portion classified as current liabilities PERTBAGZED (205)
Non-current portion IEMENEB D 205

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using the
modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, obligations under
finance leases of approximately RMB410,000 (including the current
portion) at 31 December 2018 was reclassified to lease liabilities at 1
January 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERNE (R

31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

31. BANK LOANS, LOANS FROM OTHER 31. SRITER - REHMESHKE
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS AND OTHER ZEFRREMEES
BORROWINGS

Interest rate per annum 2019 2018

FH = —ZT-NF —ZE-)N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBETFT ARKFT

Current liabilities REAE

Bank loans, secured (Note(a)) WITER(HIER) 4.79%-6.96%
(K17t () (2018:
4.79%-6.96%)
4.79%-6.96%
(ZZ—NF:

4.79%-6.96%) 47,050 90,350
Loans from other financial KEEMESREE 2 8.25%-30.00%
institutions, secured (Note (b)) ER(AERE) (2018:
(Ktatb)) 8.38%-8.63%)
8.25%-30.00%
—ZE-)N\F:

8.38%-8.63%) 42,144 50,553
Loans from other financial REHMEEgE 2 12.00%-33.00%
institutions, unsecured B (migEH) (2018:
(Note (c)) (Ktat(c) 12.00%-24.00%)
12.00%-33.00%
(ZFB—N%F:

12.00%-24.00%) 181,620 170,313

223,764 220,866
Other borrowing, secured HivfgE (FEH) Nil
(Note (d)) (Htat(d)) (2018: 30.00%)
(=2 N\

30.00%) - 131,685
Other borrowings, unsecured Hib g & (EER) 12.00%
(Note (e)) (HizF(e) (2018: 8.00%)
12.00%
(ZZ—NF:

8.00%) 41,115 33,360

41,115 165,045

311,929 476,261
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

31. BANK LOANS, LOANS FROM OTHER
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS AND OTHER
BORROWINGS - CONTINUED

Note:

(a) As at 31 December 2019, certain bank loans are secured by certain
property, plant and equipment (Note 16), right-of-use assets (Note 18) and
guaranteed by certain related parties and independent third parties and the

maximum amount guaranteed is set out below:

31. RITER - REHMSBEE
ZERREMEE - &

GEX

@ RIEB-AF+-_A=+—H ' 5TRTE
HAETYE - BB RRE (M E16) RER
RAEMREI18)EEM - WhETAREA
ITRBUE=FHR SeERSEHIIW

TF ¢
2019 2018
—2-h& —E- %
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AR T
Joint and several guarantee (Note (i) HE RERIERHEEG)) 75,000 75,000
Joint and several guarantee (Note (ii)) F R R AE B R (A 2 (i) 127,000 130,000
Joint and several guarantee (Note (iii)) HE R ERIVELR (K a£ i) 21,900 22,500
Guaranteed by Mr. Cai Chaodun RE BB AR 50,000 50,000
273,900 277,500

Notes:

(i) The credit facilities were jointly guaranteed by Mr. Cai Chaodun,
(“Mr. Cai”) and three independent third parties. Mr. Cai is the
deputy general manager of the Group, who is considered as a key
management personnel.

(ii) The credit facilities were jointly guaranteed by Mr. Sze Siu Hung, he
is the elder brother of Mr. Sze Siu Bun, an executive director of the
Group, Mr. Cai and two independent third parties.

(iii) The credit facilities were jointly guaranteed by Mr. Cai and one
independent third party.

Upon the repayment of relevant bank loans, the two pledged bank deposits

of approximately RMB20,620,000 (2018: RMB17,800,000) (Note 27) was
released during the year.
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REZHBARITERE  WEBHEFRTER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

31. BANK LOANS, LOANS FROM OTHER
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS AND OTHER
BORROWINGS - CONTINUED

Notes: — continued

(b)

These loans are secured by certain equity securities classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (Note 26 (a)) and 60% issued share
capital of Million Federal, a subsidiary of the Company (Note 40) as at 31
December 2019 and 2018.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, one of these loans with
the principal amount of HK$50,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB44,095,000) and the accrued interests of HK$4,786,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB4,277,000) was default upon maturity. Consequently,
the Group received a writ of summons together with the Statement of
Claim (the "SOC") issued by the Court of First Instance of High Court of
Hong Kong. Pursuant to which the lender claimed against the Group the
principal, the interest on the principal from the date of default to the date
of repayment (interest rate of 30% per annum) and other costs of litigation.
The Group has partially settled the principal amount of HK$20,000,000
(equivalent to RMB17,638,000 and the lender agreed not to further
execute the legal proceeding against the Group with an understanding that
the Group will repay the remaining principal amount of HK$30,000,000
and the interest thereon (included the interest rate of 30% per annum)
accrued up to the date of full settlement. Subsequent to the year, the
Group has fully settled the outstanding principal, accrued interests and late
payment of approximately HK$42,799,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB37,744,000) in aggregate.

Details of the litigation relating to this loan was set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 30 July 2019, 1 August 2019, 2 September 2019 and
13 January 2020.

31. RITER - REHMSBEE
ZERREMEE - &

BieE - - &

(b)

RZE-NERZTE-NEF+ZA=+—
B ZEEXBEIEARATFEABRE
2B EE 2 ETRAZES (HizE26(a)) KA
ARIMEBARE S (Hi7$40) 260% B BT
AR o

BE_Z—hE+_A=+—HLEE
H i —IgK4 %8 450,000,0007 7T (HHE R
4 N R %44,095,0007T) 2 B # B FERT TS
4,786,000/ 7t (1HE R 4 A R ¥ 4,277,000
TREHRIER - At - AEBEEERS
BEERRERREEFHNEMIMRERBR
BRME(HRRRE]) - Bt - BEXFHR
AEEBHRAS XA HEZERBH
MASF B (FEFIRE30%) kH i aFAE
R o RAEEE 5 #{FA £ F820,000,0007%
T (HER AR 17,638,0007T) © MER
7 &£ B 1% {8 32 #2 T~ A€ 30,000,000 7% 7T &
HEZ2HENEAESZH S (BEFEF
E30%) 2k - ERFREBETE—HHIT
HAKBEHERZER - RAFER - A58
EE2HENKREREARS « BTF S Ra A
KA $£4942,799,00078 T (HHE RN AR
37,744,0007T) °

BEEZEERZ FAFBRHRARAR B A
—T-NAFtA=t+B - ZZT-AENA—
H —E-NAFAA-BAR-_Z_FF—H
+=AZ2af -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

31. BANK LOANS, LOANS FROM OTHER 31. S(RITER - REHMSREE
ZEFRREMEE - &

BieE - - &

FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS AND OTHER
BORROWINGS - CONTINUED

Notes: — continued

() These loans represented the principal amounts of three unsecured
borrowings (2018: two) obtained from certain independent third parties as
at 31 December 2019.

(i) The loan with a principal amount of HK$192,400,000 and
interest payables of approximately HK$32,371,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB173,576,000 and RMB28,933,000 respectively)
(2018: HK$19,000,000 and approximately HK$7,659,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB166,801,000 and RMB6,724,000
respectively)) were guaranteed by a substantial shareholder and
a director of the Company, Mr. Deng. The loan was default upon
maturity by the Group in February 2019. A statutory demand was
served on the Group by the lender to demand the Group to pay
the alleged outstanding debts in the amount of approximately
HK$222,707,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB196,406,000)
including the outstanding principal amounts and interest (on
principal accrued up to the date of statutory demand) in October
2019. The Group has negotiated for the repayment schedule and the
Group is required to repay the outstanding principal and the interest
thereon (included the interest rate of 24% and the default interest
rate of 6% per annum) accrued up to the date of full settlement.
Details of the statutory demand to this loan was set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 21, 24 and 28 October 2019.

The Group has partially settled the outstanding principal and accrued
interests subsequent to the year and the lender has confirmed its
understanding of extending the repayment of remaining balance to
31 May 2021 at fixed interest rate of 24% per annum, and default
interest rate of 6% per annum.

(i) The loan with a principal amount of approximately RMB3,575,000 at
31 December 2019 (2018: RMB3,512,000) was matured during the
year without renewal.

(iii) ~ The loan with a principal amount of approximately RMB4,469,000 at
31 December 2019 (2018: Nil) which was guaranteed by Mr. Deng, a
substantial shareholder and a director of the Company, was became
repayable on demand upon the breach of covenants during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

31. BANK LOANS, LOANS FROM OTHER
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS AND OTHER
BORROWINGS - CONTINUED

Notes: — continued

(d)

The borrowing at 31 December 2018 was secured by the 100% of the
issued shares of the Group’s wholly owned subsidiary, Full Winning, which
held the issued share of the Group’s associate, Yong Tai. In addition, there
are (i) first fixed charge on all and singular the fixed property and assets of
the Company; (ii) first floating charge on the whole of the undertaking and
all other property assets and rights of the Company and (iii) first floating
charge on all and singular the fixed property and assets of the Company,
of whatsoever nature and wheresoever situate both present and future.
The loan was defaulted upon maturity in June 2019, a statutory demand
was served on the Group by the lender to demand the Group to pay the
alleged outstanding debts in the amount of approximately HK$150,178,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB134,229,000) including the outstanding
principal amounts and interest (included the interest rate of 30% and the
default interest rate of 3% per annum) in October 2019. The Group has
negotiated for the repayment schedule and the Group has fully repaid all
the alleged outstanding debt to lender, including the outstanding principal,
accrued interests and late payment of approximately RMB195,844,000 in
aggregate. As a result, the statutory demand was set aside accordingly in
December 2019 and the relevant charges were also released upon the fully
settlement.

Details of the statutory demand to this loan was set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 21, 24 and 28 October 2019 and 18 December
2019.

These loans represented the principal amounts of two unsecured
borrowings (2018: one) obtained from certain independent third parties as
at 31 December 2019.

(i) The borrowings with a principal amount of HK$40,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB35,752,000) (2018:
HK$38,000,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB33,360,000) was
guaranteed by Mr. Deng, a substantial shareholder and a director
of the Company. The Group entered into supplementary loan
agreement with the lender on 3 January 2019 to extend the loan to
4 January 2020. Following the renewal agreement, the loan principal
was changed from HK$38,000,000 to HK$40,000,000 and the
interest rate was changed from 8% per annum to 12% per annum.

Subsequent to the year ended, the loan was defaulted and a
statutory demand was served on the Group by the lender to demand
the Group to pay the alleged outstanding debts in the amount
of approximately HK$45,978,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB41,095,000). Up to the date of this report, the Group has
partially settled the outstanding principal and accrued interest and
the lender has agreed on the revised repayment schedule at an
interest rate of 12% per annum.

Detail of the statutory demand to this loan was set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 7 April 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31.

32.

226

BANK LOANS, LOANS FROM OTHER
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS AND OTHER
BORROWINGS - CONTINUED

Notes: — continued
(e) - continued

(ii) The borrowing with a principal amount of approximately
RMB5,363,000 at 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil) was obtained from
a listed company in Hong Kong, of which Mr. Deng is the substantial
shareholder. The borrowing was matured during the year ended 31
December 2019 without renewal and the Group is required repay
the outstanding principal, the interest on the principal (included
the interest rate of 24% and the default interest rate of 36% per
annum) from the date of default up to the outstanding balances
were fully settled.

Except for the bank loans, all the loans from other financial
institutions and other borrowings are subject to the fulfilment of
covenants, as are commonly found in lending arrangements with
financial institutions and independent third parties. If the Group was
to breach the covenants, the draw down balances with the accrued
interest would become repayable on demand.

As at 31 December 2019, the loans from other financial institutions
and other borrowings with the principal amounts of approximately
RMB212,492,000 and RMB5,363,000 were in default, including
the loan with a principal amount of approximately RMB4,469,000
became repayable on demand upon the breach of covenants.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND DERIVATIVE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

On 24 September 2019, the Company entered into the subscription
agreement with Mr. Deng, the substantial shareholder and the director
of the Company, pursuant to which Mr. Deng has conditionally agreed
to subscribe and the Company has conditionally agreed to issue the 6%
convertible bonds in two phases in an aggregate principal amount of
HK$400,000,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB362,765,000) at the
conversion price of HK$0.1 per conversion share.

The subscription agreement became unconditional upon the conditions
precedents have been all fulfilled on 2 December 2019. Forward contract
is arisen from the terms and conditions of the subscription agreement
as Mr. Deng, as a subscriber, has irrevocable undertaking to subscribe
the convertible bonds at a fixed consideration of HK$400,000,000 in
aggregate within the prescribed period.

On 2 December 2019, forward contract which is classified as derivative
financial instruments measured at fair value of approximately
HK$82,654,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB73,876,000) was
recognised and the corresponding amount were recognised as capital
contribution from Mr. Deng in the capacity of a substantial shareholder
of the Company.

Phase | completion in respect of the convertible bonds in the
principal amount of HK$200,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB178,017,000) has been taken place on 17 December 2019 which
results in derecognition of respective derivative financial instrument as
set out below. Details of the subscription of convertible bonds were set
out in the Company’s announcements dated 24 September 2019 and 17
December 2019 and the circular dated 11 November 2019.
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32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND DERIVATIVE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - CONTINUED

Phase | of the convertible bonds has a maturity of three years from the
date of issue (i.e. 16 December 2022). The holder of the convertible
bonds shall have the right to convert the convertible bonds into the
conversion shares on or after 17 December 2019 to 16 December 2022
at the conversion price of HK$0.1 per share, which is subject to anti-
dilutive adjustments prescribed in the convertible bonds subscription
agreement. The convertible bonds may be early redeemed at 100% of
the outstanding principal amount of the convertible bonds (in whole or
in part) and the accrued interest at any time and from time to time at
the option of the Company prior to 16 December 2022. The conversion
rights shall be exercisable as long as (a) the minimum public float
requirement for the shares as required under the Listing Rules could be
maintained; or (b) a mandatory offer obligation under Rule 26 of the
Takeovers Code on the part of the holder of the convertible bonds and
any parties acting in concert with it would not be triggered. The holder
of the convertible bonds shall not have any early redemption right.

Interest of 6% per annum is payable per repayment schedule and is paid
annually on 16 December until the bonds are converted or redeemed.
Any unredeemed and unconverted convertible bonds shall be redeemed
at 100% of the outstanding principal amount and the accrued interest
on 16 December 2022.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, certain provision of the
convertible bonds subscription agreements were breached which could
cause the principal amount of whole convertible bonds becomes payable
on demand. The Group has been granted the waiver in respect of the
relevant breached provisions before 31 December 2019.

According to the subscription agreement, phase Il completion shall
take place within three months immediately preceding the date of the
subscription agreements.

On 26 February 2020, the Company and Mr. Deng entered into a
letter of confirmation, pursuant to which both parties mutually agreed
to extend the Phase Il completion date to 1 April 2020. The date was
further extended to 4 May 2020 per the letter of confirmation entered
into on 1 April 2020.

Up to the date of this report, the Company received HK$110,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB98,318,000) from Mr. Deng for the
Phase Il convertible bonds. The remaining consideration would be settled
on or before 1 June 2020 pursuant to the letter of confirmation signed
on 4 May 2020. Phase Il convertible bonds will be issued upon the
consideration is fully settled.
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E%EF@T%%%% R AE R FE LA TR
B RATHE  (a)BR1D AT 4 15 £ 18 R AT A8 7€ B
Eiﬁ@x%’ﬁﬂhi P S(b) TR B AR ES
BAEARBRZ —BITB AR — 5 RN UREE R
AR BI26TB TR EM ARG BLETS - ATRR
EHFAANLE TR ERE -

AR ESFANEF R6%:TE @ FlEERE
BRERERIMN  EBFR+T-A+ BX
i BEERSREHFEERRELR AL - A7
RIEE R ARERE A MRESFENR T ==
FTZATRNAUREBZBERSTER100% K
FEEHF B E

BE_Z-NAFT_A=t—HLFE &
SEERTBREESRBER=2E TR
WA BH A RRESNASREKREAR
ERXM - AEBEER T -NF+-H
=+—BATARE R IGERRR -

BIEREGZE  F_EREXNEANEERE
Wi B BRAT = B A METT ©

RZZEZZTF-A=+"H - ARAIEE%
RV HERE Bt EHHRARBERS
“EREXKEHE-_Z-ZFMA—H - %
BEREN T -_TFMA— AL 2R
EE—SERE_Z_TFRAMA -

BEEAREBH - AARIBE R AT AR
B A MBS A IR E1110,000,0005 7T (FEE R
#ARH98,318,0007T) ° & FREFRIER
R EFRANARECEREE-S =
TENA—BRZAER o B R AT
EHFBREEENRBRET -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

i 8 M ¥ 8 &M (E)

31 December 2019 —E—AF+_A=+—H

32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND DERIVATIVE 32. AR EBEHERITEMBKEITE -

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - CONTINUED
Liability and equity components of convertible
bonds - Phase |

The fair value of the liability component and the equity component on
initial recognition of approximately HK$141,935,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB126,861,000) and HK$59,584,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB53,256,000) was determined at date of issuance of
the convertible bonds.

The Phase | of convertible bonds recognised at the date of issuance and
the end of the year are as follows:

]
EF-RBRUTRARBEF2EEBERER
EB

BEMBD RERBYRIBEEREF AT
8 49 141,935,000 F 7t (& RO AR
126,861,0007T ) % 59,584,0007% 7t (8 & %
# AR #53,256,0007T) TR BT AR ES
EHET -

MNETARRAFERER IS —FERAK
BfEZZAHEMT

Liability
component

BE#D

(Note a)

(Kteta)

RMB’'000 RMB’000
AREFr AREFIT

Fair value at the date of issuance RETRRZ AFE 53,256 126,861

Transaction cost on issuance (Note b) BT 2 R (H5ED) (225) (536)
Effective interest expenses (Note 9) BB (H1:9) - 929
Interest payable (include in other payables) JEAS F2 (R A EL A P& A5 BR SR - (411)
Currency realignment KERE 3) 5
As at 31 December 2019 RZE—hF+-_A=1+—H 53,028 126,848

RMB’000
ARETT

Fair value at the date of issuance: RETRBZ AT E
— Equity component — SIS 53,256
— Liability component —BEZD 126,861
Fair value of convertible bonds A RES R TE 180,117
Derecognition of derivative financial instruments REELTE — R MRS B AL 1R | FER

upon the issuance of Phase | convertible bonds FTHEBITE T B (1,339)
Proceeds from issuance BITRTSFRIA 178,778
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND DERIVATIVE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - CONTINUED
Liability and equity components of convertible

bonds - Phase | — continued
Notes:
(a) The effective interest rate of the liability component on initial recognition
and the subsequent measurement of interest expenses on the convertible
bonds was calculated using effective interest rate of 18.9% per annum.

(b) Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity
components of the convertible bonds based on their relative carrying
amounts at the date of issue. The portion relating to the equity component
is charged directly to equity.

There was no conversion of convertible bonds since its issuance.

(0)

Derivative financial instruments
The derivative financial instruments recognised at the date of issuance
and the end of the year are as follows:

At the date of subscription agreement became RRBHERAEEEEB

w8 MEE &M GE)

31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

=

32. IMREFRITEMHTA -
&
E-RHRUTBRRES EERERS
o —&
B
@ BEEANTAERELE N E TR ES
FI B0 2 5 2 BRI 5 4R A R 4

18.9%5tH -

RHRABIRRMEES 2 BERERID
REFT R EZ A AREERN B (&R0 Bk
W ZFHETOR - BESHO B D
BRI -

() A[RAR B B H 217 DARBE AR (E 8534 -
PTEMKIA
RBETERRAFEAERZITEVH LR
ZETEMET ¢

Phase |l
EPRER
RMB’000

ARETFT

Phase |
Rl

RMB’'000
ARETT

unconditional 40,670 33,206
Fair value loss recognised in the consolidated REEERERZ A TEERE

profit or loss (42,009) (58,735)
Derecognition of derivative financial instruments ~ RA175E — AT B ESF B R IHER

upon the issuance of Phase | convertible bonds PTHEMBITA 1,339 -
As at 31 December 2019 NR-TB-h&E+=-B=+—H - (25,529)

Fair value measurement

The fair values of the liability component and equity conversion
component of Phase | convertible bonds on initial recognition were
determined with reference to a professional valuation performed by
Valtech, using Hull-white model and Black Scholes model respectively,
with significant unobservable inputs and therefore were classified as
level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The key inputs apply to the valuation
models on the convertible bonds were as follows:

AFEMN &
F—RERABRRES 2 BEDBD RERERLBH R
At RR 2 A FE T 5 Bl ER AR SRR R
NE—aFREER(AEATABREARE) - I
PEFTRETCEXEGHEEE B EARTE
EREBHNEIER - BRARATRRESRHEED
ZEZHASENOT
Date of Phase |

Completion
17 December 2019

F—RERER A

(Z2—h#F

+=A++tR)

Risk free rate £ e P 1.97%

Implied/Expected volatility BE TBHIKIE 75.53%

Expected life TR IR 3 years 34F

Dividend yield st 0.00%

Discount rate* B8 2+ 19.70%
* Being the market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible bonds and * EEBE AR ESH TSR - WK

netting off the fair values of the Company’s early redemption options and
subsequently measured at amortised cost.

ATESHOEEEY ATEREE RS
RAEE -
229
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND DERIVATIVE 32. TRESRITEMBIA -
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - CONTINUED F
Fair value measurement - continued AFEFE-E
The variable and assumptions used in calculating the fair value of the EABRBRESNEEISSY RERIOHR
liability component and equity component of convertible bonds are TEMAZEHRBEDENRESNRERD
based on the directors’ best estimate. gl °
The fair value of the derivative financial instruments is calculated as PTEFBETENAFENLZREHIRETZE
the difference between the present value of the principal amounts to 2EE(EEATABRGAZE)  BER
be received and the fair value of convertible bonds to be issued at the REBZRAEEMEERABTRERNASE
date the subscription agreement became unconditional, with reference ZREHEETETHIIBRRES 2 ATFEZ
to a professional valuation performed by Valtech, with significant BHZREAE B BEALATESREE
unobservable inputs and therefore were classified as level 3 of the fair MEIBF - BRARTEN G T AMERR 2
value hierarchy. The key inputs apply to the valuation model on the FTEHASIELT ¢

derivative financial instruments were as follows:

Date of Phase |
Date of issue completion Year ended
2 December 2019 17 December 2019 31 December 2019

RN E-BWARNANM HE-F-AE

—T-NF “T-hF +ZA=+—8H
+-H=H +=—A++tH IEFE
Expected volatility TEHRK 1R 70.54%/71.67% 75.53% 73.16%
70.54%/71.67% 75.53% 73.16%
Discount rate BhIR = 21.57%/21.52% 19.70% 19.40%
21.57%/21.52% 19.70% 19.40%
Expected life TEHRE IR 0.02 year/0.13 year = 0.09 year
0.02%/0.134F - 0.09%F
The significant unobservable input is determining the fair value of the BATABEGASBEETEMBIAZ
derivative financial instrument is mainly the discount rate, the higher the AEE WEEBABREK - BREAS A
discount rate, the lower the fair value, vice versa. FERS  RZIA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

33. DEFERRED LIABILITIES

w8 MEE &M GE)

31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

33. EiEEE

The components of deferred tax recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position and the movement during the year are as
follows:

Fair value arising

from business

AT B R KR
EREBWT :

BEETRIRE Y R

Accelerated tax

combination depreciation Total

RE B
EHHRTE IRF BT E et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF T ARKEFT ARKEFT
As at 1 January 2018 RZZE—N\F—H—H = (855) (855)
Credited to profit or loss (Note 14) st A1B25(ft:t14) 888 1,746 2,634
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 11)  UWEEFIB AR (Kf:E11) (29,275) (46,253) (75,528)
Currency realignment MR (1,638) (953) (2,591)

As at 31 December 2018 and RZE—N\F+-_A=+—HBHR

1 January 2019 —T-NF—A—H (30,025) (46,315) (76,340)
Credited to profit or loss (Note 14) =t AiB25(Hfat14) 16,232 1,356 17,588
Currency realignment EEFEE (379) (2,488) (2,867)
As at 31 December 2019 R-—ZB-hFE+=-HA=+—H (14,172) (47,447) (61,619)

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has estimated unused tax losses and
deductible temporary differences arising in Hong Kong of approximately
RMB74,553,000 and RMB197,025,000 (2018: RMB44,345,000 and
RMB206,312,000) respectively, subject to the agreement of Inland
Revenue Department, that are available indefinitely for offsetting against
future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has estimated unused tax losses
and deductible temporary differences arising in the PRC of approximately
RMB50,024,000 and RMB29,342,000 (2018: RMB12,463,000 and
RMB31,292,000) respectively, subject to the agreement of tax bureau in
the PRC, that are available for offsetting against future taxable profits
of the companies in which the losses arose. These estimated unused tax
losses will be available for offsetting against future taxable profits for a
maximum period of five years from the reporting date.

No deferred tax assets (2018: Nil) have been recognised in respect
of these estimated unused tax losses as there were incurred by the
companies that have been loss-making for some time.

R-ZZT—AE+-_A=+—8 KXEEAE
BRELEZ MRS AR IEEE LA NR
R ZRE D B # AR 74,553,0007T & A
R #197,025,000 . (ZZT—\F : AR
44,345,0007T M A R#206,312,0007T ) A £
PR HA A VE K SH 8% 15 5 18 2 A A) 2 R SR FE ER
wmA  EEERERRE °

R-_ZT—NAE+-_A=+—8B ~X&EEE
A E A 2 AT AR B A R TE B 48 K AT 3R
T ERE D A # AR #50,024,0007T & A
R¥29,342,000t (=T —N\F : AR
12,463,0007T & A R #31,292,0007T ) 7] &
PR HAFAVEIR S ER B 518 2 R Rl Z R R ERR TR
wA c EFPREBERBRE - Z5AER
B) A B TH B 1B 15 1] AR R S R SR B R B R
A ZRHERAB RS A BB RE -

% 5l at R B R A5 TR S 1R A A T SRR AR IR
BE(ZZ-N\F &) RARZFMHR
PARBERITAEEERT —RERZA
AEL -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

33. DEFERRED LIABILITIES - CONTINUED 33. EERE - &
Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends BEPECEMEDE BT N\F—
declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1 January A—HBi  HPEHEARMRUENS
2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the TR B BAHZTEHT - MEHREALRE
financial statements in respect of temporary differences attributable A EMB AR RE RN EREEZEAOA
to retained profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to approximately R 48,946,000t (—ZF— \F : AR¥
RMB48,946,000 (2018: RMB58,458,000) as the Group is able to control 58,458,000 ) {EHEERL B RS - REAER
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable EEA S ZETREANREER - L&
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. ZEER AN AR KA RERE -
34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. R
Number Authorised
of share Amount
D& B VA TE KRR
‘000 HK$°000
T FEIT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each FRAEEN0B I TRk
As at 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018 R-—FE—N\F—HA—H "
and 31 December 2019 —E-N\FFTZA=+—AHEK
—E-hAFE+=-_A=1+—8H 20,000,000 2,000,000

Issued and fully paid
BEEITREAR
Number

of shares Amount Amount
g B prg:c] N
‘000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
Fhz ARETT ARETFT

As at 1 January 2018, 31 December RZZE-—NE—H—H"
2018 and 1 January 2019 —E-N\Ft+-_A=t+—HEK
—E-hFE—H—H 7,055,668 616,617 705,566
Issue of consideration shares for movie REFREHITRERSD (MaE)
investments (Note) 370,000 31,967 37,000
As at 31 December 2019 R=ZB-hAF+=A=+—H 7,425,668 648,584 742,566
Note: On 11 April 2019 and 14 May 2019, the Company entered into two movie Mz : R=FT—NEFEA+—BR=ZZT—NFHA
investment agreements with an independent third party, pursuant to T - ARREBYE=FI LMD ER
which the Company agreed to acquire the income rights of two movies KEWMZ Bl ARARREWREMIER
(Note 26) at the aggregate consideration of HK$92,500,000 (equivalent ZWEs g (Mi3t26) - A (E/92,500,000%
to approximately RMB82,677,000), which was satisfied by the allotment T(HEERHARKS2,677,0007T) © WiBEH
and issue of 370,000,000 shares in aggregate fair value of approximately fir 8% 2 $£97370,000,000 R A (A (E 7 + i i&
HK$92,500,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB79,918,000) based on RETRBZBRAFE2SEITTE » %
the fair value of each share of HK$0.25 on issue date. FR1D 2 48 AF1E 4 A92,500,0007% 7T (8

ERHARET9,918,0007T) °
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35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION

On 15 June 2016, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) to provide the people and the parties working
for the interests of the Group with an opportunity to obtain an equity
interest in the Company, thus linking their interest with the interests of
the Group and thereby providing them with an incentive to work better
for the interests of the Group.

Upon approval by shareholders by ordinary resolution at the annual
general meeting (the “AGM") on 15 June 2016, the total number of
shares in respect of which options may be granted under the Share
Option Scheme will be 293,604,000 shares which were equivalent to
10% of the shares of the Company in issue as at the date of the AGM.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
options granted and to be granted to each grantee under the Share
Option Scheme in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time unless (i) a
circular is despatched to the shareholders; (ii) the shareholders approve
the grant of the options in excess of the 1% limit referred to in this
paragraph; and (iii) the relevant grantee and its associates abstain from
voting on such resolution.

An option may be exercised at any time during the period to be
determined and identified by the directors of the Company to each
grantee at the time of making an offer for the grant of an option, but in
any event no later than ten years from the date of grant but subject to
the early termination of the New Share Option Scheme. An offer of grant
of an option must be accepted within 21 days after the date of grant.
The amount payable on acceptance of the grant is HK$1, which must be
received by the Company within 21 days from the date of grant or within
such other period of time as may be determined by the directors of the
Company pursuant to the Listing Rules.

31 December 2019 — & —

35.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

w8 M8 &M (E)

NFET-A=+—H

URBBER ZNRRXS
REZF—ARFENATEBE  AQRREMA—IB
AR iRt B ([FEARE ST &I ) - BALQF M Z
ERAEBANGTEZATREERARA
AR S - EMERE M EAE
B F = e - MRS E i A AR E A R
fEH BB ©

KERRR T ANFENATHABEITZRE
BFERe((RREFAE]) LBARLBER
EERIER - REBERETE MR E 2B
TR K 2 BR 1D # 80 1% /5293,604,000 A% i%
7 BIRERAABRKRRBEFAEEAZ
BEITRH10% °

RER2E A SR - F2ERABRTERE
Eﬁﬂ&%%ﬁri\E?%?EJZH%??ZE%HQ%W%??
KT ET2ROBE - TRBARR
%E%ﬁkKZﬂ%'@%lﬂﬁkiﬁ%ﬁ

B (i) BCR AR BB AR ATt 1% EFR 2
ﬁ%HﬂE (i AE R AR A R BB A T HE
RERABREER -

BEREARARREERNZLARARER
i B A 2 B BT 8 E % e E 2 AR R BE R AT
8 - MEERNA A EENR L A BB+
F o WHURNHBRES B G B REKL -
ERANARREEHRZ -+ —RARER
BEMETRRE 2 ES - ARAREMNE
B2 BRAER AN VBT - ARRIALER
ARBREH AR =+ —RAKARA
BEERE R AR E 2 H B AU

2l

233

Annual Report | 32019
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i 8 M ¥ 8 &M (E)

31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION -
CONTINUED

The subscription price for the shares under the Share Option Scheme
shall be a price determined by the directors of the Company at its
absolute discretion and shall not be less than the higher of: (i) the closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the shares.

No share options were granted under the New Share Option Scheme
during the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

36. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had total future minimum lease
payment under non-cancellable operating leases for premises falling due
as follows:

35.

36.

URGORER NS - &

RBBRETE  RORBEALARAES
2HRE  FABRIESERTIIZEZE
= (R HPRRE B BREBZ AT RRESR
P2 T ME (RN ERRE AR R
B % HAEKR e R RERMB KT E
FIME - Kk 2 EE

REBEE_ZE-—NAF+_A=+—HILEFE -
I AR R R B R LR (=2 =N\
FE) -

RERE AR
R-E—N\E+-A=+—0  AREEE
Bt 0 T A B E R ER AT F B
ft 2 RRBEREARBBMT

2019 PAONES]
—E-nE —EN\#
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARBFT
Operating lease commitments T E AR
— Within one year -—FR - 2,281
— In the second to fifth years, inclusive -FEERFN(BREEEME) - 1,824
- 4,105

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of properties held under
leases which were previously classified as operating leases under HKAS
17. From 1 January 2019 onwards, future lease payments are recognised
as lease liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position, and
the details regarding the Group’s future lease payments are disclosed in
Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

37.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The details of remuneration of key management personnel which
represents emoluments of the directors of the Company and executive

officers of the Group are set out in Note 12.

Save as disclosed in elsewhere to these consolidated financial
statements, other material related party transactions for the year are

disclosed as below:

Name of related party

BRBEANLTER

Sincere Finance Holding Limited (Note (i)
HIESRERBR AT (M)

Sincere Link Asset Management Limited (Note (ii))

EEBEERARAR (ML)

Sincere Bullion Limited (Note (iii)

FEE A PR R (M ez (i)

Incharm Limited (Note (ii))
BEEARRA R (Ha£))

Joy East Holdings Limited (Note (ii)
RIEKBER QB (M)

Sino Wings Technologies Limited (Note (iv))
EMEAREAR AR (M)

Mr. Hui Chi Yuet (Note (v))
FFEMIE & (T EW))

Mr. Tse Shiu Hoi (Note (vi))
AR S A (AT aE(vi)

Mr. Deng Rongjie (Note (vii))
BRER AN 55 A (fY 7 (vil))

Ms. Tse Chee Lam, Aries (Note (vii))
= WA (HaE(vii)

37. EREALRS

Nature of transactions

RHMhE

Interest expenses

BRI

Rental expenses

HERMX

Interest expenses
MERX
Rental expenses

HERMX

Rental expenses

HEMX

Interest expenses on
lease liabilities

HEEBEZMERX

Rental expenses
HEMX

Consultancy fee

BHE

Commission paid
EfNAE

Commission received

[BE. kA

Interest received

[EE NS

Interest received

S &St

2019
—ZT-NF

RMB’000
ARETFT A

151

931

43

1,095

295

207

259

61
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RMB’'000
E¥TT

531

577

24

617

891

928

614

867

291

246

342
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31 December 2019 —E—AE+-_A=+—H

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS -
CONTINUED

Notes:

@)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

38.

Other interest expenses were paid to a non-controlling owner of a
subsidiary based on the terms as disclosed in Note 29(vi).

Companies in which directors of certain subsidiaries have significant
influence. Rental expenses were charged based on terms mutually agreed.

A company in which director of a subsidiary has significant influence. The
expenses were charged based on terms mutually agreed.

A company in which a close family member of a subsidiary’s director has
direct equity interest. Consultancy fee was charged based on terms mutually
agreed.

Commissions were paid to directors of certain subsidiaries at terms mutually
agreed.

Commissions were received from directors of certain subsidiaries at terms
mutually agreed.

Companies in which directors of certain subsidiaries have significant
influence. Interest income were received based on terms mutually agreed.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group has provided corporate guarantees in favour of a financial

institution in respect of certain credit facilities granted to an independent

third party, Shasing-Shapheng Quanzhou and a related company, Fujian

Xiesheng Xiefeng Printing and Dyeing Industry Co., Ltd (2018: Shasing-

Shapheng Quanzhou). The total amounts to be guaranteed by the Group
should not exceed RMB50,000,000 and RMB180,000,000 respectively
(2018: RMB50,000,000). As at 31 December 2019, the guaranteed
loans drawn down amounted to RMB20,000,000 and RMB20,850,000
respectively (2018: RMB40,000,000).

236

38.

38.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

38.

39.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES — CONTINUED

The effective period of the guarantees was from 16 July 2018 to 15 July
2023 and from 17 October 2019 to 16 October 2024 respectively (2018:
16 July 2018 to 15 July 2023).

No provision for the Group’s obligation under the guarantee contract
had been made as the directors of the Company considered the
possibility that Shasing-Shapheng Quanzhou and Fujian Xiesheng
Xiefeng Printing and Dyeing Industry Co., Ltd would not meet their
obligations to the financial institution are remote, and it was not
probable that a claim will be made against the Group under the
guarantee contracts.

Except for the corporate guarantees disclosed above, the Group and the
Company did not have any other contingent liabilities as at the end of
the current and prior financial years.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities
arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows were,
or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
statements of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

(a) Major non-cash transactions
- The Group had non-cash additions to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities of approximately RMB1,793,000 and
RMB1,793,000 during the year ended 31 December 2019 in
respect of lease arrangements for the properties (Note 18).

- As disclosed in Note 26, the Group made certain movie
investments and the consideration of such was satisfied by
allotment and issue of 370,000,000 shares, in aggregate
fair value of approximately RMB92,500,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB82,677,000) at HK$0.25 of each share,
which was the market price on issue date.

- As disclosed in Note 28, the Group has offset the net
distribution revenue arising from movie investments
of approximately RMB835,000 against the payable of
acquisition of film rights and licences.

31 December 2019 — & —

38.

39.

w8 M8 &M (E)

NE+-ZA=+—H
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ERHcEREEERAE
BEZEBRERBENAARE
1,793,0007t & AR #1,793,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
wEMESERME(R
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39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 39, GABE 4L RERMIT - &
OF CASH FLOWS - CONTINUED

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financial (b) METBMELEBZHE

activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from TRHFMAEERERE T 2 BE
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. ) ARERENIFRCEE - gtE
Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which EHEABBEARERELLIR
cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the KEEREBEENAEFEEZEAESR
Group's consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from EXRFTHLEAREZBR S REZE
financing activities: f& :

Amounts
Amounts Obligation Loans
dueto Amount under from other
related Other Bond finance Bank financial Other ~ Convertile Lease
companies ~ shareholder payables payables [eases loans ~institutions ~ borrowings bonds [iabilties

ket
tHkE

RuB00C ! B:000

s at 31 December 2018 and RZB-NETZA=1-RR

1 January 2019 —5-NE-F-B 55,007 - 38 9,976 67393 i 90,350 220,866 165,045 - - 609433
Upon application of HKFRS 16 ERERIBREENS 654 - - - - - [410) - - - - 3451 304

55,007 - 386 9,976 67393 - 90,350 220,866 165,045 - 3451 612474

Changes from financing cash flows: BEESHERE:
Borrawing costs paid BAifEERE (137 - - - (4939) - (g (s318)  (828y - - (102608
Repayment of lease ablfes (nduding ~~ BEREAG(REERTS)

interest paid) - - - - - - - - - - (2,291) (2,91)
Proceeds from bank loans, oans SRR REAMERARL

from other financ instutions BRRAfEEL

and other borrowings fisE - - - - - - 70,300 39810 5363 - - 11543
Repayment of bank loans, oan from BEBAET Kakh

other financil ingtitutions and SHRELER

other borrowings HiE - - - - - - (113600 925 (132.28) - - (s
Proceeds from issuance of convertble bonds,  Zf AR E% 25508

et of tiansacton cost (MR ARE) - - - - - - - - -1 -1
Repayment to a non-controling ownersof — FHBATHEREEAER

subsidiaries 55,257 - - - - - - - - - - (55,257)
Total changes fiom financing cash flows~~ EBABERE 95 (36,634) - - - (4939) - sy @s® esa0 1701 2290 (121,776)
Exchange adjustments EjgE 34 - 7 (4639) 120 - - (13,19) (1.212) 2 58 (14,077)
Other changes: -4 LR
Finance costs BENA 131 - - 2834 4939 - 48 62,013 4540 99 149 122,482
Additions of lease liabilties FEREAE - - - - - - - - - - 179 1793
Derecogniion of derivtive BIERAEEBIE

financial instruments - - - - - - - - - 1339 - 1339
Equity component of convertivle bonds EREs BESS - - - - - - - - - (53,08) - (53,008)
Coupon interest of convertible bonds TERERIZE - - - - - - - - - {v11) - u11)
Credited of iterest payables HAERTIS - - - 26,191 - - - 1333) 2,868) - - -
Total other charges G 1G] 131 - - 29,025 4939 - 480 38,690 455 (51,171) 198 175
As at 31 December 2019 R-E-hEtZA=1-B 3491 - 393 34362 68,613 - 47,050 103764 15 126,848 3160 548,7%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERNE (R
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39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 39. 4 BERERME - &
OF CASH FLOWS - CONTINUED
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financial (b) MEETEBFELEEBZHIER -
activities — continued P

Amounts
duetonon- Amounts Obligation Loans
controling dueto Amount under from other
related duetoa Other Bond finance Bank financial Other ~ Convertible Lease

companies  shareholder payables payables leases loans~institutions ~ borrowings bonds ablfies

it

Asat 1 January 2018 R-2-NF-A- = 1,766 366 100 63,908 571 113,550 8340 31,635 = = 26842

Changes from financing cash flows: ~ BEB47%BLE:

Borrowing costs paid BAERE 3966) ) - [40,375) (4726) - (5,780) 2617) o = 5 (57,481)
Proceeds from anon-controling owners —~ REKBATIHREEAZ

o subsidiaries FfHE 52811 - - - - - - - - - - 5871
Proceeds from bank loans, oans FOE% REEHERAR

from other financial insitutions and

other borrowings - - - - - - 115,400 212,2% 126,585 - - 454,281
Repayment of bank loans, loan from

ofher financil nsftutions and

other borrowings - - - - - - (138600 (8.439) - - - (147039
Repayment of finance leases - - - - - (184) - - - - - (184)
Repayment of amount due to

arelated company = (7872 - - - - - = = = = (7872
Total changes from financing cash flows ~~ BEB SR ERH 95 8911 (7895) - (w3 726) (184 (8%80) 201240 12658 - - 9576
Exchange adjustments Efae 2130 106 0 37 3485 - - 8,569 6825 - - 2163
Other changes: i85
Finance cost EEE 3,966 B - 4665 4726 1 5780 34037 13,169 - - 66,383
Credited of iterest payables HARHTIE - - - 44589 - - - 314200 (13169) = = =
Totalother changes 4 ) 3,966 i - 49254 4706 1 5780 2617 - - - 6,383
Asat 31 December 2018 RF-NET=A=1-H 55,007 - 386 9976 67393 4 90,350 220866 165,045 - - 609433
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 39. 4B & RE2XMIT - &
OF CASH FLOWS - CONTINUED

() Total cash outflow for leases () HEZRESRHAEE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the consolidated AAGEARERERZEER SR
statement of cash flows is as follows: WEEINT ¢

2019 2018

—E-NF —ZE-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARWFT ARBFT

Within operating activities KRR 1,289 7,275

Within financing activities BEEBA 2,291 -

3,580 7,275

40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 40. T EMBEAF
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, at the end of the ARARRERHSERF 2 EEZEWNBRAZ
reporting period are as follows: SR -

Particulars of issued
Place of incorporation/ and fully paid up share/  Percentage of ownership interest/
establishment/operation voting power/profit share Principal activities

i3

Indirect
filf
ATV Hong Kong 1,316,251,091 ordinary T 52.42%  Property and intellectual
shares - HK$1.16 (2018: 52.42%) property holding
8 Eh 1,316,251,091 % & - 5242% FANERAMERE
fR-1.16%7 (ZB-N\F:
52.40%)
Co-Prosperity (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares - HK$2 - 100%  Trading of fabrics
(2018: 100%)
BEBE(FE)BRAR Bk WRERR - - 100% EEMH
AT (ZB-NF:
100%)
Xiefeng (Fujian) Printing & Dyeing PRC Registered capital - T 100%  Processing, printing and sales
Co., Ltd.) For a term of 50 years US$10,000,000 (2018: 100%) of finished fabrics
Commencing 26 May 1999
as a WFOE
BE(ER) HAERAR k! AR - - 100%  FRefmRT - ENERIHE
—“NANERAZT B 10,000,000% 7T (ZB-N\F:
RS0 FRINEEALE 100%)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES — CONTINUED 40. T ENE AT - &
Particulars of issued
Place of incorporation/ and fully paid up share/  Percentage of ownership interest/
establishment/operation registered capital voting power/profit share Principal activities
EIRERBE/
y IEEH
Direct Indirect
% i
Xiesheng (Shishi) Printing & Knitting Industry PRC Registered capital - = 100%  Processing, printing and sales
Co., Ltd. For a term of 50 years US$5,000,000 (2018: 100%) of finished fabrics
Commencing 16 September
1993 as a WFOE
B (AR 24 EXAR AR i EMER - - 100%  FRefmAINT - EVERSHE
“NANAZENATREERS 5,000,000%7C (Z3-NF:
506 fERINEBELS 100%)
Rende Finance Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares - = 100%  Money lending
HK$10,000 (2018: 100%)
CRUBERAR ik 10,000k &38R - - 100% M
10,0007 (ZE-NE:
100%)
Co-Prosperity Investment (International) British Virgin Islands (“BVI") 1 ordinary share - US$1 = 100%  Securities investment
Limited (2018: 100%)
RERERE(ER)BRAR RERRHE 1REBR - - 100% #EFRE
([ZBERES]) %7 (ZB-NF:
100%)
Eastern Culture Communication Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - HK$1 = 100%  Entertainment and media
Consultant Limited (2018: 100%) Services
SEENERERAA B 1R AR - - 100%  RERFERS
187 (22N
100%)
Star Platinum BVI 100 ordinary shares - = 100%  Entertainment and media
US$100 (2018: 100%) Services
Eff ERRRES 100 &8 - - 100%  RERFERS
1007 (Z2-NF:
100%)
Co-Prosperity Management Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - HK$1 = 100%  Provision of management
(2018: 100%) Services
BEGLERERAA & 1R AR - - 100%  REAERRS
187 (ZE-Ng:
100%)
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40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - CONTINUED 40. TEHMBAE - &
Particulars of issued
Place of incorporation/ and fully paid up share/  Percentage of ownership interest/
establishment/operation registered capital voting power/profi Principal activities
BET ‘
) FEXK
Direct Indirect
Ef il
Asia Television Digital Media Limited Hong Kong 100,000 ordinary shares - T 100%  Entertainment and media
HK$100,000 (2018: 100%) services
ENERBBREARAA Eh 100,000/ &5 - - 100%  RERFERS
100,007 (ZF-NF:
100%)
Eastern Culture International Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - HK$1 T 100%  Investment holding
(2018: 100%)
SERRLRERR AR B IRERER - - 100%  RERR
187 (22N
100%)
Full Winning BVI 1 ordinary share - US$1 100% - Investment holding
(2018: 100%)
ERERARAT ERREHS 1REBR - 100% - RABR
£ (ZE-N\F:
100%)
Million Federal (Note 31(b)) Hong Kong 25,000,000 ordinary - 60%  Investment holding
shares - HK$25,000,000 (2018: 60%)
B (Hrt31(b) B 25,000,000 % & f% - - 60%  REARR
25,000,000/ 7T (Z3-NE:
60%)
Sincere Securities Limited Hong Kong 60,000,000 ordinary T 60%  Underwriting, placing and
shares - HK$60,000,000 (2018: 60%) brokerage and related
services
AEESERAT &k 60,000,000/ % &K - - 60% B3 BENREERAE
60,000,000/ 7T (ZF-NF: FR%
60%)
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40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES — CONTINUED 40. TEMEBAAE - &

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected the results
or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, result in particulars of excessive
length.

Two (2018: seven) wholly-owned subsidiaries were de-registered during
the year resulting in loss on de-registration of subsidiaries less than
RMB 1,000 (2018: approximately RMB8,000) (Note 8) for the year ended
31 December 2019.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the end

of the year, or at any time during the year.

The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

ERINEARFEERREAEEXERE
EETEXEZARANBERR - ARAE
ERR IIHEMHBARZFESERRE
EBNITR

FAREERME(ZZE—/\F : £tH)&2E&
EENHBAREREHEE-_S—NF+=A
=t+—HLEFEBCEERNB AR Z BB
RARKEI1,000c(ZFE—\F : HARK
8,0007T) (Fi5E8) °

FEY (BB ARFEAEER 28
RBRERERE -
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41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY

244

41. KRR Tz MBIk =

PAONIC] PAONES]
—ZE-NEF T N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
=4 AREFr ARKFT
Non-current assets EREBEE

Property, plant and equipment ME - BEREXE 61 73
Interest in subsidiaries KB A Rz s 40 39,301 54,998
39,362 55,071

Current assets REEE
Other receivables and prepayments H b e Uk BR 3k N FE N A 849 608
Amounts due from subsidiaries FELULHT B A B A 40 35,788 80,566
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRKIA S 1,516 =
38,153 81,174

Current liabilities rEBAE
Other payables and accruals HEMEMERRESER 47,160 12,514
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEASHFT B A B IR 40 2,921 2,053
Amount due to a director EEEIE 28(vi) 9,385 -
Derivative financial instruments PTEBIET A 32 25,529 -
Bond payables FEfHE S 29 68,613 67,393
Loans from other financial institutions KEEM SRR 2 B3 216,961 170,313
Other borrowings HiEE 35,752 165,045
406,321 417,318
Net current liabilities REEEFE (368,168) (336,144)
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41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY - CONTINUED

. ARTRZ2HBIRAEK - &

2018

—E-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT ARBFT

Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAERE (328,806) (281,073)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE

Convertible bonds AR ES 32 126,848 =

Net liabilities BEFHE (455,654) (281,073)
Capital and reserves EXRR G

Share capital &N 34 648,584 616,617

Reserves i (1,104,238) (897,690)

Capital deficiency B ET A (455,654) (281,073)

The financial statements of the Company were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 6 May 2020 and are signed on its
behalf by:

Deng Junjie
HENR

Co-chairman and Executive Director

WL ERATER

RARIMBREER_E-_EFHABE
EESHAEBBT AN TALRRES

Chan Wai Kit
FR {2 £
Executive Director

HITEE
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41.

246

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY - CONTINUED

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

Share
premium

Special
reserve

Enl
RMB000

41. ARR 2 R R T - &

Other
reserve

ARRIEEZHENT :

Convertible
bond equity
reserve

Translation
reserve

RMB'000
A

Accumulated

losses

At 31 December 2017 as previously ~ R=F-tE+-A=1-A
reported (WBAER) 1,112,278 146,472 - - (15,753) (619,479) 623,518
Impact on initial application of HKFRS 9 B R & B 7 s %3
FITNTE - - - - 47846 (1,199,061)  (1,151,215)
At 31 December 2017 and R=B-tE+=A=1-A
1 January 2018 (restated) R=%2-N\§-B-A
(BE5) 1,112,278 146,472 - - 32,093 (1,818,540) (527,697)
Loss for the year REEEE - - - = - (360326) (360326
Other comprehensive expense for the year AEFEM2EER
- Exchange differences arising on -BEEE/EREE
translation - - - - (9,667) - (9,667)
Total comprehensive expense for the year AFE2EH A5 - - - - (9,667) (360,326) (369,993)
At 31 December 2018 RZB-NE+=A=t-H
and 1 January 2019 R=E-N%-B-H 1,112,278 146,472 - - 22,426 (2,178,866) (897,690)
Loss for the year TEERE - - - - - (747 (371427)
Other comprehensive expense for the year AEEEM2ERER
- Exchange differences arising on -REEEVERER
translation - - - - (9,976) - (9,976)
Total comprehensive expense TEERERYAE
for the year - - - - (9,976) (371,427) (381,403)
Capital contribution arising from initial ~ fIABERNTAHBIEELZ
recognition of derivative financial EE(WH32)
instruments (Note 32) - - 73,876 - - - 73,876
Issue of convertible bonds, net of BTaRES(IBR S
transaction cost (Note 32) B (Hit32) - - - 53,028 - - 53,028
Issue of consideration shares for movie  HEFARAZTRERD
investments (Note 34) (Hiit34) 47,951 - - - - - 47,951
47,951 - 73,876 53,028 - - 174,855
At 31 December 2019 R-B-h&E+-B=1-H 1,160,229 146,472 73,876 53,028 12,450 (2,550,293  (1,104,238)
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41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY - CONTINUED

Note: The special reserve represents the differences between the nominal amount

42.

of the shares issued by the Company’s former holding company and the
aggregate amount of paid-up capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant
to the Group reorganisation in 2005 in preparation for the listing of the
Company's shares, net of subsequent distribution to shareholders.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the

Group has the following subsequent events:

(a)

Since January 2020, the epidemic of Coronavirus Disease 2019
("COVID-19") has spread across China and other countries and it
has affected the business and economic activities of the Group to
some extent.

Subject to the development and spread of COVID-19 subsequent
to the date of these consolidated financial statements, COVID-19
may have further impact on the financial results of the Group, the
extent of which could not be reliably estimated as at the date of
these consolidated financial statements.

The Group will closely monitoring the situation of the COVID-19
and react actively to its impact on the financial position and
operating results of the Group.

The fair value of securities investment classified as financial assets
at FVTPL has been dropped by approximately 21% as at the date
of this report.

A1. RRAFz2HBIRRE - &

MYaE - SFRIREEA AR RZERA RS HTROE

42.

B BRBER-_ZFZRAFLBHARERN
EHzEEBAMKEZHBRRZHBAE
REBZ BAMNBERARRIEE Z DKL
HHZELR °

BEHMBRCEAEE

BRGAMBRELMBAIFTRBEESN  AEBZR
EHSEIEIT
(@) BZZT_ZTF— HIE 20198 RK

FR([COVID-19 ) EBER B F it &
HMWBEREE  WEHAEEZER
R EBER —EIRE T -

RFCOVID-19R 4R A B 53k = B BR &
2R R {EHE - COVID-197] fe & YR
EEUBEEERE—FTFE M
HESAGVHRRBHIL  ERE®
LT S A o

NEEBHRY)EERCOVID-19% 15 - I
BB ENEEAEEG RN REE
EBERZTE -

DEBBATEFAABRRZVBE
EZBFEREZAFENARE BB
TEAI21% o
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

HEBR

Year ended 31 December

BET-A=1T—HItFE

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
—E—RF ZTRF —T—+F —Z-N\F —Z-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT AEETT ARETT ARETFT ARETFT

RESULTS 4
Turnover 1] 273,301 198,621 150,748 166,025 156,892
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRiRT(BE) /% T (5,008) 31,086 (118,911) (839,756) (621,875)
Taxation B8 (1,892) (1,889) (4,082) 617 16,562
(Loss)/profit for the year AEE(BE),/#H (6,900) 29,197 (122,993) (839,139) (605,313)

As at 31 December

Wt+-A=+—8
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
—ZE—-RF ZT—RF —T—tF —T-N\F —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFr AREFT AREFr AREFr AR Fr
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERARE
Total assets BEBE 525,547 1,199,383 1,693,080 1,433,005 1,013,168
Total liabilities BELE (255,567) (509,687) (394,378) (995,684) (974,738)
Net assets BEFE 269,980 689,696 1,298,702 437,321 38,430
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